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• PARTI • 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

The new Cabin John Ice Rink features three indoor rinks, a warming room, team room, concession area, arcade and offices. 
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MN 
THE I MARYL~ND-NATIONAL 

pp 
CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

6611 Kenilworth Avenue • Riverdale, Maryland 20737 

~.tc September 22, 2000 

Commissioners: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2000 is hereby submitted. This Report was prepared by the Commission's Finance Department. 
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, 
rests with the Commission. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner 
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various Funds and Account Groups of the 
Commission. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Commission's financial activities 
have been included. This Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Article 28, Sections 2-113 and 7-107, 
of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial and Statistical. The 
Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the Commission's background and organization, and the Commission's 
program highlights. The Financial Section includes the General Purpose Financial Statements, and the combining and individual 
fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditors' report on the financial statements and 
schedules. The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multiyear 
basis. 

The Commission is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996, 
as revised and U.S. Office ofManagement and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of Federal financial assistance, findings and 
recommendations, and auditors' reports on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, 
which are contained in a separate report, is available from the Office of the Secretary-Treasurer. The Commission is also 
required to file a Uniform Financial Report with the Maryland State Department of Legislative Services by November 1 of each 
year. 

The Reporting Entity and Its Services 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland established by 
the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The Commission is a bi-county agency serving both Montgomery and Prince George's 
Counties. It is empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in the defined Metropolitan 
District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, and to prepare and administer a general plan for the physical development 
of a defined Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also conducts the recreation program for Prince George's 
County. 

This Report includes all Funds and Account Groups of the Commission. Exhibits 1 to 6 present aggregate data for the 
Commission in total by fund type and account group, including the Commission's Employees' Retirement System. Separate 
financial data pertaining to Montgomery County and Prince George's County, respectively, are set forth in the Notes to Financial 
Statements. The Commission is reported as a joint venture by both Montgomery and Prince George's County governments. 

Exhibits 1 to 6 and the Notes to Financial Statements comprise the General Purpose Financial Statements, which include all 
the data essential for a fair presentation of the Commission's financial position and operating results. The General Purpose 
Financial Statements are prepared in conformance with the generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to state and 
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local government entities promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and, pursuant to Article 28, Section 2-113, have been audited by a public accounting firm selected by the 
Commission. The KPMG LLP auditors ' report is included in the Financial Section of this Report. The General Purpose 
Financial Statements may be issued separately from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

The Commission's economic condition and future outlook continue to be positive due to two factors. First, at year end, the 
Commission bad a budget basis fund balance in the General Fund of$44,216,000. Of this amount, $13,306,000 is designated 
to fund fiscal year 2001, $5,099,000 (approximately 3% of the General Fund budget for fiscal year 2000) is designated for 
unforeseen circumstances, $13,418,000 is designated to fund the operating, maintenance and debt service costs of future Prince 
George's County facilities, and $12,393,000 is uncommitted as of June 30, 2000. Second, property taxes which constitute 
approximately 91 % of the Commission's General Fund revenues in fiscal year 2000 are expected to continue to be a stable 
revenue source. The assessed value of all taxable property has continued to grow modestly, contributing to an increase in 
General Fund property tax revenues of$159,245,000 to $164,002,000 (3.0%). The Commission's total Montgomery County 
tax rate increased slightly in fiscal year 2000. The Commission's total Prince George's County tax rate has remained the same 
since fiscal year 1993. The Montgomery and Prince George's County unemployment rates as of June 2000 were 1. 8% and 3 .8% 
respectively, in comparison to the 3.6% State-wide and 4.2% national unemployment rates. The fiscal impact of the State of 
Maryland electricity deregulation on the Commission is uncertain. Management continues to monitor developments and uses 
conservative tax revenue and utility expenditure estimates. 

The Commission's Montgomery County activities are subject to spending affordability guidelines of Montgomery County 
Government. The Commission is currently working on a spending affordability policy for its Prince George's County activities. 
These efforts add to the solid foundation of financial management and assist the Commission in meeting the challenge of 
providing enhanced public services at an economical cost. 

Maior Initiatives 

The Commission enjoyed an excellent program year in fiscal year 2000. The major accomplishments of the Commission are 
set forth in the Program Highlights section of this Report. 

Financial Information 

Management of the Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure 
that the assets of the Commission are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are 
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The 
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The 
concept of reasonable assurance recogniz.es that: ( 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and 
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Single Audit. As a recipient of Federal, State and County financial assistance, the Commission also is responsible for ensuring 
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those 
programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management and the internal audit staff of the 
Commission. 

As a part of the Commission's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control 
structure, including that portion related to Federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the Commission 
has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the Commission's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2000, provided no instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable 
laws and regulations. 
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Budgeting Controls. The Commission maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure 
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Montgomery County and Prince 
George's County governments. Activities of the General Fund which include a transfer for debt service expenditures are 
included in the annual appropriated budget. Project length financial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The level 
of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established within each 
individual fund. 

The Commission's accounting records for its general governmental operations including park operation and maintenance, 
recreation (Prince George's County only), planning and roning, administration, debt service, and capital projects are maintained 
on a modified accrual basis, with the revenue being recorded when available and measurable. Expenditures are recorded when 
the services or goods are received, or, under the encumbrance system, which is used in the budget preparation and control 
process, when a purchase order or contract has been issued. The accounting records for the Commission's Enterprise Funds, 
Internal Service Funds, and Employees' Retirement System are maintained on the accrual basis. 

The Commission maintains an internal auditing staff that reports to the Secretary-Treasurer. This staff performs recurring 
internal audits throughout the Commission's offices and facilities, and inspection and verification of major construction projects. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000, a total of215 facility audits were performed, and six construction projects were 
inspected. 

AU internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the Commission's internal accounting 
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

General Government Activities - General Fund (Exhibits A-1, A-2 and A-3) 

The Commission's park, recreation, planning and general administrative functions are financed primarily by five legally 
designated property taxes that must be levied on a separate County basis. These functions are accounted for in accounts within 

the General Fund. 

The Commission experienced a favorable budget to actual variance of$7,415,000. In Montgomery County, the $2,233,000 
positive variance of the Administration and Park Accounts was primarily a result of favorable property tax collections that 
exceeded the budget by $1,659,000, charges for fees and rentals that exceeded the budget by $122,000, interest earnings that 
exceeded the budget by $59,000, savings in Commissioners' office of$5 l ,000, savings in the planning divisions of $87,000, 
and non-departmental savings from liquidation of prior year encumbrances of $198,000. The variance, together with July 1, 
1999 undesigoated fund balances, resulted in budget basis fund balances at June 30, 2000 totaling $5,409,000. The fiscal year 
2001 budget was adopted with a funding source from fiscal year 2000 of $2,757,000 for fiscal year 2001 expenditures and 
$1 ,761,000 for unforeseen circumstances (approximating 3.0% of the fiscal year 2001 operating budget). The remaining 
$891,000 is undesigoated as ofJune 30, 2000. 

In Prince George's County, the $5,182,000 positive variance of the Administration, Park and Recreation Accounts was largely 
a result of property taxes that exceeded the budget by $3,001 ,000; interest earnings of$3,270,000 that exceeded the budget by 
$830,000, including interest transferred from the Capital Projects Funds of $945,000 and excluding interest transferred to the 
Capital Projects Funds of$1 ,342,000, expenditure savings of $1 ,039,000; and additional operating transfers of$46,000. The 
variance, together with July 1, 1999 undesigoated fund balances, resulted in budget basis fund balances at June 30, 2000 totaling 
$38,808,000. The fiscal year 2001 budget was adopted with a funding source from fiscal year 2000 of $10,549,000 for fiscal 
year 2001 expenditures, $3,338,000 for unforeseen circumstances (approximating 3 .0% of the fiscal year 2001 operating 
budget), and $13,418,000 for the operating costs and debt service of future facilities. The remaining $11,502,000 is undesig­
oated as of June 30, 2000. Prince George's County fund balances reflect the plan to stabilize property tax rates at the 1993 
rate by utilizing reserves accumulated to offset future tax rate increases. 

Comparative summaries of the Montgomery County Administration and Park Accounts and the Prince George's County 
Administration, Parle and Recreation Accounts on the Commission's budget basis, before debt service and other financing 
sources and uses, are as follows ($000's). 
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Revenue Source -
Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Interest Earnings 
Other 

County Total 

Expenditure Classification -
Personal Services 
Supplies, Materials, Other 

Services and Charges 
Capital Outlay 

County Total 

PRINCE GEORGE• S COUNTY 

Revenue Source -
Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Interest Earnings 
Other 

County Total 

Expenditure Classification -
Personal Services 
Supplies, Materials, Other 

Services and Charges 
Capital Outlay 

County Total 

Actual 
FYOO 

$61,469 
408 

2,275 
81 1 
131 

$65,094 

$44,233 

15,901 
991 

$61,125 

$102,533 
840 

7,080 
3,667 

545 
$114,665 

$ 63,218 

32,217 
2,422 

$ 97,857 

Actual 
FY99 

$59,013 
499 

2,276 
832 
141 

$62,761 

$43,398 

15,349 
744 

$59,491 

$100,231 
897 

6,740 
2,992 

299 
$1 11,159 

$61 ,628 

27,790 
2,375 

$91,793 

Increase {Decrease} 
Amount Percent 

$2,456 4.2% 
(91) (18.2) 

(1) (0.0) 
(21) (2.5) 
{10) ..1L.!l 

$2,333 3.7% 

$ 835 1.9% 

552 3.6 
247 33.2 

$1,634 2.7% = 

$2,302 2.3% 
(57) (6.4) 
340 5.0 
675 22.6 
246 82.3 

$3,506 3.2% = 

$1,590 2.6% 

4,427 15.9 
____£ _l,Q 
$6,064 6.6% 

The property tax revenue in Montgomery County increased by $2,456,000 in fiscal year 2000. The property tax revenue 
increase in fiscal year 2000 included unusually high collections from prior years taxes, interest and penalties totaling $1,444,000 
versus $770,000 in fiscal year 1999. Current year collections reflected a 2.8% growth in assessable base in fiscal year 2000. 
The applicable tax rate was 21.60, an increase of .2 cents in fiscal year 2000. This increase was partially offset by a decrease 
in intergovernmental revenues due to the partial completion of prior year "COPSMORE" grant awards and a decrease in interest 
earnings of$2 l,OOO based on lower cash balances. The increase in personal services charges was due primarily to the June 28, 
1999, 2.5% non-bargaining unit cost ofliving adjustment (COLA), the union COLAs ranging from 2.0% to 2.8%, and merit 
increases. The increase in personal services was offset in part by salary lapse and a decrease in employer retirement 
contributions. Supplies, materials and other charges increased by $552,000 primarily due to consultant fees for transportation 
and concept plans, and for updated computer equipment and network management services. The increase in capital outlay of 
$247,000 was primarily due to updating computer equipment and the purchase of motor vehicles, equipment and machinery 
for the. parks operations. 

The increase in Prince George's County property tax revenue of$2,302,000 reflects the 2.1% growth in assessable base for 
fiscal year 2000, and a $148,000 increase in collections of prior year taxes, and interest and penalties. The applicable tax rate 
of 60.38 cents was unchanged. The interest earnings increases reflected higher investment balances and a higher average rate 
ofreturn throughout fiscal year 2000. The charges for services increased in Prince George' s County primarily due to higher 
recreation program revenues. Prince George's intergovernmental revenues decreased in fiscal year 2000 due primarily to the 
close out of the Federal "COPSMORE" grant. The increase in personal services charges was due primarily to the COLAs 
referred to above. The increase in personal services was partially offset by a decrease in employer retirement contributions. 
The capital outlay increase in Prince George's County is due primarily to the purchase of desktop computers and other minor 
equipment. Supplies, materials and other services and charges increased $4,427,000 due to computer maintenance contracts, 
hardware purchases, and risk management increases. 
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Debt Administration - Debt Service Funds (Exhibits B-1 and B-2) and Enterprise Funds (Exhibits D-1 and D-2) 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the Commission• s general obligation debt, which includes Park Acquisition and 
Oevelopment Bonds (Park Bonds) and Advance Land Acquisition Bonds (ALA Bonds). The outstanding issues totaling 
, 148,385,000 and the related debt service requirements to maturity are set forth in Note 10 of the Notes to Financial Statements. 

The Commission's general obligation bonds are unconditionally guaranteed by the County for which issued. Debt service 
expenditures for Park Bonds and ALA Bonds totaled $15,920,000 (Montgomery-$3,934,000, PrinceGeorge's-$11,986,000) 
for the fiscal year. 

Of the outstanding debt, Park Bonds totaled $139,760,000 at June 30, 2000. Park Bonds debt service expenditures totaled 
$14,889,000 (Montgomery-$3,328,000, Prince George• s-$11,561,000) for the fiscal year. The Commission's Metropolitan 
District (Parle) tax includes a mandatory tax for debt service for Park Bonds of nine cents in Montgomery County and ten cents 
in Prince George's County. Debt service payments approximated 1.2 cents of the mandatory debt service tax proceeds for 
Montgomery County and 6.9 cents for Prince George's County. The remainder of the proceeds of the mandatory taxes was used 
for park operation and maintenance expenditures in the respective Counties. 

The Commission's outstanding general obligation bonds continue to have favorable ratings as follows. 

Moody's Investors Service. Inc. 
Montgomery County Aaa 
Prince George's County Aa2 

Standard & Poor's Rating Services 
AAA 
AA 

The Commission• s revenue bonds and revenue notes payable which totaled $13,255,000 at June 30, 2000, are accounted for 
in the Enterprise Funds. The revenue bonds and notes are not general obligations of the Commission or Montgomery County 
and are payable solely from revenues generated from revenue producing facilities. Debt service expenditures for the revenue 
bonds and notes totaled $1,238,000 for the fiscal year. 

uring fiscal year 2000, there were no new issues of notes or bonds. 

The outstanding proprietary fund debt as of June 30, 2000, and the related debt service requirements are set forth in Note 10 
of the Notes to Financial Statements. 

Capital Improvements - Capital Proiects Funds (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) 

Proceeds of general obligation park acquisition and development issues are accounted for in Capital Projects Funds until the 
projects are completed. Completed projects and construction in progress at year-end are capitalized in the General Fixed Assets 
Account Group. During fiscal year 2000, projects totaling $47,692,000 were completed. 

Montgomery County authorized projects totaling $20,294,000 in fiscal year 2000, of which $2,057,000 is to be funded by 
Commission bonds, with the remainder to be funded primarily by Montgomery County Government, Maryland Program Open 
Space, and from enterprise operations. Of the total budget, $520,000 was allocated to acquisition of parkland, and $19,774,000 
was allocated for development. The largest project was a public/private partnership for the construction of the South 
Germantown SoccerPlex. Private funding for Phase I of the project consisting of 15 outdoor fields, a championship tournament 
field, an indoor arena and supporting facilities and infrastructure will be $13,750,000 of the $22,150,000 budgeted cost. Other 
major projects include multi-year funding of$8,847,000 for additional facilities at South Germantown Recreational Parle with 
a miniature golf, splash playground, and adventure playground, and $1,338,000 for ballfield lighting and $570,000 for ballfield 
initiatives at various parks, schools, and other sites in the County. 

Prince George's County authorized projects totaling $31,117,000 in fiscal year 2000, of which $11,147,000 is to be funded by 
Commission bonds. Other major funding sources include Maryland Program Open Space and private funding. Of the total 

1dget, $5,425,000 was allocated to the acquisition of parkland and $25,692,000 for development. Major projects included 
""2,57 5,000 for Concord Golf Course at Walker Mill Regional Parle, $3,000,000 for community centerrenovations, $1,500,000 
for Tucker Road Ice Rink, $1,500,000 for the College Park Airport restaurant expansion and hanger renovation, $1,700,000 
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for revitalization of the Historic Bladensburg Waterfront Parle, and $5,500,000 of private funding for the Junior Tennis 
Champions Center. 

Financial activity for 2000 and 1999 is summarized as follows ($000's). 

Montgome[Y Coun!Y Prince George's Coun!Y 
FY2000 FY 1999 FY2000 FY 1999 

Proceeds of Debt Issuance $ $7,000 $ $ 
Intergovernmental Revenues -
Federal 658 422 
Maryland Program Open Space 713 1,304 6,631 9,049 
Local 11,203 4.118 2 

Total 11,916 12,422 7,291 9 471 
Transfers In -

General Fund 310 290 5,084 3,468 
Trust Fund 313 195 35 

Sale of Land 156 
Other Revenues 1,036 2,126 

Total .....11.Q ~ 6,315 5,785 
Expenditures and Other -

Acquisition 486 688 3,214 5,781 
Development 15,378 6,951 14,409 30,947 

Total 15,864 7,639 17,623 36,728 

Authorized and Funded Projects 3,060 6,697 19,377 23,393 
Working Capital 3,060 6,697 19,377 23,393 

Self-Supporting Recreational and Cultural Facilities -Enterprise Funds 
(Exhibits D-1, D-2, and D-3) 

The Commission has determined that certain recreational and cultural facilities should be predominantly self-supporting through 
user fees. Enterprise Fund accounting and reporting is used to emphasize the self-supporting nature of these activities and ti. 
provide improved cost accounting information. Enterprise Fund accounting, which is on a commercial accounting accrual basis, 
more accurately reflects whether individual facilities return the full cost of the program. 

One Enterprise Fund has been established in each County to account for the various facilities. Separate cost centers are 
maintained for each major type of facility including an historical airport, four ice rinks, eight golf courses, four enclosed tennis 
facilities, four conference centers, an in-line skating center, an equestrian center/multipurpose arena, a trap and skeet center, 
certain regional park facilities, a sports and learning center, and a marina which is currently closed for renovation. 

The Commission's objective is that user fees and operating transfers in (subsidies) for all facilities cover operating expenses, 
excluding depreciation, but including payments for capital outlay. The Montgomery County Enterprise Fund fell short of the 
goal by approximately $6,822,000 including operating transfers in of $86,000, and after payments for capital outlay and 
improvements totaling $7,484,000. The Montgomery County Enterprise cash is used to partially fund Capital Improvement 
Projects, which amounted to $6,658,000 in fiscal year 2000. The Prince George's County Enterprise Fund fell short of the goal 
by $1,416,000 including operating transfers in of$5,259,000, and after payments for capital outlay of$634,000. 

Summary comparative results of the financial operations of the Enterprise Funds for fiscal years 2000 and 1999 follow ($000's ). 

Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses 

Excluding Depreciation 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Excluding Depreciation 
Depreciation 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Montgomery 
Coun!Y 

FY2000 FY 1999 
$11,472 $11,128 

10,896 8,696 

576 2,432 
933 665 

$ (357) $ 1,767 
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Prince George's 
Coun!Y 

FY2000 FY 1999 
$ 5,312 $5,335 

11,353 7,643 

(6,041) (2,308) 
1,501 991 

$ (7,542) $(3,299) 



Comparative Montgomery County key data are as follows. 
Operating Income {loss) 

Revenues Excluding De!;!reciation 
Facility FY 2000 FY 1999 Change FY 2000 FY 1999 Change 

':onference Centers $ 316,869 $ 327,358 $ {10,489) $ {105,844) $ {158,338) $ 52,494 
Golf Courses 6,680,261 6,989,681 {309,420) 799,841 1,940,300 {1 ,140,459) 
Ice Rinks 1,857,373 1,396,410 460,963 (940,357) (248,745) (691 ,612) 
Indoor Tennis 1,021,025 1,079,305 {58,280) 354,933 523,068 (168,135) 
Park Facilities 1,596,949 1,335,182 261 767 467,306 375,779 91,527 

TOTAL 111,472,477 111,127,936 I 344,541 I 575,879 12,432,064 1(1,856, 185} 

Total Enterprise Fund revenues increased by 3 .1 %; however, operating income, excluding depreciation, decreased by 76.3%, 
due to higher operating expenses excluding depreciation. Operating expense increases were due mainly to start-up costs at 
Cabin John and Wheaton Ice Rinks and increased expenditures of $400,000 at the golf courses for turf care to correct damage 
caused by the wet spring and the drought of 1999. Ice rink revenues increased 33.0% due to the opening of the reconstructed 
and expanded Cabin John Ice Rink in the fall of 1999, which had been closed since March 1999. Park facilities showed an 
increase in revenues of 19. 6% due to increases in revenues at the Brookside Gardens Visitors Center, collections of rentals for 
the use of parkland for cell towers and fiber optics, and collections from other County agencies for Commission-provided 
maintenance services. Golf revenues were also impacted by the adverse weather conditions. 

Comparative Prince George's key data are as follows. 
Operating Income {Loss) 

Revenues Excluding De!;!reciation 
Facility FY 2000 FY 1999 Change FY 2000 FY 1999 Change 

Airport $ 261,220 $ 218,549 $ 42,671 $ {371,214) $ {327,899) $ {43,315) 
Equestrian Center/Arena 998,826 911,855 86,971 {1,472,833) (1,576,910) 104,077 
Golf Courses 2,109,745 2,378,134 {268,389) (28,915) 149,814 {178,729) 
Ice Rinks 458,807 481,000 (22,193) {68,659) (118,179) 49,520 
Regional Parks 200,252 302,182 (101,930) (249,280) (181 ,372) (67,908) 
Trap & Skeet Center 1,123,008 1,043,059 79,949 (15,406) (83,811) 68,405 
' ports & learning Complex 160,548 160,548 (3,576,970) (3,576,970) 

ladensburg Marina (257,433} (170,060) (87,373) 
TOTAL 15,312,406 15,334,779 I {22,373) 1(6,040,710} 1{2,308,417} 1(3, 732,293} 

Total Enterprise Fund revenue is at the fiscal year · 1999 level, however, the operating loss, excluding depreciation, increased 
by 161. 7% primarily due to the start-up operations of the Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex, which formally opened 
in May 1999. Operating revenues at the golf courses decreased by 11.3% due to the rainy spring and at the regional parks by 
33.7% due to a combination of the unfavorable weather conditions and the storm damage at the Watkins Nature Center. The 
airport revenues increased by 19 .5% and equestrian center/arena revenues were slightly ahead of fiscal year 1999. The Sports 
and Learning Complex realized $161,000 in revenue for the first two months of operation and incurred $3,738,000 in start-up 
and operations expenses. 

Internal Service Funds (Exhibits E-1, E-2 and E-3) 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the consolidated financing of those goods or services that are provided centrally 
to the departments on a cost reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds are used to account for the Commission's group 
insurance and risk management programs; the executive office building on Kenilworth Avenue in Prince George's County; the 
recording of annual and sick leave earned, taken and accrued by employees; the administrative leave used by employees who 
are bargaining unit members; and financing of capital equipment purchases. The Commission has fully funded the short-term 
portion of the annual and compensatory leave liability required to be recorded in the financial statements, and has funded 70% 
of the long-term portion. 

The Capital Equipment Funds permit spreading the cost of capital outlay to the operating funds over a period not to exceed six 
-ears. Risk management net cost decreased $247,000, from $3,038,000 in fiscal year 1999 to $2,791,000 in fiscal year 2000 

a result of higher allocated interest income and claim recoveries which offset insurance costs in fiscal year 2000. The 
Commission's risk management program consisting of self-insuring small losses and commercially insuring against large losses, 
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in combination with an intensive safety program, has produced substantial savings since its inception in 1979, and has also 
improved the employee safety record. Total group insurance costs for active employees and retirees increased 3.8% from 
$13,508,000 in fiscal year 1999 to $14,020,000 in fiscal year 2000 due to the overall increases to group insurance plan premium 
rates. 

Fiduciary Activities - (Exhibits 6, and F-1, F-2, and F-3) 

Fiduciary activities include the Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Maryland State Retirement System 
(MSRS) Agency Fund, the Retiree Insurance 115 Expendable Trust, and a number of Expendable Trust Funds. Pension Trust 
Fund investments resulted in an overall gain of7.9%. The Commission contributed $2,547,000 to the Employees' Retirement 
System as detennined by the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 1999, which is used for financial reporting purposes in the 
accompanying report. This represented a 14.3% decline from the $2,972,000 contribution in fiscal year 1999. An actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2000, still in progress, indicates a net market value of Pension Trust Fund assets approximating 
$480,354,000, up $27,000,000 during the year primarily due to investment returns. 

Cash Management 

The Commission's accounting system operates under a pooled cash fund concept. This method reduces the efforts needed to 
manage cash and investments since bank accounts and investments are consolidated in a Treasurer's Fund instead of having 
separate bank accounts and investments for each Fund. Investments of the Treasurer's Fund earned interest income of 
$8,224,000 during fiscal year 2000. The average rate of return on the Commission• s cash and investments during fiscal year 
2000 was 5.67%. 

General Fixed Assets 

The general fixed assets of the Commission are those assets used in general governmental functions and exclude the fixed assets 
of the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds. The assets, which are valued principally at cost, had a book value of 
$509,699,000 at June 30

1 
2000, a decrease of $8,200,000 representing additions offset by the transfer of the Sports and 

Learning Complex assets of $34,145,000 from the General Fixed Assets to the Enterprise Fund. 

Other Information 

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The accounting firm 
of KPMG LLP was selected by the Commission. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit 
also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996, as revised and related 0MB Circular A-133. The 
auditors' report on the General Purpose Financial Statements, and the combining and individual fund statements and schedules 
is included in the Financial Section of this Report. The auditors' reports related specifically to the single audit are available from 
the Secretary-Treasurer upon request. 

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the Commission for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. 
The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year 1973. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, the Commission must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. This Report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to detennine its eligibility for another Certificate. 

In addition, the Commission also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual budget for 
fiscal year 2000. The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year 1987. In order to qualify for the 
Distinguished Budget Presentation A ward, the Commission's budget document was judged to be proficient in several categori 
including policy documentation, financial planning and organiz.ation. 
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COMMISSION BACKGROUND AND ORGANIZATION 

The Maryland-National Capital Parle and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland, 
established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The laws governing the Conunission were codified 
in 1959, recodified in 1975 to be Article 660 of the Annotated Code of Maryland and again in 1983, to be 
Article 28. 

The Conunission is a bi-county agency, empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional 
system of parks in a defined Metropolitan District within the Maryland Counties (Montgomery and Prince 
George's) adjacent to the District of Columbia; and the Conunission is empowered to prepare and administer 
a general plan for the physical development of a larger Regional District in the same area. 

As development and urbanization of the area have progressed, the two Districts have been enlarged by the 
General Assembly. They now embrace all of Maryland' s Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, except 
for certain incorporated municipalities in each County and, for the Metropolitan District only, Election Districts 
No. 4 and No. 8 in Prince George's County. 

Responsibility for public recreation in Prince George's County and the County Recreation Department was 
transferred to the Conunission in July, 1970 as a result of legislative action. This legislation provided that 
taxes to support recreation be imposed County-wide and that the County Council may require the Conunission 
to institute new recreation programs. The County Executive appoints a Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
which works closely with the Commission in setting policy. 

The Conunission consists often members, five appointed by Montgomery County and five by Prince George' s 
County. In Montgomery County, all five of the Commissioners are appointed by the County Council and 
confirmed by the County Executive. Montgomery County Conunissioners may not be appointed for more than 
two consecutive terms. In Prince George's County, all five of the Commissioners are appointed by the County 
Executive and confirmed by the County Council. Each County designates one of its Conunissioners for the 
position of Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Commission. The Commission elects one of such designees as 
its Chairman and the other as its Vice-Chairman. The designee of each County also serves as the Chairman 
of that County's Planning Board. Under the Commission's rules of procedure, the Chairmanship and Vice­
Chairmanship of the Commission rotate annually between the two designees. Terms of office are staggered 
and no more than three members from each County may belong to the same political party. 

The Conunission coordinates and acts on matters of interest to both Counties. Two regional offices are 
maintained, one in each County. The Commission meets once each month regularly, the site of the meetings 
alternating between the two regional offices. The members of the Commission from each County serve as 
separate Planning Boards to facilitate, review and administer the matters affecting only their respective County. 
To carry out their functions, the County Planning Boards meet at least once a week. The County Councils set 
priorities for the Planning Boards' park and planning operations through their annual determination and 
periodic review of the Conunission's operating and capital improvement budgets and work programs. 

The Conunission administers a park system which currently contains over 52,000 acres. It is composed of 
stream-valley parks, large regional parks, neighborhood parks and park-school recreational areas. Its staff 
consists of over 2,065 career employees - planners, park and recreation administrators, park police and 
administrative staff. In addition, it employs approximately 4,870 seasonal workers, primarily for its numerous 
park and recreation programs. 
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The operating and administrative functions of the Commission are financed primarily by property taxes levied 
for the Commission by the two Counties. The Commission has the authority to sell general obligation bonds 
to fund approved park acquisition and development projects. 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
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PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 

The Maryland-National Capital Parle and Planning Commission continues its tradition of excellence in planning, parks 
and recreation services that contribute greatly to the quality of life enjoyed by visitors to and residents of Prince 
George's and Montgomery Counties. During the fiscal year, the National Recreation and Parks Association (NRP A) 
once again notified the Commission of its selection as an eight-time finalist in the competition for the National Gold 
Medal for excellence in parks and recreation management. As a four-time national gold medalist, the Commission is 
unmatched by any other agency in the country. Commission programs and staff also received special recognition from 
the National Association of County Parks and Recreation Officials which named South Germantown Recreational Park 
as the best parlc and recreation facility in its class and the Prince George's Central Teen Connection Cotillion as the 
most outstanding example of top recreation programming. The American Planning Association's local chapter honored 
the Commission with a total of eight awards - including two Outstanding Awards for the Friendship Heights Sector 
Plan and Managing Growth in the 21• Century- A Smart Growth Initiative in Prince George's County. And, the 
Department of Parks and Recreation Public Affairs Office won the NRPA's Marketing and Communications Kudos 
Award in the "Best Overall Communicator" category. 

Public/private partnerships continue to produce unprecedented and creative parks and recreation facilities. The Grand 
Opening Celebration for the completed Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex drew 8,000 people to this $39 
million state-of-the-art facility. The construction of South Germantown Recreational Park, including the SoccerPlex, 
proceeds at a record-breaking pace with opening ceremonies and the first soccer tournaments set for October 2000. 
The Junior Tennis Champions Center, a multimillion dollar training and competitive tennis complex with special focus 
on serving economically underprivileged youth, and privately built on land owned and leased by the Commission, is 
scheduled to open in November 2000. In addition, the Commission received the largest gift of real estate ever, a 382-
acre unimproved farm valued at $2.48 million, to develop as the Moritz Greenberg Equestrian Center. 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION: Meeting the varied needs of a growing, culturally diverse 
county of more than 760,000 people, the nationally recognized Department of Parks and Recreation continued to present 
innovative leisure programming for all ages, and managed an award-winning park system of more than 22,000 acres. 
Highlighting the year was the dedication of the Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex. This state-of-the-art 
recreational facility offers the best in swimming, gymnastics, track, and fitness venues, and promotes education and 
technology in the computerized Learning Center. Other major projects included community park/school projects for 
Suitland-Hilmar, East Central Middle, Oakcrest-Capitol Heights, and Patuxent Elementary School Gymnasium, and 
ongoing construction of Perrywood-Kettering Elementary. Highlights included the opening of a public/private indoor 
tennis facility at the Junior Tennis Champions Center; the renovation of 11 existing park playgrounds, including a "safe 
playground" installation at Cosca Regional Park; replacement of the Cosca Tennis Bubble; reconstruction of the storm­
damaged Watkins Nature Center; the groundbreaking for the 5.1-mile Washington, Baltimore and Annapolis Trail 
which will connect to trails in Anne Arundel County; and the exciting development and construction of the Historic 
Bladensburg Waterfront Park in concert with the Port Towns revitaliz.ation. 

The Department adopted and implemented a marketing plan and customer service initiative to better serve its customers. 
A new web site, ,vww.pgparks.com, contains thousands of items about programs and facilities, becoming one of the 
fastest growing marketing tools used to provide better service to residents and park facility visitors. A major telephone 
survey of residents defined the perceived benefits and awareness of park facilities and recreation programs which 
advanced marlcet research work. 
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During the year, the Department was proud to offer specializ.ed community/festival events to hundreds of thousands 
of patrons throughout Prince George's County. Some of these crowd pleasers included: the 19th Annual Kinderfest; the 
Hispanic Festival; the College ParlcAirfair; the Montpelier Spring Festival; the Winter Festival of Lights; Marlborough 
Day; and the 3rc1 Annual Teen Cotillion. 

Community needs were the focus of recreation programs for all ages. Summer playgrounds and day camps, teen and 
senior centers, and recreation classes attracted thousands of participants. Specializ.ed programs such as Extreme 
Excursions targeted young adults; the National Junior Tennis League offered free lessons and equipment to youth ages 
8-14; and Time Out For Families offered non-traditional activities for the family. Fitness enthusiasts visited golf, 
swimming and tennis facilities, and a diversified program of athletics for men, women, and children was offered and 
managed by the Sports/Permits Division. Adults enjoyed leagues and tournaments at all levels of play. Thousands of 
people permitted parlc facilities and popular garden plots. 

The beauty of natural areas and historic sites drew thousands of participants and enriched their visits through 
interpretive and guided tours. Volunteers assisted with conservation projects by planting trees and cleaning up streams, 
and helped coordinate the Jug Bay lOK Run for Wildlife which raised funds for Chesapeake Bay-related projects. 
Rangers continue to provide service to visitors and the resources in our park system. 

Arts and Cultural Heritage Division staff offered a wide variety of programs and services at arts facilities. The Publick 
Playhouse celebrated its 20th anniversary and the Montpelier Cultural Arts its 10th anniversary. Nationally recognized 
artists such as Larry Coryell, McCoy Tyner, Mahalia Jackson and others performed to sold out audiences. Asian Pacific 
American Heritage Month was inaugurated, and a new exhibit, "A Strong Foundation - The Legacy of African 
American Architects" was unveiled during Black History Month. 

The Special Populations Division continued to foster inclusion services for people with disabilities in Commission­
sponsored recreation activities and programs. Other related services included the provision of support staff, sign 
language interpreters, assistive listening devices, and adapted equipment. 

Both the Upper Marlboro and Glenridge Child Care Centers served as model employer-sponsored child care facilities 
and hosted visits by private, state, and local government officials interested in establishing their own facilities. A State 
Department of Education School-Community Center Program grant helped to keep schools open after hours weekdays 
and on weekends to benefit community children. 

Park Police monitored the safety of the park system and reached out to the community by offering a mentoring program 
and Drug Awareness Resistance Education for youth, Cops Camp for Kids, and a civilian volunteer police academy 
for volunteers and community leaders. Through the use ofCOPSMORE grant funds, mobile computers now operate 
in police cruisers to give officers in the field quicker access to information and enable them to spend more time working 
with the public. 

The Maintenance and Development Division supported activities and development countywide through skilled trades, 
horticulture and forestry applications, and exhibit and signage development. Continuing use of the Vehicle Maintenance 
System monitored vehicle records to improve fleet effectiveness and air quality. The Department's first Recycling 
EXPO was held at The Show Place Arena to highlight creative ways to recycle numerous items. A series ofHaz.ardous 
Waste Collection opportunities was also co-sponsored, encouraging residents to safely dispose of items such as oil­
based paints, fuel, and pesticides. 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT: Community Planning staff initiated or continued work on master plans, sector plans 
and sectional map amendment (SMA) revisions, and specialized studies. Staff began a sector plan and SMA for the 
US 1 corridor in College Park and will publish the preliminary plan and SMA in the fall. The Greenbelt Metro Area 
Preliminary Plan and Sectional Map Amendment was completed and published. The District Council approved the 
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Town of Brentwood Mixed-Use Town Center Zone Development Plans & Design Guidelines and enacted the M-U-TC 
Zone for the Brentwood town center area. The Planning Board adopted the Addison Road Metro Town Center Sector 
Plan and SMA, now under consideration by the District Council. The Heights Master Plan was adopted and the SMA 
was endorsed; proposed amendments are subject to a second public hearing. Staff is editing the final draft of the 
Anacostia Trails Heritage Area Management Plan. For the Airport Regulations project, staff researched approaches 
and strategies for regulating development in airport environments, and a consultant will assess risk and define standards. 

The Countywide Planning Section completed work with Commission 2000 to develop the County's first Biennial 
Growth Policy Plan. This plan represents a comprehensive smart growth initiative that utiliz.es a system of growth tiers, 
corridors, and centers to guide future land use and development in the County. The plan lays the foundation for an 
amendment to the County's General Plan. 

Planning and Preservation Section staff continued its support to the Historic Preservation Commission, evaluating 
historic properties, preparing National Register nominations, reviewing historic area work permits and tax credit 
applications, and responding to development referrals. Staff completed historic survey work in Riverdale Park which 
may lead to a potential local historic district. 

Neighborhood Revitaliz.ation staff continued to provide organizational support and technical assistance to community 
groups as part of ongoing community building work. Staff assisted many of these organizations in preparing grant 
applications. Staff applied for approximately $405,129 in grants and received $269,295. A successful application to 
the State resulted in creating an additional Enterprise Zone in the County. As part of a multi-agency collaboration, a 
Model Block Empowerment program began in Palmer Park to encourage homeowners to undertake comprehensive 
community improvements. To date, more than 200 homes have applied for grants and loans for home improvement 
projects. In addition, many residents have also attended some of the associated programs which range from parenting 
classes to job assistance. Staff presented an overview of this successful program at the American Planning 
Association's annual conference in April in New York. In March, staff moved to the County's new Redevelopment 
Authority offices in the Largo Government Center. Implementation work continued on the Suitland Manor 
redevelopment plan, and staff gained an additional $3 million in State funding for this project. In June, the 
Redevelopment Authority launched a grant program to provide support for communities to undertake neighborhood 
physical improvements. Staff is also developing a vacant housing initiative to purchase HUD-owned homes and work 
with local nonprofits to renovate the homes and sell them to low- and moderate-income home buyers. 

The Development Review Division conducted timely review and analysis of approximately 699 applications, including 
zoning map amendments, special exceptions, conceptual and detailed site plans, and preliminary and final plats of 
subdivision. Permit Review staff reviewed approximately 15,629 permit applications, including 12,803 building 
permits, for compliance with appropriate codes and approval conditions. The Information Section provided various 
public information, street naming, and property address services. 

Transportation Planning staff continued to support the US 301 Implementation Task Force's Corridor Preservation 
Subcommittee and Demonstration Projects, the Capital Beltway Major Investment Study for the "Purple Line," the 
US 1 and MD 210 Project Planning Study. Staff also provided support for the planning and implementation of new 
bike and trail projects, evaluated four land use scenarios for Commission 2000, evaluated land use/transportation 
scenarios for two Master Plans, and prepared or reviewed traffic impact studies for 69 development applications. 

The Environmental Planning Section prepared a grant application for the FY 2001 State Rural Legacy Program, 
requesting $5. 7 million for the County to protect 1,100 acres of farms, forest and open space through the purchase of 
land and easements. The Fiscal Year 1999 Forest Conservation Annual Report was prepared in accordance with the 
State Forest Conservation Act. Staff prepared three Environmental Impact Reports for sand and gravel mining special 
exceptions and two Reports analyzing the rubble landfill capacity in Prince George's County. 
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Data Systems completed the conversion of our corporate databases to Oracle and successfully met the Y2K challenge. 
The Section coordinated a Department-wide PC distribution, completed the network upgrade, created automated 
purchasing and contract monitoring applications, and coordinated the installation of the new Point of Sale software at 
the Information Counter. 

The GIS Section converted the Property layer and the Zoning layer into seamless databases and entered the Property 
layer into Spatial Data Engine (SOE) environment and continued maintaining and updating other GIS layers. It 
developed 16 new countywide layers. Staff completed preparations for acquiring Year 2000 orthophotography and 
planimetric update layers covering the entire County and for web-site development. In addition, Mapmaker application 
programs are now complete. The Section also provided a variety of maps and digital data to Department staff and other 
customers. 

An element of the Department's restructuring included the creation of a new division - the Information Center. The 
Center includes the research, zoning and information counter, publications and graphics, and office services units, and 
a new public information and marketing component. Over the year the Research Section updated the County Housing 
Inventory and the associated estimates of households and population by Planning Areas and Planning Area Zones, and 
conducted a nationwide survey among selected planning agencies to elicit best practices to further meaningful service 
delivery. The information counter serviced approximately 550 customers weekly, providing zoning information, maps, 
plats, topographic maps, development studies, and other publications, including area and master plans. The Center also 
had primary responsibility for the Department's website which can be accessed at www.mncppc.org. 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PARK AND PLANNING 

Plannin& for Future Transportation Infrastructure: Finding workable solutions to the County's transportation 
challenges is the Planning Board's highest priority. Launching a major new consensus-building initiative, the Board 
appointed a highly-regarded Transportation Policy Report Task Force to work on solutions. At the Board's direction, 
the Department began working on a network of transportation improvements to address concerns that currently planned 
transportation facilities will not satisfactorily accommodate future growth. Involving both significant public outreach 
and analytical support, this work will evaluate alternative land uses and various transportation policies to reach a future 
that enhances the quality of life in our existing communities. 

Expandin& Protection for Open Space Resources of County-wide Significance: Legacy Open Space is a bold, new 
initiative that has identified irreplaceable and unprotected natural and cultural features in Montgomery County beyond 
the current park system. The County Council approved $33 million in County funds, $3 million in Commission funds, 
and $9 million in state, federal and private funding over the next six years to protect properties through easement or 
acquisition. The Planning Board is currently preparing a master plan to establish Legacy as a long-term program, 
planning for funding priorities over the l O years of the program. 

Planninz for Metro Station Areas: Implementation of strategies for the Silver Spring and Friendship Heights Metro 
Station areas continued. In the Silver Spring area, final planning was completed for the headquarters of Discovery 
Communications, a new transit center, and a major retail center. In Friendship Heights, initial planning was completed 
for a major retail center, additional housing, hotel and office space. 

Strate&ies for Maintainin& and Supportin& Older Communities: Recently proposed master plans for the North and 
West Silver Spring, East Silver Spring, and Takoma Park areas developed innovative strategies to maintain and support 
older communities. These strategies included establishing flexible regulatory standards to encourage improvement of 
existing neighborhood commercial centers, improving pedestrian and bicycle connections throughout existing 
communities, and reducing the impact of major highways on existing residential and commercial areas through 
community design. 
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Protectin1 Rural Communities: Innovative modifications to existing regulations to assist in the protection of rural 
communities were prepared for review by the County Council. These modifications included creating innovative road 
standards for use in rural developments, providing cluster development options, and permitting more flexible septic 
requirements. 

Focusin1 on the Environment: As the lead agency for the Forest Conservation Ordinance, the Department 
recommended amendments to existing law to ensure the intent of the law is carried out and that unnecessary regulatory 
submissions are eliminated. Increasing the survival rate of reforested areas and retaining existing forests are principal 
areas of the law needing revision. Each year, the forest conservation program is responsible for planting trees on 600 
acres, and the Park system grows native trees for reforestation projects along streams. Staff is participating in the 
Forest Preservation Task Force responsible for preparing a Forest Preservation Strategy Report for the County. 
Throughout the park system, a major campaign is underway to upgrade maintenance yards to meet new environmental 
regulations. 

Geo1raphic Information System (GIS): The GIS Team completed the development of the digital street address layer 
and is now maintaining it as part of the regular property update process. The Department is continuing its work in 
developing a comprehensive parks GIS layer. Currently the GIS Team is assisting with the collection and conversion 
of the County's trail system into the GIS. 

Economy Update: In April, the Department presented the annual update C'f the economy study to the County Council, 
which again showed an increasingly healthy economy. Updates provide valuable input for budget considerations and 
identify changes to trends that affect the County's future. This year's update also reviewed labor force trends and 
indicators of how County residents have been affected by the current economy. 

Streamlinin1 the Development Approval Process: A new development review tracking and information system will 
significantly improve the tracking and monitoring of development applications, eliminating redundant data entry 
required for the older, stand-alone systems. The new integrated system will provide more accurate and timely reports 
on the development review processes. Other benefits of the system will be improved interagency coordination and 
integration with GIS and other systems. Staff works closely with the area's building industry association to make 
additional improvements to the development approval process. 

Parks' Capital Improvements Pro1ram: Significant accomplishments have included: completing and dedicating 
Calverton-Galway and McKnew Local Parks, New Hampshire Estates and General Getty Neighborhood Parks, 
Glenmont Greenway, Hadley's Playground at Falls Road Community Park, and the Shirley Povich Baseball Field and 
expanded ice rink in Cabin John Regional Park. Additional highlights include reconstructing l O playgrounds, six tennis 
courts, four athletic fields and four pedestrian bridges in Northwest Stream Valley Park. Construction continues on 
Needwood Golf Course's Maintenance Facility, WheatonRegional's new ice rink, Ovid Hazen Wells Recreational Park, 
Phase I of South Germantown and Ridge Road Recreational Parks, Nike and Stonehedge Local Parks. 

Public-Private Partnerships: The highly successful public-private partnership with the Maryland Soccer Foundation 
will result in the opening of the South Germantown Recreational Park on October 6, 2000, less than two years from 
the time the Master Plan was amended. The Park will open with 19 championship, regulation-size fields in play. Named 
the Discovery Sports Center, the indoor arena will feature two playing surfaces and will offer indoor soccer, basketball, 
lacrosse, rollerblading, and volleyball when completed in the fall of 2000. Central Park and non-soccer portions of the 
Park are expected to open in spring 2001, and the indoor aquatic and tennis/fitness centers should be open in late 
December 2002. South Germantown has recently been named as the best park and recreational facility in counties with 
more than 500,000 population by the National Association of County Parks and Recreation Officials. 
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Land Acquisition: Parkland acquisitions totaled more than 850 acres during fiscal year 2000, bringing the total 
managed in the park system to more than 30,000 acres. Properties acquired included land in the Upper Paint Branch, 
Long Branch, Northwest Branch, and Little Seneca Stream Valley Parks as well as land in South Germantown and 
Fairland Recreational Parks. Two new parks included: 15.4 acres for open space in Sandy Spring and 382.62 acres 
donated to the park system by Hennen Greenberg for an equestrian center at Woodstock Special Park. Added to 
Woodstock Special Park during the year was the ''bargain sale" of353.62 acres from William M. Rickman. 

Brookside Gardens: Two Awards of Distinction were received from the Landscape Contractors' Association for the 
annual Garden of Lights show which attracted more than 32,000 visitors, and for the Romance of the Orchid show. 
Brookside Gardens also received a Maryland 2000 grant to install a Maryland Native Plant Garden, and a $28,000 
donation from the Friends of Brookside Gardens to fund a gardener intern program. 

Volunteers: Last year the Department documented 4,300 volunteers contributing 50,000 hours of service to our 
programs and events. Launched this year, the Weed Warrior program trains volunteers to help control invasive plants 
in parks. USA Today honored the Department as a "Make A Difference Day" award winner. 

Parks Safety: The Park Police Division's technology program was featured in Community Policing Exchange (funded 
by the United States Department of Justice). Photos published with the article featured an officer using his patrol car 
computer and a dispatcher on duty in the Communications Center. The District of Columbia's Federal Bar Association 
honored a Special Services Section Sergeant at the Association's 10th Annual Salute to Law Enforcement for his crime 
prevention activities and outstanding work in coordinating sensitive special events involving large crowds. Chief 
Eliz.abeth Kreiter was one of several U.S. women law enforcement executives honored at the National Center for 
Women and Policing's "Breaking the Glass Ceiling" Awards Ceremony in Baltimore. The Division's mounted unit 
assisted the U.S. Parle Police during public demonstrations at the Washington, D.C., meeting of the World Ban1c and 
International Monetary Fund. 

Ballfield Hi&hli&hts: To help meet the growing demand for ballfields, the Department's Ballfield program has 
completed the lighting of four park fields, and the major renovation of four park fields and one closed school field, 
resulting in an increase of nine new ballfields during the fiscal year. The program has also identified more than 20 
additional practice areas and has provided them with portable soccer goals. 

Park Forum 2000: In June 2000, the Prince George's County Department of Parks and Recreation and the 
Montgomery County Department of Park and Planning hosted the Special Park Districts Forum. This Forum included 
representatives from Special Park Districts across the country and from as far away as British Columbia, Japan and 
Brazil. Representatives visited the new facilities at South Germantown Recreational Park (SoccerPlex), and the new 
ice rink and baseball field (Povich Field) in Cabin John Regional Park. In addition, other tours visited the nature centers 
at Meadowside and Black Hill. An evening at Brookside Gardens concluded the Montgomery County festivities with 
tours of the gardens and butterfly exhibit, dinner under a tent, and a laser light show. 

CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

DEPARTMENTOFHUMANRESOURCESANDMANAGEMENT: UndertheleadershipoftheCommission's 
Executive Director, the Department of Human Resources and Management (DHRM) provides quality administrative, 
managerial and human resources services to the public and Commission. Supported by a team structure to enhance 
service quality and increase productivity, the Department is organized into two major divisions: Corporate Management 
and Human Resources. Highlighting Fiscal Year 2000, the Department successfully negotiated a new three-year 
collective bargaining agreement with the Municipal and County Government Employees Organization, Local 1994 
UFCW, which represents over 600 employees in the Service/Labor, Trades, and Office Bargaining Units. The 
Department coordinated an Organizational Study of the Commission (Prince George's County portion). It also initiated 
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the recommendations of the lnfonnation Technology Study by creating a new centralized IT unit for the Commission, 
housed within DHRM. Work began on developing Preferred Workplace Initiatives including continued implementation 
of the Diversity Program. Additional major accomplishments include the Commission-wide training on Managing for 
Results System for developing outcome based perfonnance measures, a parks costing project (Montgomery County 
portion), and the staged conversion of the weekly payroll system to solely bi-weekly for efficiency. 

Other accomplishments include Commission-wide training on ADA compliance and preventing sexual harassment. A 
very successful employment program for people with disabilities was expanded. Updating of Administrative Practices 
and Procedures continued with the adoption of a revised Training Assistance Program and a new Preventing Violence 
in the Workplace Policy. The Department is participating in an interagency bid for HMO services and a new benefit 
offering for employees to acquire long-term care coverage. For the 13th consecutive year, the Department received, on 
behalf of the Commission, the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award from the Government Finance Officers' 
Association. 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT: The Department of Finance provides fiscal management and oversight of all 
Commission financial activities. Services of the Department include financial reporting and policy development; 
processing of payroll, disbursements and purchasing transactions; investment management; debt issuance; internal audit 
and information systems management. 

In fiscal year 2000, the Department provided fiscal oversight and procurement support for numerous projects, most 
notably the Prince George's County Sports and Learning Complex and the Soccerplex facility in Montgomery County, 
as well as the renovation and expansion of two ice rinks, and a variety of public/private partnership transactions. After 
completing testing for Year 2000 compliance of all major applications, the Department successfully prepared for Y2K 
without incident and had contingency plans in place. A Department representative continued to serve on an interagency 
committee studying the deregulation of electricity. Other areas of support and development include the installation of 
the Kronos time keeping system at additional Commission facilities; addition of telecommunications data to the Faser 
utility system; and project management assistance for point of sale systems at golf courses in both Montgomery and 
Prince George's Counties. 

New initiatives included a pilot Purchase Card program which is expected to generate efficiencies in both the 
procurement and payment functions; establishment of the Employees' Post Retirement Benefit Trust to pre-fund 
retirees' medical benefits; evaluation of work practices with an eye toward streamlining the procurement process in 
preparation for the implementation of the new purchasing system; and analysis and preparation for the implementation 
of GASB 34, the new financial reporting model which will require a complete revision of the Commission's financial 
statements. 

For the 27h consecutive year, the Commission received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada for the fiscal year 1999 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which was prepared by the Finance Department. 

OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL: The Office of General Counsel provides comprehensive legal services 
to the Commission, assisting in every facet of the Commission's work program. The scope of its work is as broad as 
that of the Commission itself, ranging from externally focused activities such as land use planning and regulation, 
stewardship and policing of park property, and, in Prince George's County only, recreation programs, to more internally 
directed corporate matters such as legislative liaison, contracting and procurement, risk management and employment. 
Legal Department attorneys represent the Commission in litigation and administrative proceedings, provide advice and 
counsel to Commissioners and staff, assist in implementing newly imposed legislative mandates, and participate in 
teams developing creative new solutions to the challenges facing the Commission. 
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Fiscal year 2000 was another successful year for the Office of the General Counsel. Much of its work concerned 
managing a number of complex negotiations involving the Soccerplex, Shirley Povich Field, fiber optic cable licenses 
in Montgomery County and the Sports and Learning Center, the U.S. Air Arena, and the Redevelopment Authority in 
Prince George's County. Litigation was also a major program activity, with significant victories in the defense of 
regulatory decisions of both Planning Boards, a controversial deer management program, and employment and civil 
rights claims. 

In other significant activities, the legislative program tracked over 78 bills pertaining to the Commission and also 
coordinated, prepared and/or presented position papers, drafted amendments and reported on developing legislative 
initiatives. The Legal Department intensified its oversight and evaluation of self insurance fund cases and claims, 
monitored the work of outside counsel, and assisted with a transition in certain benefit providers. Staff members were 
part of a team that developed and presented Sexual Harassment Training to all Commission employees. The attorneys 
of the Montgomery Regional Office also worked to streamline the review of development agreements, while the 
Department's lawyers from EOB and Prince George's County helped launch a major overhaul of the Commission's 
procurement and contracting systems. 

MERIT SYSTEM BOARD 

The Merit System Board is an impartial Board which provides recommendations and decisions regarding the Merit 
System of the Commission and is the highest level within the Commission for hearing appeals. During fiscal year 2000, 
the Board continued to maintain its case load on a current and timely basis. 

EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The Employees' Retirement System (ERS), administered by the 12 member Board of Trustees, in accordance with the 
Trust Agreement between the Board and the Commission, is a contributory defined benefit pension system with four 
plans, qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 40I(a). The administrative operations are the responsibility 
of the ERS Staff and Board-appointed Administrator, who reports directly to the Chairman of the Board of Trustees. 

ERS Trust Fund assets closed the year with a fair market value in excess of $480 million. The fiscal year 2000 
annualiz.ed rate of return on investments was approximately 7 .9%. The Board of Trustees' actions for the year included 
receipt of the Government Finance Officers Association's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting for the ERS' Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; continued comprehensive communications programs 
for all members regarding the System, including publishing the System's sixth summary annual report; and, conducting 
concentrated worksite, and full day "Fitting the Pieces Together" retirement planning workshops for participants. 
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• PART IIA • 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

General Purpose Financial Statements 

Walkers and cyclists share the trail at Lake Artemesia. 
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2001 M Street, N.W 
Washington, D.C. 20036 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission: 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements (identified as Exhibits 1 through 6 in 
the accompanying Table of Contents) and the combining, individual fund and account and account group 
financial statements and schedules (identified as Exhibit A-1 through G-3 in the accompanying Table of 
Contents) of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the Commission), as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2000. These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the 
Commission's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and 
schedules based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Commission's Employees' 
Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, which represents 88 percent of the total assets of the Trust and 
Agency Funds and 100% of the assets and additions to plan net assets in the Pension Trust Fund. Those 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on 
the financia l statements and schedules, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Commission's 
Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and schedules are free of material 
misstatement. The financial statements of the Commission's Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust 
Fund were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and schedules. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement and schedule presentation. We believe that our audit and the 
report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the general purpose financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission as of June 30, 2000, and the results of its 
operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the combining, individual 
fund and account, and account group financial statements and schedules referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds, accounts and account groups of The 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission as of June 30, 2000, and the results of operations 
of such funds and accounts and the cash flows of its proprietary funds for the year then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated September 21, 2000, 
on our consideration of the Commission's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of law, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and should be read in conjunction 
with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The data included in the Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been audited by us and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on such data. 

September 21, 2000 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
IIXKIIIIT I C--..--· ALLFUNDTYPBS AND AIXOUNTOllOUPS ,_:,o.:lOOO 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT2 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Fiduciary Totals 

Fund (Memorandum Only) 

Governmental Fund Ty12es Ty12es Year Ended 

Debt Capital Expendable June 30, June 30, 

General Service Projects Trust 2000 1999 

Revenues: 

Property T a,ces $ 164,002,057 $ 2,086,723 $ ••• $ •.. $ 166,088,780 $ 161 ,579,148 

Intergovernmental 1,248,394 19,207,080 7,063 20,462,537 16,312,202 

Charges for Services 9,354,844 4,246,255 13,601,099 13,240,506 

Interest 4,478,057 1,087,758 1,479,143 7,044,958 7,179,460 

Investment Earnings 542,021 542,021 

Miscellaneous 676,260 1,036.152 1,106,122 2,818,534 3 747 441 

Total Revenues 179,759,612 2,086,723 21 ,330,990 7,380,604 210,557,929 202,058,757 

Expenditures: 

Current -

General Government 10,787,642 10,787,642 10,930,626 

County Planning and Zoning 26,771,563 26,771,563 27,353,307 

Park Operation and Maintenance 86,674,082 86,674,082 87,941,231 

Recreation Programs 29,668,637 29,668,637 29,191,944 

Miscellaneous Expendable Trust Funds 5,017,442 5,017,442 5,453,578 

Capital Outlay • Land Acquisition and Development 33,486,574 33,486,574 44,367,346 

Debt Service • 

Principal Retirement 7,745,000 7,745,000 6,975,000 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 8 174 547 8,174,547 8,198,017 

Total Expenditures 153,901,924 15,919,547 33,486,574 5,017,442 208,325,487 220,411 ,049 

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 25,857,688 (1 3,832.824) (12,155,584) 2,363,162 2,232,442 (18,352,292) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds 7,000,000 

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds 21,000,000 

Retirement of Debt· Bond Anticipation Notes (21,000,000) 

Operating Transfers In 1,087,758 14,889,352 5,589,434 1,156,528 22,723,072 21,899,306 

Operating Transfers Out (25,728,919) (1,056,528) (1 ,087,758) (195,000) (28,068,205) (28,055.323) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (24,641,161) 13,832.824 4,501 .676 961 .528 (5,345.133) 843 983 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources over 

(under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 1,216,527 (7,653,908) 3,324,690 (3,112,691) (17,508,309) 

Fund Balances, July I, as restated 56,406,382 30,090,740 58,157,795 144,654,917 162,163,226 

Resid~al Equity Transfer In 7,075.182 7,075.182 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ 57,622,909 $ . . • $ 22.436.832 $ 68.557.667 $ 148,617,408 $ 144.654.917 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 

Changes in Fund Balances· Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual • GENERAL FUND 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Budget Actual 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes $ 159,342,090 $ 164,002,057 

Intergovernmental 1,612,758 1,248,394 

Charges for Services 6,234,678 6,517,397 

Rentals and Concessions 2,927,057 2,837,447 

Interest 3,134,234 4,478,057 

Miscellaneous 377,921 676,260 

Total Revenues 173,628,738 179,759,612 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 

Current· 

General Government 11,194,270 11,029,361 

County Planning and Zoning 28,814,026 28,313,137 

Park Operation and Maintenance 89,703,931 89,168,764 

Recreation Programs 31,008,817 30,470,203 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 160,nt,044 158,981,465 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 

Expenditures/Encumbrances 12,907,694 20,778,147 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Operating Transfers In 1,500,000 1,087,758 

Operating Transfers Out (25,685,567} pS,728,919) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (24,185,567) (24,641,161) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

over (under) Expenditures/Encumbrances 

and Other Financing Uses - Budget Basis $ (11,277,873) (3,863,014) 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July I 48,079,465 

Fund Balances· Budget Basis, June 30 s 44,216,451 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Variance 

Favorable 

(!:!nfavorable} 

$ 4,659,967 

(364,364) 

282,719 

(89,610) 

1,343,823 

298,339 

6,130,874 

164,909 

500,889 

S3S,161 

538,614 

1,739,579 

7,870,453 

(412,242) 

(43,352) 

(455,594) 

$ 7414859 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT 4 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 

Retained Earnings - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Operating Revenues: 

Sales 

Charges for Services 

Rentals and Concessions 

Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 

Cost of Goods Sold 

Personal Services 

Supplies and Materials 

Other Services and Charges 

Depreciation 

Administrative Expenses 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 

Interest Income 

Interest Expense, Net of Amortization 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 

Operating Transfers In 

Total Operating Transfers 

Net Income (Loss) 

Add Depreciation Charged to Contributed Capital 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Retained Earnings 

Retained Earnings, July l 

Residual Equity Transfer (Out) 

s 

Proerietary Fund T;r~s 

Enterprise 

2,700,384 S 
10,347,828 

3,736,671 

16,784,883 

1,672,982 

8,281 ,064 

4,223,401 

6,267,960 

2,434,229 

1,804,307 

24,683,943 

(7,899,060) 

1,072,749 

(804,879) 

267,870 

(7,631 ,190) 

5,345, 133 

5,345,133 

(2,286,057) 

278,565 

(2,007,492) 

21,458,016 

Internal 

Service 

--- s 
32,360,375 

204,995 

32,565,370 

10,076,698 

262,320 

18,057,916 

1,534, 197 

29,931,131 

2,634,239 

1,580,995 

(225,758) 

1,355,237 

3,989,476 

3,989,476 

3,989,476 

24,573,981 

(7,075, 182) 

Totals 

(Memorandum Only) 

Year Ended 

June 30, 

2000 

2,700,384 S 

42,708,203 

3,736,671 

204,995 

49,350,253 

1,672,982 

18,357,762 

4,485,72 1 

24,325,876 

3,968,426 

1,804,307 

54,615,074 

(5,264,821) 

2,653,744 

(1,030,637) 

1,623,107 

(3,641 ,714) 

5,345,133 

5,345, 133 

1,703,419 

278,565 

1,981,984 

46,031,997 

(7,075,182) 

June 30, 

1999 

2,731,906 

42,538,239 

3,514,365 

107,800 

48,892,310 

1,541,300 

17,544,463 

2,327,319 

20,741,559 

3,217,885 

1,516,909 

46,889,435 

2,002,875 

2,090,263 

(850, l 11) 

1,240,152 

3,243,027 

6,156,017 

6,156,017 

9,399,044 

233,426 

9,632,470 

37,020,647 

(621 ,120) 

Retained Earnings, June 30 S 19,450,524 S 21,488,275 $ 40,938,799 $ 46,03 1,997 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

EXHIBIT 5 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

Prol!riet!!!}'. Fund Tl'.~S Year Ended 
Internal June 30, June 30, 

Enten!rise Service 2000 1999 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) $ (7,899,060) $ 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
2,634,239 $ (5,264,821) $ 2,002,875 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 2,434,229 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

1,534,197 3,968,426 3,217,885 

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (92,562) (1,708,416) (1 ,800,978) 26,259 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses (12,245) (12,245) 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds (841,890) (841,890) 1,452,587 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government (31, 174) (31,174) 89, 167 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost (165,495) (165,495) 64,640 
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other 71,533 71 ,533 (102,355) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 1,187,318 (40,740) 1,146,578 (189,621) 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable 719,327 719,327 684,106 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits (145,998) (181,693) (327,691) 88,114 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 35,768 (20,455) 15,313 44,227 
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable (10,706) (10,706) 53,202 
Increase (Decrease) in Estimate of Incurred but Unreported Claims (188,908) (188,908) (155,488) 
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 841,890 841 ,890 (1,452,587) 
Increase (Decrease) in Revenue Collected in Advance 73 483 73,483 18,054 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities {4,595,268) 2,787,910 {1!807,358) 518411065 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 5,345,133 5,345,133 6,156,017 
Residual Equity Transfer Out {7,075,182) {7,075,182) 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 5,345,133 {7,075,182) {1,730,049) 6,156,017 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (8, 118,122) (1,708,059) (9,826, I 8 I) (5,514,988) 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable (313,725) (1,489,646) (1,803,371) (1,176,162) 
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds (245,000) (245,000) (265,000) 
Interest Paid (772,816) (225,758) (998,574) (818,048) 
Proceeds from Financing - Notes Payable 2,800,000 
Proceeds from Financing - Revenue Notes 6,000,000 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities {9,449,663) {31423,463) {12,873,126) 1,025,802 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Investments 1,072,749 1,580,995 2,653,744 2,090,263 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 1,072,749 1,580,995 2,653,744 2,090,263 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,627,049) (6,129,740) (13,756,789) 15, 113,147 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I 18,294,271 32,804,200 51,098,471 35,985,324 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 s 10,667,222 $ 26,674,460 s 37,341 ,682 $ 51,098,471 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: 
In fiscal year 1999, fixed assets were transferred from the Mongomery Enterprise Fund to the General Fixed Asset Account Group. 
The net book value of fixed assets at the time of the residual equity transfer was $621,120. 

In fiscal year 2000, fixed assets with a historical cost of approximately S34, 145,000 and $2,094,000 were transferred from the General 
Fixed Asset Account Group to the Prince George's Enterprise Fund and the Prince George's Advance Land Acquisition Expendable 
Trust Fund , respectively, for the Sports and Leaming Complex. 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Statement of Plan Net Assets- PENSION TRUST FUND 

As of June 30, 2000 

ASSETS 

Cash and Short Tenn Investments 

Receivables: 
Plan Members 
Interest Receivable 

Total Receivables 

Investments at Fair Value: 
U.S. Government Obligations 
Domestic Corporate Bonds 
Common Stock 
Real Estate 

Total Investments 

Deposits and Other 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Investment Payable and Other 

With Comparative Amounts as of June 30, 1999 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS 
(A Schedule ofFunding Progress is 
presented in Note 11) 

$ 

$ 

Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets · PENSION TRUST FUND 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2000 

With Comparative Amounts for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 1999 

ADDITIONS: 

Contributions: 
Employer $ 
Plan Member 

Total Contributions 

Investment Income: 
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 
Interest 
Dividends 

Less: Investment Expense 
Net Investment Income 
Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Benefit Payments 
Refunds of Contributions 
Administrative Expenses 

Total Deductions 

Net Increase for the Year 
in Plan Net Assets 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS 
July I 
June 30 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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June 30, 
2000 

75 197 883 $ 

62,066 
2,064,314 
2,126,380 

120,987,154 
84,913,594 

276,694,743 

482,595,491 

18 627 

559,938,381 

79,584,378 

480 354 003 $ 

2,546,800 $ 
3,017 447 
5,564,247 

20,992,107 
14,250,539 
2,309,302 

37,551,948 
(4,177,239) 
33,374,709 
38,938,956 

10,328,432 
593,738 

1,012,935 
11,935,105 

27,003,851 

453,350,152 
480 354 003 $ 

EXHIBIT6 

June 30, 
1999 

102,851,740 

148,882 
I 910 808 
2,059,690 

117,144,653 
75,866,877 

251,467,841 
161678 

444 641 049 

140 386 

549,692,865 

96,342,713 

453,350,152 

2,971,972 
2,868,518 
5,840,490 

18,516,906 
13,580,212 
2,687,249 

34,784,367 
(4,131 ,860) 
30,652,507 
36 492 997 

9,511,899 
295,832 
761 719 

10,569,450 

25,923,547 

427,426,605 
453,350,152 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2000 

(1) - THE COMMISSION AND ITS SERVICES 

(A) Back&found 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the "Commission") is a body corporate of the 
State of Maryland established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The Commission is a bi-county 
agency. It is empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in the defined 
Metropolitan District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties and to prepare and administer a general 
plan for the physical development of a defined Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also 
conducts the recreation program for Prince George's County. 1be express powers of the Commission are 
provided in Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland. As a body corporate of the State of Maryland, the 
Commission is not generally subject to local county legislation such as the Tax Reform Initiative by 
Marylanders ("TRIM") Prince George's County Charter Amendment originally enacted in November 1978. 

The major source of funding for the Commission's primary services are five property taxes levied on an 
individual County basis: Montgomery County administration tax - general administration and planning; 
Montgomery County park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds; 
Prince George's County administration tax - general administration and planning; Prince George's County park 
tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds; and the Prince George's 
County recreation tax for the recreation program. Five separate accounts are maintained within the General 
Fund to account for the Commission's primary services. Revenues and expenditures that can be specifically 
identified with a County are recorded in the appropriate account of that County and those that apply to both 
Counties are allocated to the appropriate accounts. Other funds and accounts are maintained on a 
Commission-wide or on a separate County basis as necessary and appropriate. 

The provisions of Sections 2-113 and 7-107 of Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland require that the 
Commission publish an annual financial report and that its financial statements be audited by independent 
certified public accountants. The General Purpose Financial Statements have been presented on a 
Commission-wide basis to meet the financial reporting needs of the Commission and the requirements of 
Maryland law. 

(B) Principles Used in Determinin& the Scope of Entity r or Financial 
Reportin& Purposes 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), these financial statements present the 
government and its blended component unit, an entity for which the government is considered to be 
financially accountable. A blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, 
part of the government's operations and therefore data from this unit are combined with data of the 
primary government. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Employees' Retirement System are 
included as a trust fund in the accompanying financial statements and the System is the only such 
component unit of the Commission. 

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, the Financial 
Reporting Entity, the Commission represents a joint venture of Montgomery County and Prince George's 
County, reportable in their respective financial statements. The financial data of the Commission pertinent 
to Montgomery County and Prince George's County, excluding the Commission's Employees' Retirement 
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System, the Retiree Insurance 115 Expendable Trust Fund, and the Maryland State Retirement System 
(MSRS) Agency Fund are set forth on a County basis in Note 20. 

(2) - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIF.S 

The accounting policies of the Commission conform to GAAP, applicable to governmental units. 

The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

(A) Basis or Presentation - Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the Commission are organized on the basis of Funds and Account Groups, each of which 
is considered a separate accounting entity. The financial position and operations of each Fund are 
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise the Fund's assets, liabilities, 
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated 
to, and accounted for, in individual Funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be expended and 
the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various Funds are summarized by type, by 
County, and for the Commission in total in the financial statements within this report. 

The following Funds and Account Groups are used by the Commission. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Fund -The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. It is used to account 
for the tax revenues and other revenues which fund the Commission's general operations and to account 
for all other financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another Fund. The General 
Fund is further divided into accounts to report financial activity funded by dedicated tax levies as follows : 
Montgomery County Administration, Montgomery County Park, Prince George's County Administration, 
Prince George's County Park, and Prince George's County Recreation. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds) . 

PROPRIETARY F1JNDS 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in 
a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the Commission is that the costs of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges or where the Commission has decided that periodic determination of the results of 
operations is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or 
other purposes. A single Enterprise Fund is maintained for the numerous enterprise operations of each 
County. Relevant segment data for the Enterprise Funds are presented in Note 13. 

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of certain goods or 
services provided by one department to other departments of the Commission on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. There are six Internal Service Funds reported by the Commission: Montgomery County Capital 
Equipment Fund, Montgomery County Employee Benefits Fund, Montgomery County Risk Management 
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Fund, Prince George's County Executive Office Fund, Prince George's County Employee Benefits Fund, 
and Prince George's County Risk Management Fund. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Commission in a trustee capacity or as 
an agent for employees, individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. 
These include Expendable Trust, Pension Trust, and Agency Fund. Pension Trust Funds are accounted 
for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds since capital maintenance is critical. Expendable 
Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Agency Funds are 
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

The Commission's Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Retiree Insurance 115 
Expendable Trust Fund, and the MSRS are not maintained on a separate County basis. 

ACCOUNT GROUPS 

General Fixed Assets Account Group -This Account Group is used to account for all fixed assets of the 
Commission, other than those accounted for in the proprietary and fiduciary funds. 

General Lone-Term Obli1:3tions Account Group - This Account Group is used to account for all 
long-term obligations of the Commission, except obligations accounted for in the proprietary funds. 

(B) Basis of Accountine 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 
All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a current financial resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are 
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these Funds present increases (i.e., revenues and 
other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation 
of these Funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., total net assets) is segregated into 
contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present 
increases (e.g ., revenues) and decreases (e.g ., expenses) in total net assets. The proprietary funds are 
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when incurred. The accounts of the Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust 
Fund are also maintained on the accrual basis. 

The governmental, expendable trust and agency funds are maintained on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this method of accounting, revenues are recorded in the accounting period in which 
they become both available and measurable. Revenues from taxes are recognized when they have been 
levied, are due on or before June 30 and collection is expected within 30 days thereafter. Proceeds from 
the sale of general obligation bonds/notes are recorded as "Other Financing Sources." Expenditures are 
generally recorded as the liabilities are incurred. The exceptions to this general rule are that principal and 
interest on general long-term debt are considered expenditures when due, and accumulated unpaid annual 
and compensatory leave not expected to be taken within 60 days after the year-end is reported in the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group and not reported as current expenditures. 
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GASB Statement 20 allows governments to choose not to implement, in proprietary fund types, 
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989 
(provided that this is applied on a consistent basis) or to continue to follow F ASB standards for these fund 
types. Effective July 1, 1999, the Com.mission has elected to apply GASB pronouncements as well as 
F ASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with 
or contradict GASB pronouncements. This change in accounting principle had no impact on previously 
reported fund equity or current year results of operations. 

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement 34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis for State and Local Governments." This statement will have significant impact on the 
financial reporting presentation of the Commission's financial statement with the inclusion of the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis Section and the reformatting of the basic financial statements. The 
Com.mission will be determining the impact of this statement on the financial statements in fiscal year 
2001. The Commission will implement this statement for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002. 

(C) Budgets and Budgetary Acoounting 

The following procedures are used in establishing the annual budget. 

o On or before January 15, the Commission submits to the County Executive of each County 
a proposed annual budget for the respective accounts of the General Fund (including park 
debt service), and a budget plan for the respective Enterprise Funds and Internal Service 
Funds. The Capital Projects Funds' budgets and six-year expenditure plans are submitted 
to the County Executive of Prince George's County prior to each November 1 and to the 
County Executive of Montgomery County prior to November 1 of each odd-numbered year. 
These budgets and plans include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

o The budgets and plans are transmitted by each County Executive with recommendations to 
the respective County Council. The County Councils conduct public hearings on the 
budgets and plans, and the budgets and plans are legally adopted prior to July 1. 

o The legal level of budgetary control is the department or function for the Administration 
Accounts and the Account level for the Montgomery County Park Account, Prince George's 
County Park Account, and Prince George's County Recreation Account. The Commission's 
expenditures may not exceed the total approved budget for each of the General Fund 
Accounts without prior approval by the respective County Council, except where grant 
funds received with the knowledge and approval of the respective County constitute an 
automatic budget amendment, thereby increasing the appropriations. Management is 
authorized to transfer budget appropriations of up to 10 % within the respective General 
Fund Accounts . 

o General Fund unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. Capital project 
appropriations do not lapse until the project is completed. The budget plans for the 
proprietary funds serve as a guide to the Commission and not as legally binding limitations. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the General Fund. The 
budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP except that encumbrances are 
treated as expenditures. During fiscal year 2000, there were no supplemental appropriations for the 
General Fund, and the Capital Projects Funds appropriations increased by $6,397,000. 
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The actual expenditures in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual are presented on a basis 
consistent with The Mazyland-National Capital Park and Plannine Commission Adopted Annual Budeet. 
All expenditures made during fiscal year 2000 were within the legal limitations pertinent to the 
Commission. 

(D) Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded when executed, is employed in the governmental funds for budgetary 
reporting purposes. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance 
since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities under GAAP. 

(E) Pooled Cash and Investments 

The cash and investments of all Funds are combined into a common pool to maintain investment flexibility 
and maximize earnings. The Commission's Finance Department manages the pool. Investment earnings 
are allocated to participating Funds based upon their average monthly equity in pooled cash balances. 
Investments, except those of the Pension Trust and the Retiree Insurance 115 Trust Fund as listed below, 
are stated at cost plus accrued interest, adjusted for amortization of premiums and discounts, which 
approximates fair value. The Pension Trust and the Retiree Insurance 115 Expendable Trust Fund 
investments are stated at fair value. 

(F) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market for proprietary funds. 

(G) Advances to Other Funds 

Long-term interfund advances at June 30, 2000, consist of $3,829,363 of land acquired by the Prince 
George's County Advance Land Acquisition Fund that is being used for park purposes in the Enterprise 
Fund. The advances are recorded as noncurrent receivables/payables in the respective Funds. 

(H) General Fixed Assets 

General fixed assets have been acquired primarily for parks and recreational facilities. Assets purchased 
or constructed are recorded as expenditures in the appropriate governmental fund types and capitalized at 
cost in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair market 
value at the time received. Normal repair and maintenance costs are reported as expenditures when 
incurred. No depreciation of general fixed assets has been recorded. See Note 9 . 

(I) Property, Plant and Eguipment - Proprietary Funds 

Property, plant and equipment purchased by the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds are stated at cost. 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method with useful lives of 10 to 40 years for buildings 
and improvements and 5 to 15 years for equipment. Fixed assets purchased or constructed with grant 
funds are recorded as contributed capital . Depreciation on these assets is recorded as a reduction of the 
contributed capital fund equity and an addition to retained earnings in the Enterprise funds. 
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(J) Fmployee Leave and Group Insurance 

Commission employees earn annual leave and sick leave in varying amounts, and are granted three days 
of personal leave annually. Some employees may also earn compensatory leave in lieu of overtime pay. 
Each pay cycle, an estimated amount for compensated absences expenditures is recorded for the General 
Fund employees and is recognized as expenditures in the General Fund and revenue in the Internal Service 
Employee Benefits Fund. As General Fund employees take annual and sick leave, this usage is charged 
to the Internal Service Employee Benefits Fund. The estimate is equal to the amount of annual and sick 
leave expected to be taken during the year, plus an amount to fund the long-term leave liability. The short­
term liability for leave expected to be taken within 60 days for compensated absences is recorded in the 
Internal Service Employee Benefits Fund for General Fund employees only. The accumulated leave 
balances in which employees have vested rights, but which are not expected to be used within 60 days after 
year-end, have been recorded in the General Long-Tenn Obligations Account Group (see Note 18). When 
annual and sick leave are used or taken by employees charged to proprietary funds, the expense is charged 
directly to the employees' cost center in the proprietary funds. Compensated absences for leave liabilities 
are charged directly to the proprietary funds' cost center to which the employee is assigned. 

Group insurance costs are recorded as expenditures in the General Fund and as revenue in the Employee 
Benefits Internal Service Fund. Payments for group insurance premiums are recorded as expenses in the 
Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund. 

(K) Def erred Compensation Plans 

The Commission offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. One plan, available to all career Commission employees, permits them to 
defer a portion of their salary to future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees 
or beneficiaries until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The Commission also 
offers a separate deferred compensation plan to its officers and to the staff of the Employees' Retirement 
System. 

In October 1997, the GASB issued Statement 32, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans," which establishes accounting and financial 
reporting standards for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plans. GASB Statement 
32 incorporates the amendment to the Internal Revenue Code Section 457 which requires that all assets 
and income of Section 457 deferred compensation plans be held in a trust for the exclusive benefit of 
participants and their beneficiaries. During fiscal year 1999, the Commission established a trust for the 
protection of the participants and the preservation of their assets under the Deferred Compensation Plan. 
The assets will not be diverted for any other purpose. In fiscal year 2000, it was determined that the 
Commission was not required to report the activities of the Deferred Compensation Plan. Consequently, 
the assets and liabilities of the fund have been removed from the Commission's financial statements. The 
fiscal year 1999 amounts reported in the Trust and Agency funds have been restated for this change. 

(L) Reserves 

Fund balances in the governmental funds are reserved for encumbrances, debt service and restricted assets 
to indicate the amounts are not available for other expenditures. Retained earnings in the Risk 
Management Internal Service Funds are reserved to pay future claims. Retained earnings in the Employee 
Benefits Internal Service Funds are reserved to fund the leave liability, flexible spending accounts, and 
certain future benefit obligations. 
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(M) Comparative Data/fotal Columns 

Comparative total data for 2000 have been presented in the accompanying financial statements to provide 
an understanding of changes in the Commission's financial position and operations. However, complete 
comparative data have not been presented since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex 
and difficult to read. Certain reclassifications have been made to 1999 to be consistent with 2000 
presentations. 

Total columns (memorandum only) in the General Purpose Financial Statements are presented to facilitate 
financial analysis and are not intended to present financial information in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles or on a consolidated basis. 

(N) Statement or Cash Flows 

The Commission uses cash management pools, which allow the proprietary funds to withdraw funds at any 
time without prior notice or penalty. For Statement of Cash Flow purposes, the Commission has defined 
cash equivalents as Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments for proprietary funds. 

(3) - CASH AND INVFSI'MENTS 

The Commission's deposits and investments as of June 30, 2000, totaled $710,064,085, presented in the 
combined balance sheet as the sum of "Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments"and "Cash and Marketable 
Securities," of which $706,316,400 was held and managed in three separate pools: the Commission's pool 
of deposits and investments, the Pension Trust Fund investments, and the Retiree Insurance 115 
Expendable Trust Fund. The remaining balance is composed of $1,018,474 Cash Reserved for Debt 
Service, $2,454,414 Cash Reserved for Construction, and $274,797 cash at various Commission facilities. 
The Commission's pool is available to all Funds, except for the Pension Trust Fund, and the Retiree 
Insurance 115 Expendable Trust Fund. The following is a schedule of total cash and investments. 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments: 
Cash in Banks 
Investments 
Reserved for Debt Service 
Reserved for Construction 
Other Cash 

Total Equity in Pooled Cash 
and Investments 

Cash and Marketable securities 

Total Cash and Investments 

Con1issfon 

Pension 
Trust 
F~ 

Retiree 
Insurance 115 

Expendable 
Trust F~ Total 

S (2,642,624) S 
143,205,566 

1,018,474 

-- - S S (2,642,624) 

2,454,414 
274.797 ----

19,182 143,224,738 
1,018,474 
2,454,414 

274,797 

144.310.617 ---- 19,182 144,329.799 

557,793,374 7,940.912 565,734.286 

$144,310.617 S557.793.374 S7,960.094 S710.064,085 

(A) Commission's Cash and Investments 

Cash in Banks - At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits was an overdraft of $2,642,624 and the 
bank balance was $2,230,860. Of the bank balance, $500,000 was covered by Federal depository 
insurance and the remainder was collateralized by $2,779,562 of securities held by a member of the 
Federal Reserve banking system in the name of the Commission and the Commission's bank. 

The Commission requires collateral for the pooled cash and investments of ten or more days duration to 
be held in the Commission's name by the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank. The 
Commission's policy was complied with throughout the year ended June 30, 2000. Collateral shall be 
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maintained in excess of FDIC insurance coverage for all Commission bank cash accounts, certificates of 
deposits and time deposits. 

The following cash reserves are fully collateralized: 

Cash Besened for Debt Service - At year-end, the Commission had $1,018,474 held in reserve to pay 
debt service for Little Bennett Golf Course Revenue Bonds, and for various equipment note financings. 

Cash Reserved for Construction - At year-end, the Commission had $2,454,414 held in reserve to pay 
construction costs for the Wheaton Ice Rink. 

Investments - The Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the Commission to invest in obligations for 
which the United States has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest, 
obligations that are issued by a Federal agency, repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, commercial 
paper, money market mutual funds, the State Treasurer's investment pool, certificates of deposits and 
municipal bonds and notes. 

Statutes require that investments comply with the guidelines relative to investment grade and/or ratings 
and Securities and Exchange Commission registrations where applicable. Also, statutes require that 
securities underlying repurchase agreements have a fair value of at least 102 % of the cost of the 
investment. If during the year, the fair value of securities underlying such investments falls below this 
required level , additional collateral is pledged or other collateral in the amount of the required level is 
substituted. All collateral must meet statutory requirements and is held in the Commission's name by a 
third-party custodian. 

There were no unusual variations in the mix or volume of the investment portfolio during the fiscal year. 
The Commission was in compliance with all applicable investment statutes throughout the fiscal year. 

(B) Pen.,ion Trust Fund and Retiree Insurance 115 Fund Investments 

Statutes do not restrict the investment activity of these two Funds. 

(C) Cate:ories of Investments 

Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Commission at year 
end. Category 1 includes investment securities that are insured, registered, or held by the Commission 
or its agent in the Commission's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investment 
securities held by the financial institution's trust department or agent in the Commission's name. Category 
3 includes uninsured and unregistered investment securities held by the counterparty or its trust department 
or agent but not in the Commission's name. The Commission did not hold Category 2 or 3 investments 
during the year ended June 30, 2000, and did not hold Category 2 or 3 investments at year-end. The 
Commission does not have the authority to enter into reverse repurchase agreements and did not do so 
during the year ended June 30, 2000. Mutual funds are not subject to categorization. Included within the 
Pension Trust Fund investments not subject to categorization are stock mutual funds, real estate trusts, 
U.S. government securities, and corporate stocks and bonds. 
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The Commission's investments at June 30, 2000 were as follows: 

Carrying Market 
~11tsi2rlt'. ] MIOU"I! ValY! 

Conaisaion Investaenta: 
Federal Fan1 Credit Banlcs S 52,485,053 S 52,485,053 S 52,485,053 
U.S. Treasury 2,758,800 2,758,800 2,758,800 
Banlcera• Acceptances 9,966,536 9,966,536 9,966,536 
Caaiercial Paper 4,998,231 4,998,231 4,998,231 
Federal National Mortgage Association 9,990,024 9,990,024 9,990,024 
Federal HOiie Loan Banlc 204,816 204,816 204,816 
Federal H0111e Loan Mortgage Corporation 5,265,122 5,265,122 5,265,122 
Repurchase Agreeaienta 48,122,350 48,122,350 48,122,350 
Total C~iasion Invest111ents 133,790,932 133,790,932 133,790,932 

Eq,loyeea• Retirement System (ERS) 
Investnients: 
Caaiercial Paper 30,936,613 30,936,613 30,936,613 
U.S. Governnent Securities 81,893,838 81,893,838 81 ,893,838 
Corporate aonds 83,290,746 83,290,746 83,290,746 
Connon Stocks 199,123,461 199,123,461 199,123,461 
Total ERS Investments ;}95 , 244, ~~§ 395,244,~5§ 395,244,~~§ 

Total Investaents Slbject 
To Categorization ~29,035,590 529,035,590 529,035,590 

Investments Not Slbject to 
Categorization: 

Pooled Investments Held in 
Mutual Funds 12,906,694 12,906,694 

Pension Trust Fund 162,548,716 162,548,716 
Retiree Insurance 115 

Expendable Trust Fund 7,940,912 7,940,912 
Conmission Total S529.035,590 S712,431,912 S712,431.912 

(4) - PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes are levied and collected for the special taxing districts of the Commission by Montgomery 
and Prince George's County Governments, as appropriate. Real property taxes are levied on July 1 each 
year and become delinquent on October 1, at which time interest and penalties commence. Effective July 
1, 1996, homeowners living in their properties may elect semiannual payment plans. Prior to fiscal year 
2001, semiannual taxpayers must pay one-half of the annual taxes by September 30 and the remaining on~ 
half plus a service charge by January 31 of the following year. Effective July 1, 2000, semiannual tax 
payment plans are automatic for homeowners living in their properties unless they request to remain on 
an annual payment plan. Under the new semiannual payment plan, one-half of the real property taxes are 
due by September 30 and the remaining one-half is due by December 31. Personal property and real 
property taxes levied for a fraction of a year are due when billed. Tax liens on real property are sold at 
public auction on the second Monday in June in Montgomery County and on the second Monday in May 
in Prince George's County for taxes that are delinquent. The Commission periodically reviews property 
tax assessments to ensure proper receipt of such taxes. From time to time, the Commission may determine 
that additional taxes are due or refunds are required. Only after such amounts are measurable will the 
Commission record the appropriate receivable or reserve for the entire amounts. 

The property tax revenues and rates of the Commission are not subject to any legislative limitations. 
However, such revenues are approved by the respective County Council when budgets are approved. 

(5) - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

The total "Due from Other Governments" at June 30, 2000, was $12,402,035 for the Commission 
($6,968,469 and $5,433,566 for Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, respectively). A summary 
of amounts due by source and nature of receivable is listed below. 
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U.S. Ar-, Corps of Engineers 
U.S. Departaent of the Interior 
U.S. Departaent of Justice 
U.S. Environaental Protection Agency 
U.S. Federal ENrge,,cy Mg11t. Asst . 
U.S. Federal Highway Adninfstration 
State of Maryland 
Montgaaery C°"'ty 
Other - WSSC 

Montg0111ery C°"'ty Totals 

U.S. Dept . Of Transportation 
U.S. Department of Justice 
State of Maryland 
Prince George's C°"'ty 
Montg0111ery C°"'ty 
Prince George's C°"'ty Totals 

C011111ission Totals 

s 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
General Capital Internal 

Fl.l'ld Projects Service 
Acc°"'ts Fl.l'lds Fl.l'lds 

12,737 
69,m 
10,606 
n,697 

22,027 

S 70,613 S 

27,549 
1,350,484 

1,293,966 3,822,040 31 ,138 

S1.486.810 
179.835 

S5.450,521 S 31,138 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
General Capital Internal 

Fl.l'ld Projects Service 
Acc°"'ts Fl.l'lds Fl.l'lds 

s --- s 664,335 s 
4,904 

10,674 4,365,081 
357,435 

31. 137 
s 373.013 S 5,029.416 S 31,137 

S1.859,823 S10.479.937 S 62,275 

(6) - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAY ABLES 

The following summarizes the individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2000. 

I nterfl.l'ld 
Rec:ejvables 

lnterfl.l'ld 
Payables 

Internal Service Fl.l'lds -
Montg0111ery C°"'ty Risk Manageaent 
Montsic-ry C°"'ty Capital Equipment Fl.l'ld 

Total 

(7) - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

S841,890 

S841.890 

s 
841.890 

s 841.890 

The changes in the Commission's contributed capital accounts for its proprietary funds were as follows: 

Begiming Balance, 
Contributed Capital 

Contributions 
Less : Depreciation Added Back 
Ending Balance, 
Contributed Capital 

Mont11omery 

S3,945,522 

S3.945.522 
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Enter12rise 

Prince Geor11e•s 

S26, 171,014 
34,144,589 

(278,565) 

S60.037.038 

Internal Service 

Montgomery 
Capital 

Total ~gyicment 

$30,116,536 S525, 128 
34,144,589 

(278.565) 

S63.982.560 S525.128 



(8) - DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES AND DEFICIT RETAINED EARNINGS FOR 
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

The Commission has designated $31,823,679 of unreserved fund balances in the General Fund at June 30, 
2000, to fund fiscal year 2001 operations and provide reserves for contingencies. 

Administration AccOU'lt 
Parle ACCOU'lt 
Recreation AccOU'lt 

Montg0111ery 
C9'l)ty 

S1 ,659,030 
2,859,100 

NIA 
S4.518.130 

Prince George's 
Coy,ty 

S 1,436,645 
23,104,251 
2.764.653 

S27 ,305. 549 

Total 

S 3,095,675 
25,963,351 
2.764.653 

S31,823.679 

The unreserved, undesignated fund balance as defined on a GAAP basis is $12,392,772 ($890,541 and 
$11,502,231 for Montgomery and Prince George's County, respectively). 

There were no deficits in retained earnings as of June 30, 2000. 

( 9) - FIXED ASSETS 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets is set forth below ($000's). 

Balance Balance 
General Fixed Assets July 1. 1999 Additions Deductions Transfers Jl.l'le 30. 2000 

Montaomery COUlty 
Land S119,001 S 1,519 s s --- S120,520 
Buildings and Iq,rovements 81,016 6,696 87,712 
Machinery and Equipment 8,152 816 (441) 8,527 
Construction in Progress 8.171 4.360 (6,69~) 5.835 

Total General Fixed Assets S216.340 S 6,695 s (441) s S222,594 

Prince Georae•s COUlty 
Land S 91,nO S 3,853 s s S 95,573 
Buildings and Iq,rovements 146,403 70 (34,145) 40,901 153,229 
Machinery and Equipment 22,309 2,085 cn6> 95 23,763 
Construction in Progress 41. 126 14.410 (40,996) 14.540 

Total General Fixed Assets S301.558 S20.418 SC34.871) s S287.105 
Conmission·wide Totals S517.898 S27.113 SC35.312) s S509,699 

The Commission is committed to $9,840,345 for construction contracts for work to be performed in 
subsequent years. The Commission's policy is to account for the construction of Prince George's 
Enterprise Fund assets in the Capital Projects fund until completed. Once completed, the assets are 
transferred and capitalized in the Prince George's Enterprise Fund. 

A summary of proprietary fund type fixed assets at June 30, 2000 follows. 

Montaomery COUlty 
Land 
Buildings 
Iq,rovements Other Than Buildings 
Mach inery and Equipment 
Construction in Progress 

Total 
Less·AccU11Jlated Depreciation 

Net 
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Enterprise 

S 7,791,328 
15,478,818 
2,862,648 
4,033,008 
4,516.525 

34,682,327 
(5,944.640) 

S 28,737.687 

s 

Internal 
Service 

102,469 

13,860,526 

13,962,995 
(8,406.776) 

S 5,556.219 



Prjnce Georae•s Ccx.rity 
Land 
Buildings 
l111proveaients Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

Total 
Les1·AccU1L1lated Depreciation 

Net 

Total Comaission Fixed Assets 
Less·Acclallated Depreciation 

Net 

(10) - WNG-TERM DEBT 

Enterprise 

S 7,779,131 
51,827,601 
9,889,313 
3.083.601 

n,579,646 
(9.80§.022) 

s 62.n1.624 

S107,261,973 
(15,752.662) 

S 91.509.311 

(A) General Lona-Term Obli1ation Account Group 

Internal 
Service 

S 748,497 
2,649,865 

70.382 
3,468,744 

<n4.186> 
S 2.744,558 

S 17,431,739 
(9.130.962) 

s 8.300.m 

The Commission is authorized to issue general obligation bonds for the acquisition of park land and the 
development of parks, designated as Park Acquisition and Development Bonds ("Park Bonds"); to provide 
resources for advance land acquisition for highways, schools and other public purposes, designated as 
Advance Land Acquisition General Obligation Bonds(" Advance Land Bonds"); and to refund both Park 
and Advance Land Bonds. The general obligation bonds are issued on the full faith and credit of the 
Commission and the County for which the bonds are issued. 

Mandatory taxes of 9 cents per $100 of assessed valuation in Montgomery County and at least 10 cents 
per $100 of assessed valuation in Prince George's County are required by Article 28 of the Annotated 
Code of Maryland to be levied in the Metropolitan District in the respective Counties for the payment of 
Park Bond debt service. In 2000,the actual debt service expenditures per $100 of assessed valuation for 
Park Bonds approximated 1.2 cents in Montgomery County and 6.9 cents in Prince George's County. The 
remainder of the proceeds of the mandatory taxes was used for operating and maintaining the park system 
of the respective Counties . 

The Advance Land Bonds are payable from limited annual ad valorem property taxes which are levied by 
the respective County on all property assessed for the purpose of County taxation. 

(B) Proprietary Funds 

The Commission is authorized to issue revenue bonds and notes to finance the cost of revenue producing 
facilities and to refund outstanding bonds. The revenue bonds and notes are not general obligations of the 
Commission or County for which they are issued and are payable solely from revenues generated from 
revenue producing facilities. 

Restricted investments related to the Commission's Montgomery County revenue notes and bonds are as 
follows: 

Debt Service Reserve Fll'ld 
Construction Fll'ld 

Total 

Little Bennett 
Golf Course 

S539,048 

S5391048 

Wheaton 
lee Rinlc 

s 
2.454.414 

S2.454.414 

The Commission is in compliance with all significant restrictive covenants related to revenue bonds and 
notes. 
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(C) Prior Period Defeasance or Debt 

In prior years, the Commission def eased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the proceeds 
of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for future debt service payments on the old debt. 
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the def eased debt are not included in the 
Commission's financial statements. As of June 30, 2000, $10,750,000 of Montgomery County and 
$37,010,000 of Prince George's County general obligation bonds, and $3,940,000 of Montgomery County 
revenue bonds are considered to be defeased. 

(D) Outstandin1 Debt 

General obligation bonds and notes, revenue bonds, net of a $384,756 deferred amount on the Little 
Bennett Golf Facilities Refunding Bond, and revenue notes payable at June 30, 2000, consist of the 
following individual issues (OOO's): 

Effective Final FY 2001 outstanding 
Interest Rate Maturity Serial Original at 

Series at Date of Sale Dated Date Pavrnent Issue JU'le 30, 2000 
Montgomer~ Count~ 
Park Acquisition and 
Developlll!f\t Bonds 
1990 Advance Refunding 6.7983 06-01·90 07-01·03 $ 580 $6,675 $ 2,275 
Series H-2 6.7983 06·01·90 07·01·10 300 7,500 300 
Series K-2 5.9212 05·01·92 07-01-12 250 6,000 4,250 
Series N-2 4.7561 12·.01 ·93 07·01·14 275 5,500 4,125 
Series Q-2 6.3609 11·15·94 11·01·14 200 5,000 1,000 
Series R·2 Advance Refunding 4.89n 12·01•95 07·01-14 90 8,700 8,385 
Series U·2 4.5346 07-30-98 08·01 · 18 210 7,000 6,790 

1,905 46,375 27, 125 
Advance land Acquisition 

Bonds of 1990 6.7983 06-01-90 07-01-10 200 5,000 200 
Bonds of 1994 6.3609 11-15-94 11-01 · 14 90 2,200 1,850 
Bonds of 1995 Advance 

Refunding 4.7707 12-01-95 07-01-10 40 3,345 3,205 
330 10,545 5,255 

Revenue Bonds and Notes 
little Bennett Golf Course 5.6350 11-20-97 10-01-07 255 4,291 3,845 

(net of deferred amou,t) 
Wheaton Ice Rink 6.0600 09-18-97 05-01-07 200 3,600 3,410 
Cabin John Ice Rink 5.1600 04·27·99 11·01·13 444 6,000 6,000 

$ 899 $13,891 $13,255 
County Total S3, 134 $70,811 s 45,635 
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Effective Final FY 2001 OJtstanding 
Interest Rate Maturity Serial Original at 

Series at Date of Sale Dated Date Payment Issue June 30. 2000 

Prince George's C01.nti 
Park Acquisition and 
Developaent Bonds, Notes 

1990 Advance Refunding 6.8867 06-01-90 07-01-06 $ 785 $ 12,390 $ 5,910 
Series J-2 6.8867 06-01-90 07-01-10 695 23,500 695 
Series L-2 5.9922 05-01-92 07-01-12 845 23,000 2,525 
Series M-2 5.1483 05-01-93 07-01-13 700 15,250 11,550 
Series P-2 4 .8382 12-01-93 07-01-14 700 14,500 10,500 
Series S-2 Advance 

Refunding 4.9787 12-01-95 07-01-12 210 30,025 23,535 
Series T-2 5.3913 01-01-97 01-15-17 1,000 33,000 30,000 
Series W-2 6.4000 06-25-98 07-01-12 420 7,325 6,920 
Series X-2 Refunding 5.0000 12-03-98 08-01-02 21.000 ~1.0QO 

5.355 179.990 112.635 
Advance Land Acquisition 

Bonds of 1990 6.8867 06-01-90 07-01-10 200 5,000 200 
Bonds of 1995 Advance 

Refunding 4.8991 12-01-95 07-01-10 ~ 3,300 3,170 
235 8,300 3,370 

C01.nty Total $5,590 $188,290 $116,005 
C011111ission Total sa,n4 $259.101 $161,640 

Distribution: 
General Long-Tenn Obligations Acc01.nt Group - Montgomery C01.nty S 32,380 

- Prince George's C01.nty 116.005 
Acc01.nt Group Total 148,385 

Proprietary Funds· Montgomery C01.nty (Revenue Bonds and Notes) 13,255 
Conmission Total $161,640 

The following is a summary of the general obligation bonds and notes and revenue bonds and notes 
payable transactions of the Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 ($000's). 

Montgomeri C01.nti Prince George's C01.nti Total 
Park Advance Proprietary Parle Advance 

Bonds & Land Revenue Bonds' Land 
...!!21!!.. Bonds Bonds, Notes Notes Bonds 

Bonds Payable at June 30, 1999 $28,985 $5.560 $13,658 $117,980 $3,605 

Debt Retired (1,860) (305) (435) (5,345) (235) 
Amortization of Deferred Amoult ~ 

$169,788 

(8,180) 
32 ---

Bonds Payable at J1.ne 30, 2000 $27,125 $5,255 $13,255 $112.635 $3.370 $161,640 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2000 including interest payments 
of $16,832,239 for Montgomery County ($10,256,443 for Park Bonds, $1,911,100 for Advance Land 
Bonds and $4,664,696 for Revenue Bonds and Notes) and $40,889,393 for Prince George's County 
($39,954,437 for Park Bonds & Notes and $934,956 for Advance Land Bonds) are as follows (SOOO's). 

Montgomeri C01.nti Prince George's C01.nti Total 
Parle Advance Proprietary Parle Advance 

Bonds' Land Revenue Bonds' Land 
Year ~ndi!lSI J111e 30 Notes Bonds Bonds, Notes Notes Bonds 

2001 S 3,254 $ 607 S 1,641 S 11,240 $ 400 S 17,142 
2002 3,285 680 1,621 11,371 484 17,441 
2003 3,156 659 1,600 31,583 463 37,461 
2004 3,126 632 1,571 10,441 441 16,211 
2005 2,535 606 1,552 10,149 420 15,262 

2006-2010 11,890 2,810 8,604 44,647 1,800 69,751 
2011-2015 7,991 1,1n 1,716 28,187 297 39,363 
2016-2020 _bill 4 971 7.115 

TOTAL $37,381 S 7.166 $18,305 $152,589 $4,305 $219,746 
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(11) - RETIREMENT ARRANGEMENTS 

(A) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
Plan Description 

The Commission contributes to The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Employees' 
Retirement System (the "System"), a single-employer defined benefit public employee retirement plan. 
Benefit provisions and obligations to contribute to the plans and all other requirements are established by 
a Trust Agreement between the Commission and the Board of Trustees of the System which has been 
periodically amended since the System was established July 1, 1972. Accounting and financial reporting 
for the system is performed by non-Commission employees who are employed directly by the System. 
The System's financial records are not maintained on a separate County basis. The System issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes its audited fmancial statements, a description of the four 
plans, and certain other supplementary information. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is 
available at the administrative offices of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
Employees' Retirement System, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100, Riverdale, Maryland 20737. 

Active plan members in Plan A are required to contribute 6% of their base pay. Plan B members 
contribute 3 % of their base pay up to the maximum Social Security Wage Base and 6 % in excess of the 
maximum Social Security Wage Base for the calendar year. Plan C and D members contribute 7 % of their 
base pay. 

Basis of Accountin& 

The System's fmancial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and 
employer contributions are recognized as revenues (additions to net assets) in the period in which employee 
services are performed. Both benefits and refunds paid are recognized as expenses (deductions from net 
assets) in the period in which employee services are performed. 

There are no outstanding long-term contract contributions to the plan as of the reporting date. 

Method Used to Value Investments 

Marketable securities are carried at fair value based on quotes from the active market. The System has 
invested in a mutual fund comprised of more than 300 international securities with Rowe Price-Fleming 
International, Inc., and two commingled trusts with Putnam Institutional Management, one of which has 
more than 100 international securities and the other having more than 100 domestic securities which each 
exceed 5 percent of net plan assets. 

Related Party Transactions 

The System did not hold securities (loans, notes, bonds or other instruments) of the Commission or related 
parties (Montgomery and Prince George's Counties) at June 30, 2000, or at any time during the year. 

Fundin& Status and Pro1ress 

The actuarial accrued liability at the valuation date shown on the Schedule of Funding Progress (see 
following page) is a measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected 
salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service 
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to date. The measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of the System on a going-concern 
basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make 
comparisons among employers. 

Actuarial Methods 

Actuarial Valuation of Assets: The actuarial value of assets calculates gains or losses on the basis of the 
actuarially assumed interest rate and recognizes one-third of the cumulative gains or losses not yet 
recognized. This year's asset value is based on the July 1, 1998, actuarial value rolled forward to July 
1, 1999. 

Actuarial Cost Method: As ofJuly 1, 1997, the Board of Trustees of the System approved a change in the 
cost method. The Entry Age Normal Cost method is used. Under this funding method, a level percent 
of employer cost is determined which, along with member contributions, will pay for projected benefits 
at retirement for a new entrant into the plan. The level percent developed is called the normal cost rate 
and the product of that rate and payroll is normal cost. The actuarial present value of benefits which have 
accrued in prior years is called the actuarial liability. The portion of the actuarial liability in excess of plan 
assets is funded according to a schedule which is intended to amortize such unfunded actuarial liability 
fully after a period of years. This is in addition to each year's employer normal cost. Under this cost 
method, actuarial gains and losses are reflected in the size of the unfunded actuarial liability. 

Amortization Method: The funding policy of the System is to meet long-term benefit promises through 
actuarially determined periodic contributions that remain approximately level from year to year as a 
percent of annual covered payroll. 

Closed Amortization Period: In accordance with actuarial recommendations, adopted by the Board of 
Trustees, the unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized by annual payments over a period ending 
January 1, 2016. 

Economic Assumptions: The actuarial accrued liability was estimated as part of an actuarial valuation 
performed as of July 1, 1999. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate 
of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7 % a year compounded annually, (b) projected 
salary increases of 6% a year, (c) cost of living increases in benefits after retirement assumed to be 3.75% 
a year, compounded annually, based on the Plan's provision for annual increases of 100% of the first 3% 
of change in the CPI-Urban Index for major U.S. cities plus half of the change in excess of 3 % , but no 
more than 5% in total, and (d) a rate of increase in Social Security Wage Base of 5.5%. All economic 
assumptions include an inflation component of 4.5%. 

The net assets in excess of the total actuarial accrued liability is $79,001,054 as of July 1, 1999. The net 
assets available for benefits at June 30, 2000, totaled $480,354,003. 

Trend Information 

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due. Trend information for three years is presented below and for six years within the System's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for June 30, 2000. For the three years ended June 30, 1998, 
1999 and 2000, the Commission's contributions to the System, which were all made in accordance with 
actuarially determined requirements, were 7 .5 % , 3. 9 % , and 3 .2 % respectively, of annual covered payroll . 
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The Commission's annual pension cost (APC) and net pension obligation (NPO) to the System are 
presented below: 

AIYlUlll Pension Cost CAPC) 
Percentage of APC Contributed 
Net Pension Obligation CNPO) 

TREND INFORMATION (000 1s) 
July 1. 1997 July 1. 1998 July 1. 1999 

SS,337 
100X 

S2,9n 
100X 

S2,547 
100X 

The Commission contributes 100% of the adjusted annual required contribution and has no NPO at year 
end. 

Reguired Supplementary Inf onnation 

Funding activity for the latest three years is summarized as follows: 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (000 1s) (Unaudited) 

Actuarial Valuation of Plan Assets 
Actuarial Accrued Liability 
Flrlded Ratio 
Actuarial Value of Assets in Excess of 
(Unflrlded) Actuarial Accrued Liability 

Arv,ual Covered Payroll 
Actuarial Value of Assets in Excess of 

(Unfunded) Actuarial Accrued Liability 
as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 

July 1, 
1997 

S311,854 
285,536 
109. 2X 

26,318 
71,102 

37.0X 

July 1, 
1998 

S363,632 
307,360 

118.3X 

56,272 
75,368 

74 . 7X 

Postretirement Benefits 

July 1, 
1999 

S407,073 
328,on 

124 . 1X 

79,001 
78,849 

100.2X 

In addition to the pension benefits provided by the System, the Commission itself provides postretirement 
health care benefits, in accordance with Commission approval, to all full-time and part-time career 
employees, directors appointed by Montgomery and Prince George's Planning Boards, Merit System Board 
Members, Commissioners and appointed officials who retire under a Commission Retirement Plan or the 
State of Maryland Retirement Plan and who have been insured under any Commission-sponsored group 
medical plan during the three years immediately preceding the date of retirement. Currently, 466 retirees 
meet those eligibility requirements. Continuance of medical, dental, and vision benefits requires a 
minimum of three years' participation in a Commission-sponsored plan or ability to prove similar coverage 
in another plan immediately prior to retirement. The Commission contributes 85 percent of the amount 
of medical, prescription drug, and dental insurance rates and 80 percent of vision benefit rates. The 
System contributes the same percentages for its full-time and part-time employees. 

Expenditures for postretirement health care benefits are recognized on the accrual basis as retirees' 
insurance costs are incurred. The Commission expensed $2,085,481 for the year ended June 30, 2000 for 
the retirees' benefits. 

On July 1, 1999, the Com.mission transferred $7,056,000 to a newly established 115 Trust account for the 
purpose of pre-funding a portion of retiree insurance costs in the future. The Commission executed a 
Discretionary Investment Management Agreement with Legg Mason Mutual Solutions as the Financial 
Advisor (Custodial Trustee) of the account. Per the Post-Retirement Insurance Benefits Program Trust 
Agreement I - Contributions, the Commission may elect to contribute additional amounts as deemed 
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necessary to meet its benefit obligations. The Commission is not required to make additional contributions 
unless obligated to do so by resolution. The 115 Trust is reported by the Commission as an expendable 
trust fund. 

Securities Lendin1 Transactions 

The System Board of Trustees policies authorize the lending of investment securities. These lending 
transactions are managed by The Northern Trust Company. There were no significant violations of legal 
or contractual provisions, or borrower or lending agent default losses known to the securities lending agent 

as of June 30, 2000. 

Securities are loaned against collateral that may include cash, U.S. government securities and irrevocable 
letters of credit. U.S. securities are loaned against collateral valued at 102% of the fair value of the 
securities plus any accrued interest. Non-U.S. securities are loaned against collateral valued at 105% of 
the fair value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Noncash collateral cannot be pledged or sold 
unless the borrower defaults. All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the 
borrower, although the average term of overall loans is 31 days. 

Due to the nature of the program's collateralization of U.S. fixed income securities loans at 102% plus 
accrued interest, we believe that there is no credit risk since the Commission owes the borrower more than 
the borrower owes the Commission. 

The two types of collateral loans are open and term. Open loans have no fixed time frame but are still one 
year or less in duration. Term loans have a fixed time frame set at the beginning of the loan. Cash open 
collateral is invested in a short-term investment pool, the Core Qualified Collateral Section, which has an 
average weighted maturity of 28 days as of this financial statement date. Guidelines for the Core-Qualified 
Collateral define eligible noncash collateral investments as obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government or its agencies or instrumentalities, and irrevocable letters of credit if issued by banks 
approved by the agent's Trust Credit Committee at the time of issuance. Cash open collateral may also 
be invested separately in term loans, in which case the investments match the loan term. These loans can 
be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower. 

As of June 30, 2000, any coupon payments for securities loaned have been paid; there are no pending or 
outstanding amounts. Securities lending earnings are credited to participating clients on approximately 
the fifteenth day of the following month. 

The trustee bank, The Northern Trust Company, is responsible for performing borrower and collateral 
investment credit analyses, obtaining adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable 
Department of Labor and Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council regulations concerning 
securities lending. Loss indemnification is provided in a situation in which securities are not returned due 
to the insolvency of a borrower and the trustee bank fails to fulfill its contractual responsibilities relating 
to the lending of those securities to that borrower. 

The fair value of securities on loan as of June 30, 2000 was $45,092,778, which was collateralized by 
$44,260,932 of cash and $1,736,229 of non-cash collateral. The securities lending gross earnings for the 
year ended June 30, 2000 were $2,361,696, while the borrower's rebate was $2,196,201 and the bank fees 
and commissions were $62,920, which resulted in a net addition of $102,575. 

Investments are classified as Category 1, because securities are held by the System's managers in the 
System's name. 
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(B) Social Security 

Commission employees, other than Park Police, participate in the Federal Social Security System for which 
the Commission contributed $6,866,620 for the year ended June 30, 2000. 

(C) Maryland State Retirement System lMSRS} 

Pension costs for certain employees/retirees who elected to remain in the MSRS was $78,849 for the year 
ended June 30, 2000. A total of 39 employees/retirees and beneficiaries are covered in the MSRS (vs. 
2,552 in the System described above). This amount includes the current service costs plus an amount 
sufficient to amortize the prior service cost over a 40-year period ending June 30, 2020. The Commission 
has established its State Retirement Trust Fund which has sufficient assets to fund all future MSRS costs. 

(12) - SELF INSURANCE 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commission is a 
participant in the Montgomery County Self-Insurance Program (the "Program") for the purpose of 
economic pooling of risks and resources. The Program provides the Commission with self-insurance 
administration for workers' compensation (Maryland state mandatory limits), comprehensive general 
liability, automobile liability, police professional liability, public officials liability, property and fire 
damage, boiler and machinery damage, data processing system breakdown and excess liability (up to 
$10,000,000). The Commission does not participate in risk-sharing with the other participants and is 
required to reimburse the full amount of any claims paid by the Program. The Commission has directly 
purchased additional liability and property loss coverage through commercial policies for claims arising 
out of real and personal property damage for losses over $100,000. The Commission also carries honesty 
bond coverage for its public officials and employees. The Commission did not pay any claims settlements 
in excess of insurance coverages for fiscal years 1998, 1999, and 2000, nor were any insurance coverages 
reduced in fiscal year 2000. 

The Commission's employees have various options in their selection of health insurance benefits. The 
Commission offers an administrative services only (ASO) plan for the prescription drug program and a 
point of service (POS) medical plan. Other group insurance options available to employees include a 
minimum premium-split funding arrangement for a medical preferred provider organization (PPO) and for 
a dental plan. All other group health insurance plans, which include four health maintenance organizations 
(HMO's) and a vision plan, are fully insured. The Commission expended $14,019,620 for all group health 
benefits in fiscal year 2000. The basis for estimating IBNR claims at year-end is an annual actuarial 
analysis performed by the plans' administrators. 

Premiums are paid into the Risk Management Internal Service Fund by the General Fund and Enterprise 
Funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. Claims 
paid during fiscal year 2000 totaled $1,887,087. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss 
bas occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for 
IBNR claims which is determined annually based on an actuarial evaluation. In addition, individual claim 
liabilities are established for each case based on the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends 
including frequency and amount of payouts and other economic and social factors. Changes in the balances 
of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows: 
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Clai• Paid, fiscal Year 1998 
Ur1)9id Clai•, Juw 30, 1998 
Incurred Clai•, fisca l Year 1999 
Clai• Paid, fiscal Year 1999 
Ur1)9id Clai•, Juw 30, 1999 
Incurred Claim, f iscal Year 2000 
Clal• Paid, fiscal Year 2000 
Ur1)eld Clai•, June 30, 2000 

Medic•\ 

! 5,607,820 
1,653,590 
5,578,934 

(5 ,951,412) 
1,281,112 
6,281 ,853 

(5,973 ,259) 
S 1.589.706 

The medical column excludes HMO expenses that are fully insured. 

(13) - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Ri sk 
Manap-,nt 

S 2,220,627 
6, 17'9, 700 
2,339,288 

(1,438.192) 
7,080, 7'96 
2,108,912 

(1 ,887,087) 
S7,302,621 

The Commission accounts for the operation of numerous cultural and recreational facilities in an Enterprise 
Fund for each County. The recreational facilities include an historical airport, a marina, ice rinks, golf 
courses, conference centers, an arena, train rides, a sports center, and carousels. 

The Commission's objective is that total user fees and subsidies for the Enterprise Fund of each County 
cover the operating expenses, before depreciation, and payments for capital outlay principal payments on 
revenue bonds and notes. Budget plans for these funds are reviewed in total by the respective County. 
There are no restrictions on operating subsidies among the facilities and activities within each County. 

Key financial data for these Funds for the year ended June 30, 2000 follow ($000's): 

Mont110111ery Prince George' s 
'2!i!!llt'. C01.ntx 

Recreational Recreational 
and and 

Cultura l Cultural C011ai SI ion 
facilities Facilit ies Total 

Operat ing Revenues S11,472 S 5,312 S 16,784 
Depreciation 933 1,501 2,434 
Other Operating Expenses 10,897 11,353 22,250 
Operating lnc0111e (Loss) (357) (7, 542) (7,899) 
Operating Transfers In (OUt) 86 5, 259 5,345 
Net lnci.e (Loss) (282) (2,004) (2,286) 
Property, Plant, and 
Equipaent Additions 7,484 634 8, 118 

Net Working Capital 6,173 1,936 8,109 
Long-Ten1 Liabilities 12,356 3,829 16, 185 
Retained Earnings 18,609 841 19,450 
Total Equity 22,555 60,878 83,433 
Total ASH tl 36,973 66,706 103,67'9 

During the fiscal year, there was no activity involving operating grants within these Funds. 

(14) - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Commission was involved in the following related party transactions during fiscal year 2000: 

(A) Payments and Obliption., to Prince Georee's County -The Commission paid or is obligated 
to pay Prince George's County for the following: $710,600 Zoning Enforcement Unit, $614,293 property 
tax collection fees, $588,599 annual rental charges for office space in the County Administration Building, 
$500,000 planning and zoning functions, $208,535 Cooperative Extension Service, $200,000 Community 
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College pool operation and maintenance, and $565,768 of other mandates. In addition, the County has 
directed payments of $729,027 to other parties for legislative mandates. 

(B) Rental or Executive Office Buildin& Space - The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission Employees' Retirement System paid the Commission $73,500 in fiscal year 2000 for annual 
rental of space in the Kenilworth Executive Office Building. 

(15) - BUDGETARY DATA 

The General Purpose Financial Statements are presented in accordance with GAAP applicable to 
governmental units, except for Exhibit 3 and Notes 20(C) and 20(H) to the financial statements, which are 
presented on a basis consistent with the legally adopted budgets. Under the budgetary method, current­
year outstanding encumbrances are charged to the budgetary appropriations and are considered 
expenditures of the current period. Governmental accounting considers outstanding encumbrances as 
reservations of fund balances that are charged to expenditures in the period in which the goods or services 
are used or received. 

A reconciliation from the Budget Basis to the GAAP Basis is as follows. 

Reconciliation fr011 Budget 
Basis to GAAP Basis for 
the year ended Ji.ne 30, 2000: 

Adjustment to Expenditures 
To Increase -

EncUlllbrances -

Montgomery COU'lty 
Adllinis-
tration Park 
ACCOU'lt ACCOU'lt 

Prince George's COU'lty 
Aciaini s-
trat i on Park Recreation 
Account Account Account 

C011111 i ss i on 
Total 

General 
Fund 

Ji.ne 30, 1999 S 1,288,57'9 S 1,336,028 S 1,820,585 S 2,816,665 S 1,065,060 S 8,326,917 
To Decrease -

Encumrances -
Ji.ne 30, 2000 (2,032.883) (2,043.578) (2,859,574) (4.603.7'97) (1,866,626) (13,406.458) 
Total Adjustment (744,304) (707,550) (1,038,989) (1,787,132) (801 , 566) C 5,079,541) 

Excess of Revenues and Other 
Sources over (lllder) 
Expenditures and Other Uses: 

Budget Basis 254,515 132,741 145,976 (4,827.353) 431.107 (3,863,014) 
GAAP Basfs 998,819 840,291 1,184,965 (3,040,221) 1,232,673 1,216,527 

Fund Balance, July 1, 1999 
GAAP Basis 2,995,864 4,650,158 4,415,7'92 35,253,233 9,091,335 56,406,382 

Fund Balance, Ji.ne 30, 2000 
GAAP Basis S 31994,683 S 5.4901449 S 516001757 1321213,012 S10.324 1008 S5716221909 

(16) - LmGATION 

The Commission is a defendant in various legal actions that fall into three major categories - those arising 
from the Commission's planning and zoning powers, those arising from incidents occurring on 
Commission property and those arising from personnel actions. The Commission's management and its 
General Counsel estimate that the resolution of claims resulting from all litigation against the Commission 
not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial position or operations of the Commission. 
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(17) - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIF.s 

(A) - Operatin& Leases and Notes Payable 

The Commission is committed under several operating lease and installment purchase agreements for office 
space and equipment expiring at various dates through 2012. Each agreement provides for termination in 
the event of nonappropriation of funds. All equipment installment purchases are financed by the 
proprietary funds and have been capitalized; there are no notes payable in the governmental funds. 

Future minimum commitments under noncancellable notes payable and operating leases at June 30, 2000 
are as follows ($()()O's). 

N2te1 Pa)t'.able Ql:!srati!JSI ~!11!1 
Prince Prince 

Year Ending Montgomery George's Montgomery George's 
Jo 3Q ..!fill CCUltlt'. CMW Total CCUltlt'. CCUltlt'. 

2001 $ 853 $ 618 $ 235 $ 929 S 51 $ 878 
2002 853 618 235 911 26 885 
2003 854 619 235 908 908 
2004 700 464 236 229 229 
2005 236 236 232 232 

2006 and Beyond 1.765 1,765 ~ ~ 
Total •inf- lease 

paywients 5,261 2,319 2,942 S4.3n sn $4.300 = 
Less: Allou"lt representing 

interest 1.219 ___1ZQ ~ 
Net present value of 
•ini- lease payments ~ sz, 149 $1.893 

In fiscal year 2000 expenditures in the General Fund included $880,193 (Montgomery - $53,048, Prince 
George's - $827,145) relating to the rental of office space. 

(B) Grant Proaram 

The Commission, as grantee or subgrantee, participates in several Federal and State grant programs, which 
are subject to financial and compliance audits. The Commission believes it has complied, in all material 
respects, with applicable grant requirements and the amount of expenditures that may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies, if any, would be immaterial . Direct and indirect grant revenues from the Federal 
government for 2000 were $1,013,467. The Commission engaged independent accountants to conduct an 
audit of Federal grants as required by the Single Audit Act of 1996, as revised, and Circular A-133 issued 
by the Office of Management and Budget. 

(18) COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

(A) Governmental and Internal Service Fund Types 

As of June 30, 2000, Commission employees had earned, but not taken, annual leave and compensatory 
leave which, at their current salary rates, amounted to approximately $11,277,000 (Montgomery -
$5,254,000; Prince George's - $6,023,000). If this leave is not taken by employees during their 
employment, the Commission is committed to make certain cash payments upon termination or retirement 
at the salary rates then in effect. 
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The liability for compensated absences is determined at the end of each fiscal year. The amount recorded 
as an expenditure is the amount to be liquidated within 60 days with expendable available financial 
resources. This amount is recorded as a current liability in the Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund 
and has been recognized as an expenditure in the General Fund. The remainder of the liability is recorded 
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. 

Below is a schedule of changes in the accrued liability for compensated absences. 

Prince 
Montg0111ery George's 

Couitx Couitx Total 
Liability as of Jw,e 30, 1999: 

Current Portion s 657,000 s 790,000 S 1,447,000 
Remaining Portion 4,422,000 5,066,000 9,488,000 

Total 5,079,000 5,856,000 10,935,000 

Change in Liability: 
current Portion -

Expenditure for FY 2000 (14,000) (7,000) (21,000) 
Remaining Portion -

Increase in General Long-Term 
Obligations Accouit Group 189,000 174,000 363,000 
Total 175,000 167,000 342,000 

Liability as of Jw,e 30, 2000: 
current Portion 643,000 783,000 1,426,000 
Remaining Portion 41 611,000) I 5,240,000 9,851,000 

Total SS,254,000 S6,023,000 S11,277,000 

The current portion of the compensated absences liability of $1,426,000 as of June 30, 2000 has been 
funded in the Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund. The long term portion of the compensated 
absences liability is $9,851,000 as of June 30, 2000. Of the long term portion, $6,894,000 is funded as 
a reservation to retained earnings in the Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund. The $6,894,000 funded 
portion appears on Exhibit 1 as the Amount Available to Fund Liabilities for Compensated Absences. The 
unfunded portion of $2,957,000 appears on Exhibit 1 as Resources to be Provided in Future Years -
Retirement of Accrued Liability for Compensated Absences. 

(B) Proprietary Fund Types 

Compensated absences in these fund types are accrued in total within each respective Fund as accrued 

liability. 

(19) - ~IDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER 

The following table reconciles the Residual Equity Transfer In and Residual Equity Transfer Out. The 
Residual Equity Transfer is the result of the transfer of the retiree insurance pre-funding account from 
the Employee Benefits Internal Service Funds to the Retiree Insurance 115 Expendable Trust. 

Combining StatetNnt of ReveBJes, Expenses and Changes 
In Fund Balances - Expendable Trust Funds 

COll*>ining Statement of ReveBJes, Expenses and Changes 
In Retained Earnings - Internal Service Funds 

Total 

(20) - COUNTY FINANCIAL DATA 

S 7,075,182 

(7,075,182) 
s 

The following financial data pertains to both Montgomery and Prince George's Counties. 
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THE MARYLAND~TIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
N011!20(A) 

MONTOOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule of A-, UolJililieo Ind Fund Equity • ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCClUm' GROUPS 
1 .... 30,2000 

Fiduciary 
Propridary l'llnd Account Totals 

Govemmenlll Pllnd ~ Pllnd~ Type, Group. ~emonndwn Only) 
Genenl Genenl 

Genenl Debt Capilll lnlemal TNlt Fixed Long-Tenn , .... JO, 1 .... JO, 
ACCOIIIIII Saw,e Pro~ Entaprioe Saw,e Funds - Obliptioi,s 2000 1999 

ASSETS AND ODIER Dt:alTS 

Equity in Pooled Cub and In- s 10,622,., S - s 615,112 S 7,466,527 S 11,818,880 S 7,741,S36 S -$ s 38,264,995 S SS,s67,83S 
Receivables · Tax• 1,324,700 1,324,700 1,714,000 
Roceivohlel • Other 17,S77 :13,276 874,295 920,148 149,860 
Due llom Other Funds 841,890 841,890 
Due llom Otber~ 1,486,810 S,4SO,S21 31,138 6,968.469 4,06S,173 
lnwntorioo, ot Coot 740,MS 740,MS 644,060 
Dq,ooilaondOtber ;191 2S~l7 2H1S 64,930 

Total Cumnt Auell 13,454,22$ 6,065,633 8,235,648 13,.591,420 7,741,S36 49,088,462 62,20S,8.S8 

Reslricted AM* · 
Lind Held for Tnnrfer 25,609,640 25,609,640 24,669,646 

,ixedAuets 34,682,327 13,962,995 222,.594,173 271,239,49S 2SS,938,166 
Accumulaled Deprecillion (S,944,640) (8,406,776) (14,351,416) (12,142,796) 
Amount AYlilable to Pllnd Lilbility for 

Compensated Absences 
RaouROI to be Prowled in Fulln Ycan · 

3,637,000 3,637,000 3,129,000 

RdiRmcnt or 0cnen1 Obtiption Bonda 32,.380,000 32,380,000 34,545,000 
RdiRmcnt of Accrued Lilbility for 
Compensated Aboencea 914,000 914,000 1,293,000 
Total Auell and Other Debits s 13,454,22$ S ___;;;. S 6,06S1633 S 36,973,335 S 191147,639 S 33)S1,176 S 222,m.173 S 36.991,000 S 368,577,181 S 369,637,874 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilitia: 
Current Portion ofGenenl Obtipliorl Bonda Payable s -s - s -s - s - s - s - s 2.23S,OOO S 2,235,000 S 2,165,000 
Cumnt Portion or Rew:nue Bonda Payable 2SS,OOO 2SS,000 245,000 
Current Portion ofR.ewnue N°"'" Payable 644,444 644,444 190,000 
Clmnt Portion of Notes Payable S.U,294 543,294 l,S24,078 
Accounll Payable 1,167,740 3,00S,934 236,057 171,582 4,398 4,SSS,711 4,$13,.592 
AoauedL.iabilities l ,.c:!7,8S8 474,711 3,788,499 1,166 S,692,234 6,6S1,SOS 
Due to Other Govemmenll 387 3,014 3,401 3,664 
Due to Other Funds Ul,890 Ul,890 
Dep0lila Ind Defaffll R.ewnue 1,373,108 306,940 3,S31,824 S,211,872 S,329,472 
Mabnd Bonda Ind lnta<st Payable 145,631 14S,631 156,337 

Total Cunmt Liobilities 3,969,093 3,00S,934 2,062,783 S,34S,26S 3,s40,402 2,235,000 20,ISS,477 20,784,648 

Genenl Obligation Bonda Payable· Net ofc:un.nt Portion 30,145,000 30,145,000 32,380,000 
R.eYenuc Bonda Payable . Net of Cumnt Portion 3,s90,244 3,590,244 3,813,181 
R.eYenue Nola Payable • Net of Cumnt Portion 8,76S,SS6 8,76S,SS6 9,410,000 
Nola Payable • Net of Cumnt Portion 1,606,290 1,606,290 2,149,sM 
Aoaued Lilbility for Compensated Absences 4,611,000 4,611,000 4,422,000 

Total Liabililies 3,969,093 3100S,934 14,418,583 6,!!Sl~SS 3,s40,402 36~1,000 ~816,s61 ~S9,413 

Equity and Other Credita: 
Contribuled Capilll 3,94S,S22 S2S,l'l8 4,470,650 4,470,650 
Investment in Genenl Fixed - 222,s94,173 222,.594,173 216,339,159 
Retained Eaminp (Deficit). 
Racmod for Fulln Claima 4,864,287 4,864,287 3,981,658 
Unreserved 18,609,230 6,806,669 25,415,899 'l8,Sl9,717 

Fund Bolanccs . 
Reoaved for Encumbnnces 4,076,461 3,059,699 7,136,160 9,322,028 
Reoaved for Lind Held for Tnnrfer 25,609,640 25,609,640 24,669,646 lJnreocrved. 
Desipaled for Subtequent Yan 4,518,130 4,201,134 8,719,264 8,199,951 
Undeoignated 890~1 890,541 l,17S,OS2 

Total Retained~ Bolanccs 9,48S1132 3,059,699 l!,609,230 ll,670,!!S6 29,810,774 72,635,791 7S186810S2 

Total Equity and Other Credita 9,415,132 ~OS91699 22,SS4,7S2 1;196,084 29~10,774 222,594,173 299,700,614 296,6:?!.461 

Total l..iabilitiel, Equity Ind Otber Credita s 13.454.llS S __ -_ s 6106S,633 S 36.973,33S S 191147,639 S 33JSl,176 S ?iEaZ9:!,173 S 36,991,000 S 368~77.181 S YIJ,637,874 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE20(B) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Fiduciary Totals 

Fund (Memorandum Only) 

Governmental Fund T~ s Tt ~ Year Ended 

General Debt Capital Expendable June 30, June 30, 

Accounts Service Projects Trust 2000 1999 

Revenues: 

Property T a,ces s 6 1,469,095 s 979,473 s s s 62,448,568 s 60,270,408 

Intergovernmental 408,351 11 ,916,226 12,324,577 5,92 1,195 

Charges for Services 2,274,727 2,274,727 2,275,375 

Interest 810,750 142,279 368,848 1,321 ,877 1,346,814 

Miscellaneous 131,451 314,272 445 723 332,677 

Total Revenues 65,094,374 979,473 12,058,SOS 683,120 78,815,472 70,146,469 

Expenditures: 

Current -

General Government 5,068,159 5,068,159 4,984,274 

County Planning and Zoning 13,000,742 13,000,742 13,109,778 

Park Operation and Maintenance 41,604,208 41,604,208 42,033,957 

Miscellaneous Expendable Trust Funds 269,864 269,864 426,892 

Capital Outlay - Land Acquisition and Development 15,863,948 15,863,948 7,639,025 

Debt Service -

Principal Retirement 2,165,000 2,165,000 1,905,000 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,768,623 1,768,623 1,713,820 

Total Expenditures 59,673,109 3,933,623 15,863,948 269,864 79,740,544 71 ,812,746 

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 5,421,265 (2,954,150) (3,805,443) 413,256 (925,072) (1 ,666.277) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds 7,000,000 

Operating Transfers In 142,279 3,328,434 310,000 374,284 4, 154,997 4,514,744 

Operating Transfers Out (3,724,434) (374,284) ( 142,279) (4,240,997) (4,600,744) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,582,155) 2,954,150 167,721 374,284 (86,000) 6,914,000 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources over 

(under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 1,839, 110 (3,637,722) 787,540 (1 ,011,072) 5,247,723 

Fund Balances, July I 7,646,022 6,697,421 29,023,234 43,366,677 38,118,954 

Fund Balances, June 30 s 91485,132 s s 3,059,699 s 291810,774 s 42,3SS160S s 43,3661677 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE20(C) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 

Changes in Fund Balances· Budget {Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual -- GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Variance 

Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 

Property Ta,ces $ 59,809,732 $ 61,469,095 $ 1,659,363 
Intergovernmental 772,300 408,351 (363,949) 
Charges for Services 1,067,900 1,161,600 93,700 
Rentals and Concessions 1,084,800 1,113,127 28,327 
Interest 751 ,800 810,750 58,950 
Miscellaneous 120,700 131 ,451 10,751 

Total Revenues 63,607,232 65,094,374 1,487,142 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 

Current -

General Government 5,232,020 5,180,791 51,229 
County Planning and Zoning 13,936,870 13,632,414 304,456 
Park Operation and Maintenance 42,657,110 42,311,758 345,352 
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 61,826,000 61,124,963 701,037 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 

Expenditures/Encumbrances 1,781,232 3,969,41 I 2,188,179 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Operating Transfers In 100,000 142,279 42,279 
Operating Transfers Out {3,727,000) (3,724,434) 2,566 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {3,627,000) (3,582, 155) 44,845 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

over (under) Expenditures and 

Other Financing Uses - Budget Basis $ (1 ,845,768) 387,256 $ 2,233,024 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July I 5,021,415 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 5,408,671 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE20(D) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings -

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Totals 

(Memorandum Only) 

Proi1rie~ Fund T:r~s Year Ended 

Internal June 30, June 30, 

Enterprise Service 2000 1999 

Operating Revenues: 

Sales s 1,244,022 s $ 1,244,022 s 1,322,692 

Charges for Services 8,289,305 15,336,741 23,626,046 23,904,999 

Rentals and Concessions 1,939,150 1,939, 150 1,886,437 

Miscellaneous 70,186 70,186 51 ,550 

Total Operating Revenues 11,472,477 15,406,927 26,879,404 27,165,678 

Operating Expenses: 

Cost of Goods Sold 772,699 772,699 687,600 

Personal Services 4,887,330 4,640,588 9,527,918 8,465,874 

Supplies and Materials 1,823,695 213,816 2,037,511 1,267,340 

Other Services and Charges 2,270,426 8,133,908 10,404,334 9,590,306 

Administrative Charges 1,142,448 1, 142,448 804,980 

Depreciation 933,098 1,420,331 2,353,429 1,976,603 

Total Operating Expenses 11 ,829,696 14,408,643 26,238,339 22,792,703 

Operating Income (Loss) (357,219) 998,284 641 ,065 4,372,975 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 

Interest Income 794,436 677,936 1,472,372 1,361,327 

Interest Expense, Net of Amortization (804,879) (79,73 1) (884,610) (697,691) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net (10,443) 598,205 587,762 663,636 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (367,662) 1,596,489 1,228,827 5,036,611 

Operating Transfers In 86,000 1 575 87,575 86,000 

Total Operating Transfers 86,000 1 575 87,575 86,000 

Net Income (Loss) (281 ,662) 1,598,064 1,316,402 5,122,611 

Retained Earnings, July 1 18,890,892 13,6 10,483 32,501,375 27,999,884 

Residual Equity Transfer (Out) (3,537,591) (3,537,591) (621,120) 

Retained Earnings, June 30 s 18,609,230 s 11,670,956 S 30,280,186 S 32,501,375 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule of Cash Flows -ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Note 20 (E) 

Proprietary Fund Types 
Internal 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

Year Ended 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost 
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Estimate of Incurred but Unreported Claims 
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 
Increase (Decrease) in Revenue Collected in Advance 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 
Residual Equity Transfer Out 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition of Fixed Assets 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable 
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds 
Interest Paid 
Proceeds from Financing - Notes Payable 
Proceeds from Financing - Revenue Notes 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Investments 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: 

$ 

Enterprise 

(357,219) $ 

933,098 

11,767 

(96,785) 

(13,736) 

(71 ,841) 
22,178 

(10,706) 

73,245 
490,001 

86,000 

86,000 

(7,483,666) 
(313,725) 
(245,000) 
(772,816) 

(8,815,207) 

794,436 
794,436 

(7,444,770) 

Service 

998,284 $ 

1,420,331 

(834,416) 
(841,890) 

(15,588) 

35,767 
(24,438) 
303,751 
(69,819) 
(13,849) 

(191,616) 
841,890 

1,608,407 

1,575 
(3,537,591) 
(3,536,016) 

(1,708,059) 
(1,400,353) 

(79,731) 

(3,188,143) 

677,936 
677,936 

(4,437,816) 

June 30, 
2000 

641,065 $ 

2,353,429 

(822,649) 
(841,890) 
(15,588) 
(96,785) 
35,767 

(38,174) 
303,751 

(141 ,660) 
8,329 

(10,706) 
(191,616) 
841,890 
73,245 

2,098,408 

87,575 
(3,537,591) 
(3,450,016) 

(9, 191 ,725) 
(1,714,078) 

(245,000) 
(852,547) 

(12,003,350) 

1,472,372 
1,472,372 

(11,882,586) 

14,911 ,297 16,256,696 31,167,993 
$ 7,466,527 $ 11,818,880 $ 19,285,407 $ 

June 30, 
1999 

4,372,975 

1,976,603 

(70,826) 
1,452,587 

44,583 
63,467 

(51,177) 
(164,807) 
(29,776) 
32,449 

(28,656) 
53,202 

(285,838) 
(1 ,452,587) 

(37,668) 
5,874,531 (!) 

86,000 

86,000 

(5,230,210) 
(1,085,740) 

(265,000) 
(665,628) 

2,800,000 
6,000,000 

1,553,422 

1,361 ,327 
1,361,327 

8,875,280 

22,292,713 
31,167,993 

In fiscal year 1999, fixed assets were transferred from the Mongomery Enterprise Fund to the General Fixed Asset Account Group. 
The net book value of fixed assets at the time of the residual equity transfer was $621 ,120. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE 20(F) 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Schedule of Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity • ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 
June 30, 2000 

Proprietary 
Governmental Fund T~ Fund Tl~ 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and lnvestmenlS 
Receivables • Taxes 
Receivables • Other 
Due from Other GovemmenlS 
l'Rpaid Expenses 
Inventories, at Cost 
DeposilS and Other 

Total Current Asseis 

Restricted AsselS • 
Advances to Other Funds 
Land Held for Transfer 
Other 

Fixed AsselS 
Accumulated Depreciation 
Amount Available to Fund Liability for 

Compensated Absences 
Resources to be Provided in Future Years· 

Retirement of General Obligation Bonds 
Retirement of Aca\led Liability for 
Compensated Absences 
Total Assets and Other Debi is 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilitiff: 
Current Portion of General Obligation Bonds Payable 
Current Portion ofNoces Payable 
Accounis Payable 
A«:Ned Liabilities 
Due to Other GovemmenlS 
DeposilS and Deferred Revenue 

Total Current Liabilities 

General 

~ 

S S2,IS8,121 s 
2,464,000 

145,21 4 
373,013 

ss, 140,348 

s~ s 

s s 

1,725,857 
2,46S,161 

~ 
7,002,571 

General Obligation Bonds Payable· Net of Current Portion 
Notes Payable. Net of Current Portion 
Advances from Other Funds 
Ac,:rued Liability for Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

Equity and Other Crediis: 
Contributed Capital 
Investment in General Fixed AsselS 
Retained Earnings ([>elicit) • 
Reserved for Future Claims 
Unreserved 

Fund B.alances • 
Reserved for Encumbrances 
Reserved for Land Held for Transfer 
Unreserved • 
Daisnuecl for Subsequent Years 
Undesignated 
Total Retained Earninp.'Fund B.tlances 

Total Equity and Other Crediis 

9,329,997 

27,30S,S49 
11 ,s02,211 
48, 137,777 

Debt Capital Internal 

~ Projects Enterprise Service 

S 17,141,732 s 3,200,69S S 14,SSS,SSO 

1,482, ISI 120,4S9 874,295 
S,029,416 31,137 

12,24S 
600,923 

2S,218 
23,6S3,299 3,934,322 IS,786,230 

12,519,646 3,468,744 
(9,808,022) (724,186) 

----
---- -· S ~ S 66,705,946 S 18,530,788 

s s s 
96,070 

4,276,166 1,340,070 42,0SO 
S20,961 6,778,708 

137,220 
4,276,166 1,998,251 6,916,828 

1,796,641 
3,829,363 

4.276,166 S,8271614 8,713,469 

60,037,038 

S,06S,349 
841,294 4,751,970 

6,780,646 

12,S96,4S7 

----
19,377. 133 Ml 294 9,817,319 

19,377, 133 60,878,332 9,817,319 

Fiduciary 
Fund Account Totals 

~ Groue! ~ernorandum Onll) 
General General 

Trust Fixed Long-Term June 30, June 30, 
Funds AsselS Obligations 2000 1999 

s IS,7S9,37S s s S 103,IIS,S03 S 109,282,241 
2,464,000 2,127,000 

IS,040 2,637,159 1,098,036 
S,433,S66 6,766,468 

12,24S 
600,923 S32,213 

25,218 62,442 
IS,774,41S 114,288,614 119,868,400 

3,829,363 3,829,363 1,734,87S 
12,148,271 12, 148,271 14,242,759 

431,381 431 ,381 418,291 
287,104,791 363,IS3,181 340,756,700 

(10,532,208) (8,940,762) 

3,257,000 3,2S7,000 2,SSS,000 

116,005,000 116,005,000 121,SSS,OOO 

1,983,000 1,983,000 2,SI 1
1
000 

s ~ S 287, 104,791 S 121 ,24S,OOO S 604,563,602 S 594,731 ,263 

s s s S,S90,000 S S,S90,000 S S,SS0,000 
96,070 89,294 

118,972 7,S03, IIS 6,971,465 
S6,799 9,821,629 10,380,446 

498,87S 

1,220,860 4,169,633 3 964 430 
1,396,631 S,S90,000 27,180,447 27,484,SIO 

1 I0,41S,OOO 110,41S,OOO 116,005,000 
1,796,641 1,892,711 
3,829,363 1,734,87S 

s ,2401000 S12401000 S,0661000 
1,396,631 121 ,245,000 148,461,451 124,698.586 

60,037,038 26,171 ,014 
287,104,791 287,104,791 301,SSS,291 

5,065,349 3,788,750 
S,S93,264 9,741,872 

16,110,643 16, IIS,672 
IS,977,634 IS,977,634 IS,977,634 

14,809,16S 54,711,201 SS,7S3,S23 

11 ,SQ.;231 13.441,411 
30,786,799 108,960.322 114,818,862 

30,786,799 287,104,791 4S6,1021ISI 442,548, 167 

Total Liabilities, Equity and Other CredilS $ SS
1
140.)48 s ___ -_. S 23

1
6S3

1
299 S 66

1
70S1946 $ l8

1
S30

1
78I S 32, ISJ,430 $ 28711041791 S 121,24S1000 $ 6041S631602 S 594,731.263 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE20(G) 

PRINCE GEORGES COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Fiduciary Totals 

Fund (Memorandum Only) 

Governmental Fund Ttees Tt~ Year Ended 

General Debt Capital Expendable June 30, June 30, 

Accounts Service Projects Trust 2000 1999 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes $ I 02,532,962 $ 1,107,250 $ $ $ 103,640,212 $ 101,308,740 

Intergovernmental 840,043 7,290,854 7,063 8,137,960 10,391 ,007 

Charges for Services 7,080,117 4,246,255 11 ,326,372 10,965,131 

Interest 3,667,307 945,479 732,262 5,345,048 5,832,646 

Miscellaneous 544,809 1,036,152 791,850 2,372,811 3,414,764 

Total Revenues 114,665,238 1,107,250 9,272,485 5,777,430 130,822,403 13 I ,9 I 2,288 

Expenditures: 

Current· 

General Government 5,719,483 5,719,483 5,946,352 

County Planning and Zoning 13,770,821 13,770,821 14,243,529 

Park Operation and Maintenance 45,069,874 45,069,874 45,907,274 

Recreation Programs 29,668,637 29,668,637 29,191,9 

Miscellaneous Expendable Trust Funds 4,712,436 4,712,436 

Capital Outlay . Land Acquisition and Development 17,622,626 17,622,626 

Debt Service • 

Principal Retirement 5,580,000 5,580,000 5,070,000 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 6,405,924 6,405,924 6,484,197 

Total Expenditures 94,228,815 11 ,985,924 17,622,626 4,712,436 128,549,801 148,598,303 

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 20,436,423 ( 10,878,674) (8,350,141 ) 1,064,994 2,272,602 ( I 6,686,0 I 5) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds 21,000,000 

Retirement of Debt • Bond Anticipation Notes (2 I ,000,000) 

Operating Transfers In 945,479 11,560,918 5,279,434 782,244 18,568,075 17,384,562 

Operating Transfers Out (22,004,485) (682,244) (945,479) ( 195,000) (23,827,208) (23,454,579) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (21,059,006) 10,878,674 4,333,955 587,244 (5,259,133) (6,070,017) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources over 

(under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (622,583) (4,016,186) 1,652,238 (2,986,53 I) (22,756,032) 

Fund Balances, July I 48,760,360 23,393,319 29, 134,561 101,288,240 124,044,272 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ 48,137,777 $ $ 19,377,133 $ 30,786,799 $ 98,301,709 $ IO 1,288,240 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE20(H) 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for Services 

Rentals and Concessions 

Interest 

Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 

Current: 

General Government 

County Planning and Zoning 

Park Operation and Maintenance 

Recreation Programs 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 

Expenditures/Encumbrances 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Operating Transfers In 

Operating Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

over (under) Expenditures and 

Other Financing Uses - Budget Basis 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July 1 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, June 30 
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Budget 

S 99,532,358 

840,458 

5,166,778 

1,842,257 

2,382,434 

257,221 

110,021,506 

5,%2,250 

14,877,156 

47,046,821 

31,008,817 

98,895,044 

11,126,462 

1,400,000 

(21,958,567) 

(20,558,567) 

S (9,432,105) 

Actual 

$ 102,532,%2 

840,043 

5,355,797 

1,724,320 

3,667,307 

544,809 

114,665,238 

5,848,570 

14,680,723 

46,857,006 

30,470,203 

97,856,502 

16,808,736 

945,479 

(22,004,485) 

(21,059,006) 

(4,250,270) 

43,058,050 

$ 38,807,780 

s 

s 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

3,000,604 

(415) 

189,019 

(117,937) 

1,284,873 

287,588 

4,643,732 

113,680 

196,433 

189,815 

538,614 

1,038,542 

5,682,274 

(454,521) 

(45,918) 

(500,439) 

5,181,835 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE 20(1) 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings-

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Totals 

(Memorandum Only) 

Pro~rietary Fund T~~s Year Ended 

Internal June 30, June 30, 

Enterprise Service 2000 1999 

Operating Revenues: 

Sales s 1,456,362 s s 1,456,362 s 1,409,214 

Charges for Services 2,058,523 17,023,634 19,082, 157 18,633,240 

Rentals and Concessions 1,797,521 1,797,521 1,627,928 

Miscellaneous 134,809 134,809 56,250 

Total Operating Revenues 5,312,406 17,158,443 22,470,849 21,726,632 

Operating Expenses: 

Cost of Goods Sold 900,283 900,283 853,700 

Personal Services 3,393,734 5,436,110 8,829,844 9 ,078,589 

Supplies and Materials 2,399,706 48,504 2,448,210 1,059,979 

Other Services and Charges 3,997,534 9,924,008 13,921,542 11,151,253 

Administrative Charges 661 ,859 661 ,859 711 ,929 

Depreciation 1,501,131 113,866 1,614,997 1,241,282 

Total Operating Expenses 12,854,247 15,522,488 28,376,735 24,096,732 

Operating Income (Loss) (7,541,841) 1,635,955 (5,905,886) (2,370, I 00) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 

Interest Income 278,313 903,059 1,181,372 728,936 

Interest Expense (146,027) (146,027) (152,420) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net 278,313 757,032 1,035,345 576,516 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (7,263,528) 2,392,987 (4,870,541) (1 ,793,584) 

Operating Transfers In 5,259,133 (1 ,575) 5,257,558 6,070,0 17 

Total Operating Transfers 5,259,133 (1 ,575) 5,257,558 6,070,017 

Net Income (Loss) (2,004,395) 2,391,412 387,017 4,276,433 

Add Depreciation Charged to Contributed Capital 278,565 278,565 233,426 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Retained Earnings (I , 725,830) 2,391 ,412 665,582 4,509,859 

Retained Earnings (Deficit), July I 2,567,124 10,963,498 13,530,622 9,020,763 

Residual Equity Transfer Out (3,537,591) (3,537,591) 

Retained Earnings (Deficit), June 30 s 841,294 s 9,817,319 s 10,658,613 s 13,530,622 
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NOTE 20 (J) 
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Schedule of Cash Flows - ALL PROPRJETARY FUND TYPES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost 
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 
Increase (Decrease) in Estimate oflncurred but Unreported Claims 
Increase (Decrease) in Revenue Collected in Advance 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

" ash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 
Residual Equity Transfer Out 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition of Fixed Assets 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable 
Interest Paid on Notes Payable 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: 

Proprietary Fund Types 
Internal 

Enterprise Service 

Totals 
{Memorandum Only) 

Year Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

2000 1999 

S (7,541,841) $ 1,635,955 S (5,905,886) S (2,370,100) 

1,501,131 

(104,329) 
{12,245) 

(68,710) 

1,201,054 

(74,157) 
13,590 

238 
(5,085,269) 

5,259,133 

5,259,133 

(634,456) 

(634,456) 

278,313 
278,313 

( 182,279) 

113,866 

(874,000) 

(15,586) 

35,766 
{16,302) 
415,576 

(111 ,874) 
(6,606) 
2,708 

1,179,503 

(1 ,575) 
(3,537,591 ) 
(3,539,166) 

(89,293) 
(146,027) 

(235,320) 

903,059 
903,059 

(1 ,691 ,924) 

1,614,997 

(978,329) 
(12,245) 
(15,586) 
(68,710) 
35,766 

1,184,752 
415,576 

{186,03 1) 
6,984 
2,708 

238 
(3,905,766) 

5,257,558 
(3,537,591) 
1,719,967 

(634,456) 
(89,293) 

(146,027) 

(869,776) 

1,181 ,372 
1,181 ,372 

( 1,874,203) 

3,382,974 16,547,504 19,930,478 
S 3,200,695 S 14,855,580 S 18,056,275 S 

1,241,282 

97,085 

44,584 
1,173 

(51,178) 
(24,814) 
713,882 

55,665 
72,883 

130,350 
55,722 

(33,466) 

6,070,017 

6,070,017 

(284,778) 
(90,422) 

(1 52,420) 

(527,620) 

728,936 
728,936 

6,237,867 

13,692,611 
19,930,478 

In fiscal year 2000, fixed assets with a historical cost of approximately $34,145,000 and $2,094,000 were transferred from the General 
Fixed Asset Account Group to the Prince George's Enterprise Fund and the Prince George's Advance Land Acquisition Expendable 
Trust Fund , respectively, for the Sports and Leaming Complex. 

- 67 -



• PART IIB • 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

Combining Statements and Schedules 

Baseball fans enjoy a collegiate game at the Shirley Povich Field in Cabin John Regional Park. 

GENERAL FuND 

The General Fund accounts for the proceeds of tax revenues and 
other general revenues which are expended for the Commis­
sion's general operations comprised of park operation and 
maintenance, recreation (Prince George's County only), and 
planning and administration. 

- 68 -



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-1 

Schedule of~ Liabilities and Fund Bal-· GENERAL FUND 

J1.11C30,2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

Total.a Totala 

Adminia- Adminia-

tration Parle JI.I\C 30, JI.I\C 30, tration Park Rccrcation June 30, ]1.1\C 30, June 3o, JI.I\C 30, 

Account Account 2000 1999 Account Account Account 2000 1999 2000 1999 

ASSETS 
Equity in Pooled Cub and 

lnvatmcnb $ 4,220,2S9 $ 6,402,681 $ 10,622,940 $ 10,608,3S7 $ 6,318,663 $ 33,819,S47 $ 12,019,911 $ S2,1S8,121 $ S4,827,368 $ 62,781,061 $ 6S,43S,72S 

Receivables - Taxes 221,719 1,102,981 1,324,700 1,714,000 467,000 1,406,000 S91,000 2,464,000 2,127,000 3,788,700 3,841,000 

Receivables - Other 8,216 9,361 17,S77 62,268 26 13S,921 9;267 14S,214 1S9,S21 162,791 221,789 

Due From County Govcmmcnta 67S,7S3 618,213 1,293,966 683,791 177,501 121,203 S8,731 3S7,43S S99,1S1 l ,6Sl,401 1,282,948 

Due From Other Govcmmcntt 23,343 169,SOl 192,844 305,703 - 13,779 1,799 lS,578 17,971 208,422 323,674 

Dcpoeita and Other 2,198 - 2,198 2,197 - - - - l,4S8 2,198 3,6SS 

Total Current A.Net.a $ S,151,488 $ 8,302,737 $ 13,4S4,22S $ 13,376,3 16 $ 6,963,190 $ 3S,496,4SO $ 12,680,708 $ SS,140,348 $ S7,732,47S $ 68,S94,S73 $ 71,108,791 

I UABIUl'IES AND FUND BALANCE 
0\ 
\0 

Liabilities: 
Acoount.t Payable $ 647,6S3 $ 520,087 $ 1,167,740 $ l,611,S89 $ 601,920 $ 686,019 $ 437,918 $ l,72S,8S7 $ 2,709,937 $ 2,893,S97 $ 4,321,526 

Acorucd Salaries and Benefits 282,379 l,14S,479 1,427,858 2,371,435 268,013 1,046,029 l ,lSl ,119 2,46S,161 3,264,619 3,893,019 S,636,0S4 

Due to Other Govcmmcnt.t 387 - 387 - - - - - 498,87S 387 498,87S 

Dcpoeit.t and Deferred Revenue 226,386 1,146,722 1,373,108 1,747,270 492,SOO l,SS l ,390 767,663 2,811,5S3 2,498,684 4,184,661 4,24S,9S4 

Total Current Liabilities ____hl S6,80S 2,812,2~! 3,969,093 S,730,294 1,362,433 3,283,438 2,3S6,700 7,002,S71 8,972,ll S 10,971,664 14,702,409 

Fund Balanoc: 
RcterVCd for Encumbrancca 2,032,883 2,043,S78 4,076,461 2,624,607 2,8S9,S74 4,603,797 1,866,626 9,329,997 5,702,310 13,406,4S8 8,326,917 

Ullt'CICl'Vcd. 
Designated for Subecqucnt Ycan l,6S9,030 2,8S9,100 4,Sl8,130 3,846,363 l ,436,64S 23,104,251 2,764,6S3 27,30S,549 29,616,639 31,823,679 33,463,002 

Undcaignatcd 302,770 587,771 890,S41 l,175,0:S2 l,304,S38 4,504,964 S,692,729 ll,S02,231 13,441,411 12,392,m 14,616,463 

Total Fund Balance 3,994,683 5,490,449 9,485,132 7,646,022 5,600,757 32,213,012 10,324,008 48,137,m 48,760,360 S7,622,909 S6,406,382 

Total Liabilities and 
Fund Balance $ S,lSl,488 $ 8,302,737 $ 13,4S4,22S $ 13,376,316 $ 6,963,190 $ 3S,496,4SO $ 12,680,708 $ SS,140,348 $ S7,732,475 $ 68,S94,573 $ 71,108,791 

The notes to the financial ltatcmcnb arc an integral part of this 1ehcdule. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK ANO PLANNING COMMISSION 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - GENERAL FUND 
EXHIBIT A-2 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRJNCE GEORGFSCOUNTY TOTALS 
Totals Totals 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
Adminis- Adminis-

tration Park June 30, June 30, tration Park Recreation June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
Account Account 2000 1999 Account Account Account 2000 1999 2000 1999 

Revenues: 
Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental -

$ 17,643, 143 $ 43,825,952 $ 61 ,469,095 $ 59,013,393 $ 19,413,613 $ 58,509,828 $ 24,609,521 S I 02,532,962 $ 100,231 ,365 $ 164,002,057 $ 159,244,758 

Federal 47,512 11 9,406 166,918 188,789 126,259 126,259 218,273 293,177 407,062 
State 8,753 8,753 68,448 370,713 370,713 246,572 379,466 315,020 
County 231 , 198 231 , 198 219,304 343,071 343,071 432,030 574,269 651,334 
Local 1,482 1,482 22,887 -- -- - 1,482 22,887 

Charges for Services 831 ,456 330, 144 1,161 ,600 1,215,394 340,372 170,935 4,844,490 5,355,797 5,198,906 6,517,397 6,414,300 
Rentals and Concessions 1,113, 127 1, 113,127 1,059,981 ·- 1,400,077 324,243 1,724,320 1,541,184 2,837,447 2,601 ,165 
Interest 313,055 497,695 810,750 831 ,558 578,213 2,276,588 812,506 3,667,307 2,992,256 4,478,057 3,823,814 
Miscellaneous 1,356 130,095 131 ,451 141 ,303 334, 192 210,617 544,809 298,476 676,260 439,779 

Total Revenues 19,067,720 46,026,654 65,094,374 62,761,057 20,675,269 62,817,879 31 ,172,090 114,665,238 111,159,062 179,759,612 173,920,119 

I Expenditures: 
~ General Government 5,068, 159 5,068,159 4,984,274 5,719,483 5,719,483 5,946,352 10,787,642 10,930,626 0 Planning Department 13,000,742 -- 13,000,742 13,109,778 13,770,821 - 13,770,821 14,243,529 26,771 ,563 27,353,307 

Park Operation and Maintenance 41 ,604,208 41 ,604,208 42,033,957 45,069,874 45,069,874 45,907,274 86,674,082 87,941,231 
Recreation Programs -- -- -- 29,668,637 29,668,637 29, 191 ,944 29,668,637 29, 191 ,944 

Total Expenditures 18,068,901 41 ,604,208 59,673, 109 60, 128,009 19,490,304 45,069,874 29,668,637 94,228,815 95,289,099 153,901 ,924 155,417,108 

Excess of Revenues over 
(under) Expenditures 998,819 __ 4,422,446 5,421,265 2,633,048 1,184,965 17,748,005 1,503,453 20,436,423 15,869,963 25,857,688 18,503,011 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In -- 142,279 142,279 222,881 945,479 945,479 2,405,492 1,087,758 2,628,373 
Operating Transfers Out p ,724,434) p,724,434) p,432,201 ) -· (21,733,705) (270,780) (22,004,485) (20,464,682) (25,728,919) (23,896,883) ---

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
----------

(3,582,155) (3,582,155) (3,209,320) (20,788,226) (270,780) (21 ,059,006) (18,059,190) (24,641 ,161) (21 ,268,510 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 998,819 840,291 1,839, 110 (576,272) 1, 184,965 (3,040,22 I) 1,232,673 (622,583) (2, 189,227) 1,216,527 (2,765,499) 

Fund Balance, July I 2,995,864 4,650, 158 7,646,022 8,222,294 4,415,792 35,253,233 9,091,335 48,760,360 50,949,587 56,406,382 59,171,881 
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 3,994,683 $ 5 490 449 $ 9,485,132 S 7,646,022 $ 5,600,757 S 32,213,012 S J.Q.324,008 S 48 137 777 S 48,760,360 S 57,622,909 S 56,406,382 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - ADMJNISTRA TION ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 1999 

2000 1999 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual {Unfavorablel Actual 

Revenues: 
Property Taxes $ 17,081,903 $ 17,643,143 $ 561 ,240 $ 16,822,802 

Intergovernmental -
Federal 47,512 47,512 

State 11,933 

County 299,788 231 ,198 (68,590) 219,304 

Other 9,000 

Charges for Services 820,000 831 ,456 11,456 920,451 

Interest 240,000 313,055 73,055 298,333 

Miscellaneous 1,356 1,356 1,390 

Total Revenues 18,489,203 19,067,720 578,517 18,283,213 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 

I 
Commissioners' Office 940,620 889,462 51 ,158 895,226 

-..J Central Administrative Services -.... Department of Human Resources and Management 1,390,400 1,389,729 671 1,352,648 

Department of Finance 1,805,800 1,805,049 751 1,765,804 

Legal Department 637,900 637,416 484 623,653 

Support Services 420,500 425,843 (5,343) 423,388 

Merit System Board 36,800 33,292 3,508 28,882 

Total Central Administrative Services 4,291 ,400 4,291,329 71 4,194,375 

Planning Department -
Park and Planning Director's Office 234,950 254,702 (19,752) 193,489 

Management Services 988,990 915,6 10 73,380 528,614 

Strategic Planning 355,200 309,673 45,527 45,727 

Community-Based Planning 3,274,100 3,131,411 142,689 2,957,995 

County-wide Planning 3,007,500 3,297,903 (290,403) 2,859,173 

Development Review 1,698,140 1,475,342 222,798 1,770,354 

Research and Technology 3,020,290 3,066,882 (46,592) 3,218,553 

Support Services 1,010,400 1,051 ,460 (41 ,060) 1,271 ,898 

Grants 347,300 278,710 68,590 240,237 

Total Planning Department 13,936,870 13,781,693 155,177 13,086,040 

Non-Departmental (149,279) 149,279 {196,116) 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 19,168,890 18,813,205 355,685 17,979,525 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances $ (679,687) 254,515 $ . ~202 303,688 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July I 1,707,285 1,403,597 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 1,961 ,800 $ 1,707,281 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. Continued 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - PARK ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscall Year ended June 30, 1999 

2000 1999 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual 
Revenues: 

Property Taxes s 
Intergovernmental -

42,727,829 s 43,825,952 s 1,098,123 s 42,190,591 

Federal 121,400 119,406 (1,994) 188,789 
State 302,100 8,153 (293,347) 70,402 
Local 1,500 1,482 (18) --Charges for Services 247,900 330,144 82,244 296,169 

Rentals and Concessions 1,084,800 1,113,127 28,327 1,058,755 
Interest 511,800 491,695 (14,105) 533,225 
Miscellaneous 120,700 130,095 9,395 139,913 

Total Revenues 45,118,029 46,026,654 908,625 44,477,844 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Parle and Planning Director's Office -- -- - 33,600 
Management Services -- - - 212,310 

I County-wide Planning 715,215 721,776 (6,561) 783,370 
~ Research and Technology 921,060 950,437 (29,377) 1,029,093 N Director of Parles 1,060,680 1,064,501 (3,821) 1,028,159 

Parle Planning, and Development 1,627,257 1,570,864 56,393 1,513,958 
Park Police 8,374,010 8,435,812 (61,802) 8,329,787 
Natural Resources 3,621,668 3,647,880 (26,212) 3,284,628 
Central Maintenance 7,299,770 7,234,696 65,074 7,007,174 
Northern Region 5,609,340 5,576,861 32,479 5,198,995 
Southern Region 8,201,490 8,139,894 61,596 7,579,030 
Support Services 4,010,020 4,106,630 (96,610) 4,504,928 
Grants 425,000 129,641 295,359 259,191 
Property Management 791,600 781,170 10,430 747,407 
Non-Departmental - (48,4042 48,404 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 42,657,110 42,311,758 345,352 41 ,511,630 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances 2,460,919 3,714,896 1,253,977 2,966,214 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -
Capital Projects Funds - Interest 100,000 142,279 42,279 222,881 
Debt Service - Parle Fund (3,331,000) (3,328,434) 2,566 (2,994,201) 
Capital Projects Funds - Development (310,000) (310,000) - (290,000) 
Expendable Trust Fund -- - (62,000) 
Enterprise Fund (86,000) (86,000) - (86,000) 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,627,000) (3,582,155) 44,845 (3,209,320) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses s !'11661081) 132,741 s 1,298,822 (243,106) 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July I 3,314,130 3,557,236 
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 3,446,871 s 3 314,130 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this sc-hedule. Continued 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual· ADMINISTRATION ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 1999 

2000 1999 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual {Unfavorable} Actual 

Revenues: 
Property Taxes $ 18,856,358 $ 19,413,613 $ 557,255 $ 18,651,590 

Intergovernmental -
Federal 13,631 

State 1,632 

County 343,48,6 343,071 (415) 382,546 

Charges for Services 340,000 340,372 372 279,531 

Interest 500,000 578,213 78213 393,430 

Total Revenues 2(),_039,84!4 __1Q_,675,269 635,425 19,722,360 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
.....:i Commissioners' Office 1,670,850 1,557,241 113,609 1,619,554 
l.,J 

Central Administrative Services -
Department of Human Resources and Management 1,390,400 1,389,729 671 1,352,648 

Department of Finance 1,805,800 1,805,049 75 1 1,765,804 

Legal Department 637,900 637,416 484 623,653 

Support Services 420,500 425,843 (5,343) 638,388 

Merit System Board 36,800 33,292 3,508 28,882 

Total Central Administrative Services 4,291 ,400 4,291 ,329 71 4,409,375 

Planning Department 14,877,156 14,846,638 30,518 14,494,789 

Non-Departmental (165,915} 165,9 15 {201,450} 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 2_Q,839,406 20,529,293 3J_Q, l 13 20,~11,268 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances p 99,562} 145,976 945,538 (599,908 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -

Trust Fund - Expendable Trust (Public Contributions) 202,759 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 202,759 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ (799,562} 145,976 $ 945,538 (397, 149) 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July I 2,595,207 2,992,356 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 2,741,183 $ 2,595,207 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. Continued 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fwid Balance· Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual· PARK ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jwie 30, 2000 
With Comparative Actual Amowits for the Fiscal Y car ended Jw,e 30, 1999 

2000 1999 
Vanance 
Favorable 

Revenues: 
Budset Actual (Unfavorable) Actual 

Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental • 

s 56,770,000 s 58,509,828 s 1,739,828 $ 57,166,691 

Federal 126,259 126,259 -· 198,518 
Charges for Services 93,150 170,935 77,785 164,014 
Rentals and Concessions 1,553,181 1,400,077 (153,104) 1,223,515 
Interest 1,342,434 2,276,588 934,154 2,021,218 
Miscellaneous I 16,931 334,192 217,261 149,587 

Total Revenues 60,001,955 liU11J19 2,815,924 60,923,543 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Director's Office 2,299,560 2,473,168 (173,608) 1,953,894 
Park Police 9,424,380 9,215,057 149,323 8,914,175 
Support Services 6,170,925 6,527,495 (356,570) 5,S 12,434 
Child Care/Special Projects 37,750 35,259 2,491 38,137 
Park Permits 171,857 142,645 29,212 128,396 
Sports/ Athletic/Outreach Program 96,82S 
Facility Operations· 
Associate Director 341,563 284,562 57,001 270,434 ~ Design and Engineering 2,984,672 2,768,264 216,408 2,926,631 ~ 
Maintenance and Development 12,542,791 12,570,591 (27,800) 11,481 ,803 
Total Facility Operations 15,869,026 15,623,417 245,609 14,678,m 

Arca Operations • 
Northern Area 3,590,327 3,891,576 (301,249) 3,517,203 
Central Arca 3,318,452 3,260,551 S7,901 3,098,853 
Southern Area 2,781,869 2,836,693 (54,824) 2,807,789 
Arts and Cultural Heritage 984,231 998,842 (14,61 I) 988,884 
Natural and Historical Resources 1,698,444 1,314,407 384,037 1,377,239 
Total Area Operations 12,373,323 12,302,069 71,254 11,789,968 

Non-Departmental 700,000 477,896 222,104 (182,370) 
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 47,04(iJ21 46,!57,006 m,s,s 42,930,327 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances 12,955,134 lS,960,873 3,00S,739 17,993,216 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) • 

Capital Projects Funds • Interest 1,400,000 945,479 (4S4,S2I) 2,202,733 
Debt Service· Park Fund (11,675,000) (I l ,S60,918) 114,082 (10,838,947) 
Risk Management (1,000,000) 
Advance Land Acquisition (100,000) (100,000) (87,500) 
Ente,prise Fund (4,988,353) (4,988,353) (4,520,017) 
Capital Projects Funds· Interest (1,342,434) (1,342,434) -· (2,021,218) 
Capital Projects Funds · Development p,S82,000) (3,742,000~ (160,000) ( 1,447,000' 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (20,287,787) (20, 788,2~6: (S00,439) ...i!2:Z!.!!94 91 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ {7,332,653) (4,827,353) $ 2,SOS,300 281,267 

Fund Balance· Budget Basis, July I 
Fwid Balance· Budget Basis, June 30 $ 

32 ,436,568 
27t609,21S 

32, ISS,301 
S 32,436,568 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. Continued 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encum'brances, and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual· RECREA TJON ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 1999 

2000 1999 
Vanance 
Favorable 

~ Actual ~ nfavorable) Actual 
Revenues: 

Property Taxes $ 23,906,000 s 24,609,521 s 703,S21 s 24,413,084 

Intergovernmental • 
Federal - ·- 6,124 

State 370,713 370,713 - 244,940 

County - -- - 49,484 

Charges for Services 4,733,628 4,844,490 110,862 4,755,361 

Rentals and Concessions 289,076 324,243 3S,J67 317,669 

Interest S40,000 812,S06 272,506 577,608 

Miscellaneous 140,290 210,617 70,327 148,889 

Total Revenues ~ 29,979,707 3 172,090 1,m.m 30,513,139 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Director's Office 223,377 371,747 (148,370) 208,873 

Support Services 3,007,218 3,200,616 (193,398~ 2,707,626 

Total Director's Office 3,230,S9S 3,572,363 (341,768 2,916,499 

Facility Operations: 

...:I Natural and Historical Resources 2,623,042 2,S98,8S2 24,190 2,449,803 

V, Sports/Athletic/Outreach Program 3,999,400 4,006,677 (7,277) 2,397,025 

Aquatics -· - -· 2,921,424 

Total Facility Operations 6,622,442 6,605,529 16,913 7,768,252 

Area Operations: 
Deputy Director 291 ,64S 297,830 (6,18S) 284,687 

Child Care 1,697,233 1,471 ,912 22S,321 1,313,633 

Northern Area 5,380,879 5,345,613 3S,266 4,838,692 

Central Area 4,407,987 4,371 ,593 36,394 3,665,226 

Southern Area 4,642,967 4,174,901 468,066 3,433,767 

Special Populations 1,296,526 l ,26S,030 31,496 1,218,719 

Arts and Cultural Heritage 2,SS6,929 2,572,457 (IS,S28) 2,334,593 

Grants 370,713 370,713 300,548 

Total Area Operations 20,644,879 19,870,049 774,830 17,389,865 

Non-Departmental 
Total Operating Expenditures/Encumbrances 

510,901 
31,ooU1'7 

422,262 
30,470,203 

88,639 
m .614 

465,930 
28,540,546 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances (1,029,110) 701,887 1,730,997 1,972,613 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -

Enterprise t270;780l 
(270,780} g~g;::~ Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 270 780 (270,780) -

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ (1 ,299,890) 431,107 s I 730997 1,422,613 

Fund Balance· Budget Basis, July 1 8,026,275 6,603,662 
Fund Balance· Budget Basis, June 30 $ s1u1,:m S ~ J,026,275 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 



Main Street welcomes visitors to the Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources 
and the payment of general obligation bond principal, interest, and related 
costs. The Commission maintains Park Debt Service and Advance Land 
Acquisition Debt Service Funds for each County. 

Park Debt Service Funds 

The Park Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for the payment of general obligation bonds issued to fund the cost 
of the acquisition of parkland, and the development of new and expansion of 
existing parks and recreation facilities. 

Advance land Acquisition Debt Service Funds 

The Advance Land Acquisition Debt Service Funds are used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for the payment of general obligation bonds issued 
to fund the acquisition of land at the request of and for the ultimate use of 
other public agencies. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Park 

ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ $ 

Total Current Assets $ $ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Deposits $ ••• $ 

Accounts Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 

Reserved for Debt Service 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ ••. $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Combining Balance Sheet· DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

June30,'2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Advance Land 

Acquisition 

••• $ 

••• $ 

Totals 

June 30, 

2000 

$ 

••• $ 

-- $ 

June 30, 

1999 

-- $ 

••• $ 

••• $ 

Park 

$ 

$ 

-$ 

... s 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Advance Land 

As uisition 

-· $ 

·- $ 

... s 

••• $ 

:rotals 

June 30, 

2000 

$ 

$ 

-- s 

••• $ 

June 30, 

1999 

-- $ 

-$ 

••• $ 

••• $ 

EXHIBITB-1 

TOTALS 

June 30, 

2000 

-- $ 

-- $ 

.•• $ 

-- $ 

June 30, 

1999 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT 8-2 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

Totals Totals 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 

Advance Land June 30, June 30, Advance Land June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

Park Acquisition 2000 1999 Park ~uisition 2000 1999 2000 1999 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes $ --- $ 979,473 $ 979,473 $ 1,257,015 $ --- s 1,107,250 $ 1,107,250 $ 1,077,375 $ 2,086,723 $ 2,334,390 

Total Revenues 979,473 979,473 ~ ] ,Q_)J_ -- 1,107,250 1,107,250 1,077,375 _ 2,086,_723 2,334,390 

Expenditures: 

Principal Retirement 1,860,000 305,000 2,165,000 1,905,000 5,345,000 235,000 5,580,000 5,070,000 7,745,000 6,975,000 

Interest 1,461 ,000 297,089 1,758,089 1,704,21 1 6,202,414 180,807 6,383,221 6,281,752 8,1 41,310 7,985,963 

Fiscal Charges 7,434 3,100 10,534 9,609 13,504 9,199 22,703 202,445 33,237 212,054 

-..l 
Total Expenditures 3,328,434 605,189 3,933,623 3,618,820 ___!!,560,918 425,006 11,985,924 11,554,197 15,919,547 15,173,017 

00 
I 

Excess of Revenues over 

(under) Expenditures (3,328,434) 374,284 (2,954,150) (2,361,805) (11 ,560,918) 682,244 (10,878,674) (I 0,4 76,822) (13,832,824) (12,838,627) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds -- 21 ,000,000 21 ,000,000 

Retirement of Debt - Bond Anticipation Notes (21,000,000) (21,000,000) 

Operating Transfers In (Out) -

Park Funds 3,328,434 3,328,434 2,994,201 11,560,918 11,560,918 10,838,947 14,889,352 13,833,148 

Expendable Trust Funds (374,284) (374,284) (632,396) (682,244) (682,244) (636,905) (1,056,528) (1,269,301 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,328,434 (374,284) 2,954,150 2,361 ,805 11,560,918 (682,244) ~ .878,674 10,202,042 _Q,!)_1,824 12,563,847 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (274,780) (274,780) 

Fund Balances, July I -- -- 274,780 
-----

274,780 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ --- $ --- s --- $ --- s -- $ --- $ --- $ --- $ -=-$ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



New constniction at the South Germantown Recreational Park includes the SoccerPlex indoor soccer fac ili ty, 
outdoor stadium, soccer fie lds and much more. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition, development 
or improvement of parkland and the acquisition or construction of major 
capital facilities other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds and 
the Advance Land Acquisition Expendable Trust Funds. The Commission 
maintains separate Funds for each County. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITC-1 

Combining Balance Sheet· CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

Totals Totals 

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 

ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments s 615, 112 s 6,,059,448 s 17, 141,732 s 20,275,774 s 17,756,844 $ 26,335,222 

Accounts Receivable -· 7,670 1,482,151 900,407 1,482,151 908,077 

Due from County Government 3,822,040 1,487,683 3,822,040 1,487,683 

Due from Other Governments 1,628,481 1,572,446 5,029,416 6,133,790 6,657,897 7,706,236 

Total Current Assets $ 6,065.633 $ 9.127,247 $ 23,653.299 s 27.309,971 $ 29,718,932 $ 36,437,218 

00 LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
0 
I 

Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable $ 1,822,989 $ 1,843,158 $ 2,948,910 $ 1,191,325 $ 4,771 ,899 $ 3,034.483 

Contract Retainages 1,182,945 586,668 1,327,256 2,706,286 2,510,201 3,292,954 

Deposits -· 19 041 -· 19041 

Total Current Liabilities 3,005,934 2,429,826 4,276,166 3,916,652 7,282,100 6,346,478 

Fund Balances: 

Reserved for Encumbrances 3,059,699 6,697,421 6,780,646 10,413,362 9,840,345 17,110,783 

Unreserved • 

Designated for Projects 12,596,487 12,979,957 12,596,487 12,979,957 

Total Fund Balances 3 ,059,699 6,691i421 19,377,133 23,393,319 22,436,832 30,090,740 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 6,065,633 $ ~ 127.24'7 $ 23,653,299 $ 27,309,971 $ 29,718,932 $ 36,437.218 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITC-2 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 
Totals Totals 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 
Revenues: 

Intergovernmental -
Federal $ $ -- $ 658,321 $ 422, 107 $ 658,321 $ 422, 107 
State 712,628 1,303,56 1 6,630,870 9,049,219 7,343,498 10,352,780 
County ll,o?0,576 4, 118,206 --- 11 ,070,576 4,118,206 
Local 133,022 --- 1,663 134,685 

Interest 142,279 222,881 945,479 2,202,733 1,087,758 2,425,614 
Sale of Land -- -- 156, 185 156, 185 
Miscellaneous 1,036,152 2,125,668 1,036, 152 2,125,668 

Total Revenues 12,058,505 5,644,648 9,272,485 13,955,912 21 ,330,990 19,600,560 

Expenditures: 
I Park Acquisition 485,988 688,170 3,214,035 5,780,788 3,700,023 6,468,958 

00 Park Development 15,377,960 6,950,855 14,408,591 30,947,533 29,786,551 37,898,388 .... 
Total Expenditures 15,863,948 7,639,025 17,622,626 36,728,321 33,486,574 44,367,346 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(under) Expenditures (3,805,443) (1,994,377) (8,350, 141) (22,772,409) (12, 155,584) (24,766,786) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds 7,000,000 -- 7,000,000 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -
General Fund - Park Account, Operating Interest 1,342,434 2,021,218 1,342,434 2,02 1,2 18 
General Fund - Park Account, Development 310,000 290,000 3,742,000 1,447,000 4,052,000 1,737,000 
Expendable Trust Funds 313,266 195,000 35,000 195,000 348,266 
General Fund - Park Account, Interest (142,279) (222,881) (945,479) (2,202,733) ( 1,087,758) (2,425,6 14) 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 167,721 7,380,385 4,333,955 1,300,485 4,501,676 8,680,870 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (3,637,722) 5,386,008 (4,016,186) (21,47 1,924) (7,653,908) (16,085,916) 

Fund Balances, July l 6,697,42 1 1,31 1,413 23,393,319 44,865,243 30,090,740 46,176,656 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ 3,059,699 $ 6,697,421 $ 19,377,133 $ 23,393,319 $ 22,436,832 $ 30,090,740 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



A golfer practices his swing at Northwest Go lf Course driving range. 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for recreational and cultural facilities 
that are operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where 
the Commission's intent is that the costs of providing goods or services to the 
general public will be recovered primarily through user charges. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITD-1 
Combining Balance Sheet - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

June 30, 2000 
PRINCE GEORGE'S 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY COUNTY TOTALS 
Recreational and Cultural Recreational and Cultural 

Facilities Facilities 
Totals Totals 

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 

Asset, 
Current Assets: 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 7,466,527 $ 14,91 1,29'7 s 3,200,695 $ 3,382,974 $ 10,667,222 $ 18,294,271 
Accounts Receivable 28,276 40,043 120,459 16,130 148,735 56,173 
Prepaid Expenses ·- 12,245 12,245 
Inventories, at Cost 740 845 644 060 600,923 532,213 1,341,768 1,176,273 

Total Current Assets 8,235,648 15,595,400 3,934,322 3,931,317 12,169,970 19,526,717 

Fixed Assets, at Cost: 
Land 7,791,328 7,791,328 7,779,131 5,684,643 15,570,459 13,475,971 
Buildings 15,478,818 7,885,468 51,827,601 19,825,666 67,306,419 27,711,134 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 2,862,648 1,647,715 9,889,313 7,630,612 12,751,961 9,278,327 
Machinery and Equipment 4,033,008 3,523,423 3,083,601 2,588,744 7,1 16,609 6,112,167 
Construction in Progress 4,516,525 6,359,896 4,516,525 6,359,896 

34,682,327 27,207,830 72,579,646 35,729,665 107,261,973 62,937,495 
Less - Accumulated Depreciation {5,944,640) {5,020,711) {9,808,022) {8,330,443) {15,752,662) {13,351,154) 

00 Net Fixed Assets 28,737,687 22,187,119 62,771,624 27,399,222 91,509,31 I 49,586,341 w Total Assets s 36,973,335 s 37,782,519 $ 66,705,946 $ 31,330,539 $ 103,679,281 $ 69,113,058 

Liabilities and Equity 

Current Liabilities: 
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds Payable $ 255,000 s 245,000 $ $ $ 255,000 $ 245,000 
Current Portion of Revenue Notes Payable 644,444 190,000 644,444 190,000 
Current Portion of Notes Payable 123,725 123,725 
Accounts Payable 236,057 249,793 1,340,070 139,016 1,576,127 388,809 
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 11 8,098 189,939 101,668 175,825 219,766 365,764 
Accrued Leave 356,613 334,435 419,293 405,703 775,906 740,138 
Interest Payable 145,631 156,337 145,631 156,337 
Revenue Collected in Advance 306 940 233,695 137,220 136,982 444 160 370 677 

Total Current Liabilities 2,062,783 1,722,924 1,998,25 1 857,526 4,061,034 2,580,450 
Revenue Bonds Payable - Net of Current Portion 3,590,244 3,813,18 1 3,590,244 3,813,181 
Revenue Notes Payable - Net of Current Portion 8,765,556 9,410,000 ·- 8,765,556 9,410,000 
Advanced from Advance Land Acquisition Fund -- ·- 3,829,363 1,734,875 3,829,363 1,734,875 

Total Liabilities 14,418,583 14,946,105 5,827,614 2,592,401 20,246,197 17,538,506 

Equity: 
Contributed Capital 3,945,522 3,945,522 60,037,038 26,171,014 63,982,560 30,116,536 
Retained Earnings (Deficit) 18,609,230 18,890,892 841,294 2,567,124 19,450,524 21,458,016 

Total Equity 22,554,752 22,836,414 60,878,332 28,738,138 83,433,084 51,574,552 
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 36,973,335 $ 37,782,519 $ 66,705,946 $ 31,330,539 $ 103,679,281 s 69,113,058 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITD-2 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

PRINCE GEORGE'S 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COUNTY TOTALS 

Recreational and Cultural Recreational and Cultural 
Facilities Facilities 

Totals Totals 
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2000 1999 _1QQQ_ 1999 200Q_ 1999 

Operating Revenues: 
Sales $ 1,244,022 $ 1,322,692 $ 1,456,362 $ 1,409,214 $ 2,700,384 $ 2,731,906 

Charges for Services 8,289,305 7,918,807 2,058,523 2,297,637 10,347,828 10,216,444 

Rentals and Concessions 1,939,150 1,886,437 1,797,521 1,627,928 3,736,671 3,514,365 

Total Operating Revenues 11,472,477 11,127,936 5,312,406 5,334,779 16,784,883 16,462,715 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of Goods Sold 772,699 687,600 900,283 853,700 1,672,982 1,541,300 

Personal Services 4,887,330 4,330,089 3,393,734 3,562,021 8,281,064 7,892,110 

Supplies and Materials 1,823,695 1,129,118 2,399,706 1,011,684 4,223,401 2,140,802 

Communications 102,215 97,894 347,487 241,172 449,702 339,066 

Utilities 496,727 457,289 430,197 272,757 926,924 730,046 

Maintenance 230,811 217,943 499,132 364,799 729,943 582,742 

Contractual Services 782,352 758,452 1,029,083 295,940 1,811,435 1,054,392 

Other Services and Charges 658,321 212,507 1,691,635 329,194 2,349,956 541,701 

Administrative Charges 1,142,448 804,980 661,859 711,929 1,804,307 1,516,909 

I Depreciation 933,098 664 718 1,501,131 990,624 2,434,229 1,655,342 
00 Total Operating Expenses 11 ,829,696 9,360,590 12,854,247 8,633,820 24,683,943 17,994,410 
~ 

Operating Income (Loss) (357,219) 1,767,346 {7,541,841} (3,299,041} (7,899,060} (1 ,531,695} 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest Income 794,436 616,095 278,313 13,620 1,072.749 629,715 

Interest Expense, Net of Amortization {804,879} {592,043} {804,879} (592,043} 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses). net (10,443} 24,052 278,313 13 620 _____lg_870 31.6n 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers {367,662} 1,791,398 {7,263,528} {3,285,421} (7,631,190} (1 ,494,023} 

Operating Transfers In (Out): 
General Fund - Park Account 86,000 86,000 4,988,353 4,520.017 5,074,353 4,606,017 

General Fund - Recreation -- 270,780 550,000 270 780 550,000 

Net Operating Transfers 86,000 86000 5,259,133 5,070,017 5,345,133 5,156,017 

Net Income (Loss) (281,662) 1,877,398 (2,004,395) 1,784,596 (2,286,057) 3,661,994 

Add Depreciation Charged to Contributed Capital 278,565 228,566 ~ 565 228,566_ 

Net Increase (Decrease) In Retained Earnings (281,662) 1,877,398 (1,725,830) 2,013,162 (2,007,492) 3,890,560 

Retained Earnings (Deficit), July I 18,890,892 17,634,614 2,567,124 553,962 21,458,016 18,188,576 

Residual Equity Transfer (Out) {621,120} -- (621,120} 

Retained Earnings (Deficit), June 30 $ 18,609,230 $ 18,890,892 $ 841,294 $ 2,567.124 $ 19,450.524 $ 21.458.016 

TheJ>ci.tes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITD-3 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

PRINCE GEORGE'S 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COUNTY TOTALS 

Recreational and Cultural Rcc:rcational and Cultural 
Facilities Facilities 

Totals Totals 
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
2000 1999 2000 ---1222. 2000 1999 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) $ (3S7,219) $ 1,767,346 $ (7,541,841) $ (3,299,041) $ (7,899,060) $ (1,S31,69S) 

Adjustments to Rcc:oncile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 933,098 664,718 l,SOl,131 990,624 2,434,229 l,6SS,342 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 11,767 (33,854) (104,329) 96,950 (92,562) 63,096 
(Increase) Dcc:rease in Prepaid Expenses - (12,245) -- (12,245) 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost (96,785) 63,467 (68,710) 1,173 (16S,49S) 64,640 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (13,736) (99,976) t,201,0S4 (39,280) 1,187,318 (139,256) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits (71,841) 18,SSI (74, IS7) 20,379 (145,998) 38,930 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 22,178 11,862 13,S90 114,287 3S,768 126,149 
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable (10,706) S3,202 - - (10,706) S3,202 
Increase (Decrease) in Revenue Collected in Advance 73,245 (37,668) 238 SS,722 73,483 180S4 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 490,001 2,407,648 (S108S1269) (2,0S91 I 86) (41S9S1268) 348 462 

Cash Flows from Noncapital financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 86000 86,000 S,2S9,133 s ,0101011 SJ4S1l33 s11S61o11 

00 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital 
VI Financing Activities 86,000 86000 S,2S91133 s,010,011 S,34S,133 S1IS610l7 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition offixcd Assets (7,483,666) (3,959,897) (634,456) (259,016) (8,118,122) (4,218,913) 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable (313,725) (118,398) - - (313,725) (118,398) 
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds (245,000) (265,000) - - (245,000) (26S,OOO) 
Interest Paid (772,816) (559,980) -- - (772,816) (SS9,980) 
Proceeds from Financing -Revenue Notes 6,000,000 -- 6,000,000 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities (8,8 I S,207) t ,096,72S (634,456) (259,016) (9,449,663) 837,709 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Restricted Investments 210,094 191,798 -- 210,094 191,798 
Interest on Investments S841342 424,297 278,313 13,620 862,6SS 437917 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 794 436 616,095 278,313 13 620 1,072,749 629 71S 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,444,nO) 4,206,468 (182,279) 2,76S,43S (7,627,049) 6,971,903 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I 14,911,297 10,704,829 3,382,974 617 S39 18,294,271 11 ,322,368 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 7,466,527 $ 14,911,297 $ 3,200,695 $ 3,382,974 $ 10,667,222 $ 18,294,271 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: 
In fiscal year 1999, fixed assets were transferred from the Mongomery Enterprise Fund to the General Fixed Asset Account Group. 
The net book value of fixed assets at the time of the residual equity transfer was $621,120. 

In fiscal year 2000, fixed assets with a historical cost of approximately $34,14S,000 and $2,094,000 were transferred from the General 
fixed Asset Account Group lo the Prince George's Enterprise fund and the Prince George's Advance Land Acquisition Expendable 
Trust Fund, respcc:tivety, for the Sports and Learning Complex. 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 



Newton White Mansion in Mitchellville, Maryland, is a popular site for weddings and other special events. 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the consolidated financing of 
certain goods or services provided to other Commission funds on a cost­
reimbursement basis. 

Capital Equipment Funds 

The Montgomery County Capital Equipment Fund is used to account for the 
acquisition of equipment through the use of tax exempt financing and the leasing 
of the equipment to other Commission funds. 

Executive Office Building Fund 

The Prince George's County Executive Office Building Fund is used to account 
for the cost of operating the Executive Office Building and was used to account 
for the renovation costs of that building which was acquired in February of 1992. 

Employee Benefits Funds 

The Employee Benefits Funds are used to account for the costs related to 
employees' life and health insurance coverage, and the flexible spending 
program. The Fund is also used to charge various programs and projects in the 
governmental funds for annual leave earned and estimates of sick leave that will 
be taken in order to better measure their costs. 

Risk Management Funds 

The Risk Management Funds are used to account for the activity related to 
general liability, property damage, and workers compensation. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITE-1 

Combining Balance Sheet· INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
June30,2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

TOTALS TOTALS 
Exec.utive 

Capital Employee Risk June 30, June 30, Office Employee Risk June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

Egui~ment Benefits Management 2000 1999 Building Benefits Management 2000 _ 1999 2000 1999_ 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ $ 7,118,091 $ 4,700,789 $ 11,818,880 S 16,256,696 S 147,798 $ 6,881,087 $ 7,826,695 $ 14,855,580 $ 16,547,504 $ 26,674,460 S 32,804,200 

Accounts Receivable 874,000 295 874,295 39,879 874,000 295 874,295 295 1,748,590 40,174 

Due from Other Funds 841,890 841,890 - 841,890 

Due from County Government 31,138 31,138 15,550 31,137 31,137 15,550 62,275 31,100 

Deposits and Other 12,917 12 300 25,217 60,983 12 918 12,300 25,218 60,984 50435 121,967 

Total Current Assets 8,005,008 5,586,412 13,591 ,420 16,373, 108 147 798 7,768,005 7,870,427 15,786,230 16,624,333 29,377,650 32,997,441 

Fixed Assets, at Cost: 
Land 748,497 -- -- 748,497 748,497 748,497 748,497 

Buildings 102,469 102,469 102,469 2,649,865 2,649,865 2,649,865 2,752,334 2,752,334 

Machinery and Equipment 13,816,470 44,056 13,860,526 12,288,108 26,326 44,056 70,382 70,382 13,930,908 12,358,490 

Less-Accumulated Depreciation (8,380,753} (26,023} (8,406,776} (7,122,085) (698,163} (26,023} (724,186} (610,319} (9,130,962) (7,732,404} 

Net Fixed Assets 5,538,186 -- 18033 5,556,219 5,268,492 2,726,525 18,033 2,744,558 2,858,425 8,300,777 8,126,917 

Total Assets $ 5,538,186 $ 8,005,008 S 5,604,445 $ 19,147,639 S 21,641,600 $ 2,874,323 $ 7,768,005 $ 7,888,460 $ 18,530,788 S 19,482,758 $ 37,678,427 $ 41,124,358 

I 

00 LIAB[LITIES AND EQUITY 
-....} 

I 

Current Liabilities: 
Current Portion of Notes Payable $ 543,294 $ $ $ 543,294 $ 1,400,353 $ 96,070 $ $ s 96,070 $ 89,294 $ 639,364 $ 1,489,647 

Accounts Payable 130,109 41 ,270 203 171,582 196,020 577 41 ,270 203 42,050 58,351 213,632 254,371 

Claims Payable 391,353 1,324,150 1,715,503 1,411,752 391,353 2,982,277 3,373,630 2,958,054 5,089,133 4,369,806 

Accrued Salaries and Benefits 79,107 3,944 83,051 152,870 2,336 106,041 3,943 112,320 224,194 195,371 377,064 

Accrued Leave 643,000 22,168 665,168 679,017 9,173 783,000 22,168 814,341 820,947 1,479,509 1,499,964 

Estimate of Incurred but 
Unreported Claims 403,500 921,277 1,324,777 1,516,393 403,500 2,074,917 2,478,417 2,475,709 3,803,194 3,992,102 

Due to Other Funds 841 890 -- 841,890 841,890 

Total Current Liabilities 1,515,293 1,558,230 2,271 ,742 5,345,265 5,356,405 108,156 1,725,164 5,083,508 6,916,828 6,626,549 12,262,093 11,982,954 

Notes Payable - Net of Current Portion 1,606,290 1,606,290 2,149,584 1,796,641 1,796,641 1,892,711 3,402,931 4,042,295 

Total Liabilities 3,121,583 1,558,230 2,271,742 6,951,555 7,505,989 1,904,797 1,725,164 5,083,508 8,713,469 8,519,260 15,665,024 16,025,249 

Equity: 
Contributed Capital 525,128 525,128 525,128 -- 525,128 525,128 

Retained Earnings -
Reserved for Future Claims 4,098,287 766,000 4,864,287 3,981,658 3,694,349 1,371,000 5,065,349 3,788,750 9,929,636 7,770,408 

Unreserved 1,891,475 2,348,491 2,566,703 6,806,669 9,628,825 969,526 2,348,492 1,433,952 4,751 ,970 7 174,748 11 ,558,639 16,803,573 

Total Retained Earnings 1,891,475 6446778 3,332,703 11,670,956 13,610,483 969,526 6,042,841 2,804,952 9,817,3 19 10,963,498 21,488,275 24,573,981 

Total Equity 2,416,603 6,446,778 3,332,703 12,196,084 14,13S,61 I 969,526 6,042,841 2,804,952 9,817,319 10,963,498 22,013,403 25,099,109 

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 5,538.186 $ 8,005,008 S 5,604,445 $ 19,147,639 $ 21,641,600 $ 2,874,323 $ 7,768,005 $ 7,888,460 $ I 8,530,788 $ 19,482,758 S 37,678,427 $ 41,124,358 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITE-2 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings • INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 
Totals Totals 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
Executive 

Capital Employee Risk June 30, June 30, Office Employee Risk June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
~uiement Benefits Management 2000 1999 Building Benefits Management 2000 1999 2000 1999 

Operating Revenues: 

Charges for Services $ 1,433,204 $ 13,113,537 $ 790,000 $ 15,336,741 $ 15,986,192 $ 718,500 $ 13,969,134 $ 2,336,000 $ 17,023,634 $ 16,335,603 S 32,360,375 $ 32,321,795 
Claim Recoveries - -· 70,186 70,186 Sl 1SSO - - 134,809 134,809 S612SO 204,995 107,800 

Total Operating Revenues 1,433,204 13,113,537 860,186 15,406,927 16,037,742 718,500 13,969,134 2,470,809 17,158,443 16,391,853 32,565,370 _&429,S9S 

Operating Expenses: 

Personal Services -· 4,428,535 212,053 4,640,588 4,135,785 116,267 5,107,778 212,065 5,436,110 S,S16,S68 10,076,698 9,652,353 
Supplies and Materials 199,716 -· 14,100 213,816 138,222 31,265 - 17,239 48,504 48,295 262,320 186,517 
Contractual Services· 

Montgomery County Self 
Insurance Fund, Net - - 693,160 693,160 670,670 - - 1,981,021 1,981,021 2,176,703 2,674,181 2,847,373 

Other - - - - 10,910 - ·- - - 10,911 - 21,821 
Claims Incurred - 3,209,786 - 3,209,786 3,141,332 - 3,209,787 - 3,209,787 3,141,332 6,419,573 6,282,664 00 

00 Insurance - 3,988,170 S,86S 3,994,035 3,710,453 - 3,988,170 315,068 4,303,238 3,720,781 8,297,273 7,431,234 
Other Services and Charges 23,221 39,393 174,313 236,927 312,856 209,759 39,392 180,811 429,962 597,664 666,889 910,520 
Depreciation 1,414,215 - 6,116 1,420,331 1,311,885 107,750 - 6116 113,866 250,658 1,534,197 1,562,543 

Total Operating Expenses 1,637,152 11,665,884 1,105,607 14,408,643 13,432,113 _____fil,~1 - 12,345,127 2,712,320 15,522,488 15,462,912 29,931,131 28,895,025 

Operating Income (Loss) (203,948) 1,447,653 (245,421) 998,284 2,605,629 253,459 1,624,007 (241,SI I) 1,63S,9SS 928,941 2,634,239 3,534,570 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest Income 24,317 3SS,823 297,796 677,936 745,232 S,786 373,440 523,833 903,059 715,316 1,580,995 1,460,548 
Interest Expense (79,731) ·- - p 9,731) (105,648) (146,027) - ·- (146,027) (152,420) (225,758) (258,068) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (SS,414) 355,823 297,796 598,205 639,584 (140,241) 373,440 523,833 757,032 562,896 1,355,237 1,202,480 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (259,362) 1,803,476 S2,31S 1,596,489 3,245,213 113,218 1,997,447 282,322 2,392,987 1,491,837 3,989,476 4,737,050 

Operating Transfers In (Out) : 
Parle Fund - - - - ·- - - - - 1,000,000 -· 1,000,000 
lnterfund Transfers ln(Out} - - l,S7S l,S7S - - - (1 ,575) (1,575) - - -Net Operating Transfers - - 1,S7S l ,S7S - - - (1,575) (1,575) 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 

Net Income (Loss) (259,362) 1,803,476 S3,9SO 1,598,064 3,245,213 113,218 1,997,447 280,747 2,391,412 2,491,837 3,989,476 S,731,0SO 
Add Depreciation Charge to Contributed Capital - - - - - - - - - 4,860 - __ 4,860 

Net Increase (Decrease) In Retained Earnings (259,362) 1,803,476 S3,9SO 1,598,064 3,245,213 113,218 1,997,447 280,747 2,391,412 2,496,697 3,989,476 5,741,910 

Retained Earnings, July I 2,150,837 8,180,893 3,278,753 13,610,483 10,365,270 856,308 7,582,985 2,524,205 10,963,498 8,466,801 24,573,981 18,832,071 
Residual Equity Transfer Out - (3,537,591) - (3,537,591) - - (3,537,591) - p ,S371S9I) - (7,075,182) 
Retained Earnings, June 30 $ 11891,475 $ 6,446,778 $ 3,332,703 $ ll .670.956 $ 13,610,483 $ 969,526 $ 6.042t841 $ 2,804,952 $ 9,817.319 $ 10,963,498 S 21 ,488.275 $ 24,573,981 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND~TIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND Pt.ANNING COMMISSION 
BXHIBITB-3 

Ccmbini,. S1atement of Cash Flows - INTERNAL SBR.VlCB FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Y- Ended June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE OEOROB'S COUNTY TOTALS 
TOTALS TOTALS 

Y-Ended Y-Ended Y-Ended 
Elccculi~ 

Capital Employee Risk June 30, June 30, Office Employee Rilit June 30, June30, June 30, June 30, 
Equipnial& Bcndits Mal-lH'll 2000 1999 Builditw Benefits Mal••1..:nt 2000 1999 2000 1999 

c..h Flows from~ Actirities: 
~ Jnoome (Loa} s (203.948) s 1,447,653 S (24S.4ll} S 99a.214 S 2,605.629 S 2S3,4S9 S 1,624,007 S (241.Sll) S l,63S,9SS S 921,941 S 2,634,239 S 3.S34.S70 

Adj\lltmclna lo Reconcile~"- (Lem) lo 
Net Ceah Ptorided (Uied) by Opaaq Admtica: 

Dqnciaticn 1,414,llS - 6,116 1,420,331 1,311,US 107,7.SO - 6,116 113,166 lS0.651 1.S34.197 1,562.S43 a.. in Aads and Liabililica: 
Cma-) ~ in.Accowu R~le 39,Sl4 (874,000) - (834,416) (36,972) - (174,000) - (174,000) 13S (1,701,416) (36,837) 
Cma-) ~ in Due Frcm Odw Funds - - (841,890) (141,890) l,4S2,S87 - - - - - (141 ,190) l,4Sl,S87 
<ma-)~ inDuefromColnyO--- - - (IS.SIi) (IS.SSI) 44,583 - - (1S.Sa6) (IS,Sa6) 44)14 (31 ,174) 89,167 
<ma-)~ inDq,oaiaandOdw - 36,403 (636) 35,767 (SJ,177) - 36,403 (637) 3S,166 (SJ,171) 71,S33 {10'2,3SS) 
~ ~) in.Accowu Payable (JS,132) (3,634) (4,972) (24,431) (64,831) (4,259) (3,634) (8.409) (16,302) 14,466 (40,740) (S0,36S) 
~~)inC..l'aylblc - 391,3S3 (87,602) 303,751 (:l9,T16) - 391,3S3 24,223 41S,S16 713,112 719,327 614,106 
'--~) inAcc:Ned s.Jaria and a-fits - (63,995) (S,824) (69,819) 13,198 (3,284) (102,76") (S,126) (II 1,174) 3S,286 (111,693) 49,114 
~~)in A,cc:rued 1- - (14,000) ISi (13,849) ("40,SJI) 244 (7,000) I.SO (6,606) (41,"404) (20,4SS) (11,922) 
~~)in Bacimltc o{lncum,d 
tu UnportedC-- - (237,056) 4S,4"40 (191,616) (llS,831) - (237,056) 239,764 2,701 130,350 (111.901) {ISS,481) 
~~)in DueloOdwFundt 141,890 - - 841,890 (114Sl,S87) - - - - - 841,890 (! 14Sl,S87) 

Net c..h Ptorided (Uied) by Op,,nu,w Admtica 'b_07S1'J® ~724 (I, I .S0,226) 1,608,407 3,~883 3S31910 127~ (1,71§} 1,179,S03 'b_OlS,720 '!:,.717,910 S,492,603 

Cash Flows from Ncncapital F~ Activities: 
Opaaq Tnns!cn In (Ow) lo Odw Funds - - 1,S7S 1.S7S - - - (l,S7S) (l,S7S) 1,000.000 - 1,000.000 

I Resicbl Bquityrr-fer Ow - Q.S37,S91) - (3,S37,s91) - - Q,S37,S91) - Q,S37J91) - Q,07S1112) 
00 Net c..h Ptorided (Uied) by Nc,ncapital \0 

FimncqActivities - Q.S371.S91} IJ7S Q1S3610I§} - - Q,S37J91} {IJ7~ Q,S39,166) 1,000.000 Q.07S,182) 1,000,000 

CUh Flows from Capital and R.clated F~ Activities: 
Acquiailion of Fixed AINU (l,708,0S9) - - (J,708,0S9) (1,270,313) - - - - (2.S,762) (l,70S,OS9) (1,296,075) 
Principal Paid on Noc. Payable (I, "400,353) - - (I, "400,353) (967,342) (89,293) - - (89,293) (90,422) (1,489,646) {J,OS7,764) 
her"Cllt Paid on Nota Payable (79,731) - - (79,731) (JOS,648) (146,027) - - (146,027) {152,420) (225,751) {2S8.061) 
Proceeds from Firiaicq - Notes Payable - -
Net Cash Provided (U-1) by Capital and 

- - ;100,000 - - - - - - 2,100,000 

Rellled Firiaicq Activities (3,188,143} - - (31I881143} 456,697 (23S,320} - - ms,320) ~,604) Q,423,463) 188,093 

Caoh Flows from ~ Activities: 
her"Cllt on &-.ts 24JJ7 3SS,823 291(196 677,2M 74S,232 

Net c..h Ptorided (U-1) by 
S786 373 4"40 S23,133 90310S9 71SJ16 IJ80199S J,460J4! 

~Adivitiea 24,317 3SS,823 m,196 677,936 74S1232 S,786 373,4"40 523,833 903,0S9 71SJ16 1,SI0,99S 1,460,548 

Nc:t ina-~) in Cash and c..h Equivalents (1,087,917) (2,499,044) (8S0,8SS) (4,07,816) 4,668,812 124,376 (2,336,842) S20,S42 (1,691,924) 3,472,432 (6,129,7"40) 8,141,244 

Caoh and c..h llqumlcna. July I 1,087,217 9,617,135 SJSJ,644 1~256,696 I 11Sl7,884 23,422 9J17,929 7~1S3 J~S47,S04 13,075,072 32,804,200 24,66'!:,_956 
c..handCaohEquifflcra. June 30 s - s 7,111,091 s 4.700,789 s 'UJUIO s 16.256.696 s 147,198 s 6.111,011 S 1826.69S S IOSS.SIO S l6,,S47J04 S 26,674.460 S 3t804.200 

The noees lo the fuwlcill ll8l.cma1ls ac an intqp:'al pct of this suument. 



Built in 1799, Snow Hill Manor is used as a rental fac ility for public and private functions 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Commission in a 
trustee capacity or as an agent for employees, individuals, private organizations, 
other governmental units, and/or other funds. 

Pension Trust Fund - Employees ' Retirement Fund 

The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for all activities of the Employees' 
Retirement System including accumulation of resources for, and payment of, 
retirement annuities and/or other benefits and the administrative costs of 
operating the system. 

Agency Fund 

The Agency Fund is used to account for the State retirement funds of 
participating Commission employees and retirees. 

Expendable Trust Funds 

The Expendable Trust Funds are used to account for funds whose principal and 
interest must be expended in accordance with their designated purposes. The 
Expendable Trust Funds are also used to account for the Prefunded Retirees' 
Medical Insurance Benefits. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITF-1 

Combining Balance Sheet • ALL FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES 

June 30, 2000 

PENSION 

TRUST AGENCY 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS FUND FUND TOTALS 

Maryland 

Montaom~ Count~ Prince Georae's Countx Retiree Employees' State 

Advance Land June 30. Advance I.and Public Recreation Historic June 30, Insurance Retirement Retirement June 30, June 30, 

A£guisition Other 2000 ~uisition Contributions -~~vitics Sites 2000 I IS Fund ~ tern 2000 1999 

ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 3,331,069 $ 4,410,467 S 7,741,S36 s 7,34S,820 S 4,674,791 $ 3,322,36S $ 416,399 $ IS,7S9,37S S 19,182 $ -· s 2,930,119 s 26,450,212 s 24,868,317 

Cash and Markeuble Securities - - - - -· 7,940,912 SS7,793,374 ·- S6S,734,286 S47,492,789 

Accounts Receivable - ·- ·- 898 14,142 ·- IS,040 - 2,126,380 - 2,141,420 2,081,373 

Deposits and Other - ---- -· - - ·- - 18627 - 18,627 142 136 

Total Current Assets 3,331,069 4,410,467 7,741,S36 7,34S,820 4,67S,689 3,336,S07 416,399 IS,774,41S 7,960,094 SS9,938,381 2,930,119 S94,344,S4S S74,S84,61S 

Restricted As.sets • 

Land Advanced to Enterprise Fund 3,829,363 -- -- 3,829,363 - ·- - 3,829,363 t,734,87S 

I.and Held for Transfer 2S,609,640 -- 2S,609,640 12,148,271 - ·- 12,148,271 -· - - 37,7S7,911 38,912,40S 

Other ---- - 431,381 - 431 ,381 -· - 431 ,381 418,291 

Total As.sets s 28.940.709 $ 4410467 S 33
1
3Sl

1
176 S 23.323.4S4 S Sl07070S 3 336 S07 S 416399 S 32.1 83.430 S 7.960,094 SS9

1
938.381 S 2 930 119 S 636.363.200 S 61S,6S0.1 86 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
I 

IQ 
Liabilities: ,_ 

Accounts Payable s ·- s 4,398 $ 4,398 s - $ 33,392 S 83,74S S J,83S $ I 18,972 S -$ 79,S84,378 S 2.,930,119 $ 82.637,867 $ 99,423,286 

Accrued Liabilities - 1,166 1,166 - 2,431 S4, J42 226 S6,799 -· ·- - S7,96S S7,0S9 

Due to County Government -- 3,014 3,014 - ·- - - - ·- - 3,014 3,664 

Deposits and Deferred Revenue 31S311824 31SJ11824 I 212 860 8,000 1,220,860 - 4 7S2,684 416S8,230 

Total Current Liabilities -· 3,540,402 3,S40,402 -· 1,248,683 137,887 10,061 1,396,631 -· 79,S84,378 2,930,119 87,4St,SJO 104, 142,239 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for I.and Held for Transfer 2S,609,640 - 2S,609,640 IS,977,634 -· ·- IS,977,634 41,S87,274 40,647,280 

Reserved for Pension Benefits ·- - - -- - ·- 480,3S4,003 -- 480,3S4,003 4S3,3SO, 152 

Reserved for Benefits -- -- -- ·- - ·- 7,960,094 -- 7,960,094 

Unreserved -

Designated for Trust Activities 3.331,069 870 06S 4,201, 134 7
1
34S

1
820 3 8S8 387 3,198.620 406,338 14 809,16S - -· - 19.010,299 17

1
SI01SIS 

Total Fund Balances 28 940 709 87006S 29,810,774 23,32314S4 3 8S8 387 3, 198.620 406,338 30,786,799 7 960,094 480
1
3S4

1
003 - S481911,670 Sl1

1
S071947 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances s 28 940 709 $ 4410467 S 33.3Sl 1176 S 23
1
323

1
4S4 $ St07070S 3 336 S07 $ 416399 $ 32. 183.430 S 7960094 $ SS9

1
938

1
381 $ 2.930.119 $ 636.363,200 $ 61S

1
650

1
186 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pan of this statetr\C1\l 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITF-2 

Combinina Swement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. EXPEND ABU! TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year En.dee! June 30, 2000 

TOTALS 
Mon!&~ Coun!X Prince ~e's Coun!): Rdiree Year Ended 

Advance Land June 30, Advance Land Public Recreation Historic June 30, Insurance June 30, June 30, 
A~sition Od,e, 2000 A~isition Contriboltions Activities ___fil!g_ 2000 IIS 2000 _ 1_m 

Revenues: 
lnteraovemmental . 

Cow,ty $ - $ - $ - $ - s - s - s - $ - $ - s - s 2,7SO 
Od,e, - - - - ·- 7,063 - 7,063 - 7,063 20,0S6 

Charges for Services - - - - - 331,600 - 331,600 - 331,600 291,19S 
Recrwion Activities - - - - - 3,914,6SS - 3,914,6SS - 3,914,6SS 3,933,'46 
Interest ISS,176 212,972 361,848 310,S36 111,300 149,401 21,02S 732,262 378,033 1,479,143 930,032 
Investment Earnings - - - - - - - - S42,021 S42,021 -Contriboltions - -· - - SS6,924 - 124,70S 611,629 - 681,629 72S,129 
Misull ........ - 314 272 314 272 - - --1.!Q.lli. 110,221 - 424493 300610 

Total Revenues ISS 176 S27 244 683 120 310 S36 731224 4,Sl2~0 14S 730 S 777430 9l00S4 7,J&0,604 ~611 

Expenditures: 
Current· 
Cultural and Recrwional -· - - ·- - 4,105,341 - 4,IOS,341 - 4,IOS,341 4,581 ,757 
Miscellaneous Expendable Trust Activities 269 864 269 864 - Sl2444 --™ll. 607 09S 3S 142 912101 871821 
Total Expenditures -· 269 864 269 864 - S~444 4,IOS,341 --™ll. 4 712436 JS 142 S,017,442 ____J,lli.~71 

Excess of Reven~ over 
(under) Expenditures ISS876 2S7 380 413 2S6 380 S36 215 780 407 S99 ~ I 064 994 884 912 ;363,162 ___lli.1!0 

Other Financing &,woes (Uses): 
Op«aling Transfen In (Out)· 

IO 
General Fund • Pvk ACC<>Wlt - - - 100,000 - - - 100,000 - 100,000 (S3,2S9) 

N Debt Service Fund • Advance Land Acquisition 374,214 - 374,214 682,244 - - - 612,244 - l,OS6,S21 1,269.301 
Trust Fund - - - - (31,663) (3,2S6) 34,919 - - - -Capital Projects ,und - - - - (19S,OOO} (19S,OOO) - (195,000} (341,266} 
Total Other f"uuncing &,wees (Uses) 374 214 - 374 214 71~44 (226,663} (3,256} ~ S87244 - 961 S21 __ 16_7,176 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financina Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and 
Other Financing Uses S30,160 2S7,380 787,S40 1,162,780 (10,183) 404,343 9S,991 l,6S2,238 814,912 3,324,690 1,617,816 

Fund Balances, July I, as restated 28,410,549 612,685 29,023,234 22,160,674 3,169,270 2.794.2n 310,340 29,134,561 - Sl ,IS7,79S S6,S39,909 
Resi<klal Equity r ..... r., 1n - - - - 7 01S 112 7,07S,112 -Fund Balances, June 30 s 28 940 709 S ___ 170,06$ S 2981on4 s 23 323 4S4 s 3 8S8 311 $ ~ S 406 338 $ 30786 799 S 7 960 094 S 61 SS7667 s 58 U779' 

The notes ., the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

ASSETS 

Cash and Marketable Securities 

Total Current Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - AGENCY FUND 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

MARYLAND STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM FUND 

July 1, 

1999 Additions Deductions 

s 228872659 s 244!703 s 202,243 

s 2,887,659 s 244 703 $ 202.243 

s 228872659 s 244z703 s 202!243 

s 2,887.659 s 244 703 s 202,243 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 

EXHIBIT F-3 

June 30, 

2000 

s 2,930, 11 9 

$ 2,930,119 

s 21930111 9 

s 2,930,119 



Kids learn aquatic biology at the Meadowside Nature Center. 

GENERAL ACCOUNT GROUPS 

General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for fixed assets of the 
Commission, other than those accounted for in the proprietary and fiduciary 
funds. 

NOTE: A General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is used to account for 
all long-term obligations of the Commission except those accounted for in the 
proprietary funds. This Account Group is presented in Exhibit 1 of the General 
Purpose Financial Statements and is described in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

General Fixed Assets: 

Land 

Buildings and Improvements 

Machinery and Equipment 

Construction in Progress 

Total General Fixed Assets 

Investment in General Fixed Assets From: 

Capital Project Funds -

General Obligation Bonds 

Intergovernmental 

General Fund Revenues 

Contributions 

Total Investments in General Fixed Assets 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Sources 

June30, 2000 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Montgomery 

County 

120,S19,613 

87,712,305 

8,526,893 

S,83S,362 

222,594,173 

91,212,S20 

52,876,046 

13,819,484 

64,686,123 

222,594,173 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Prince 

George's 

County 

9S,S73,JS3 

153,228,741 

23,763,298 

14,S39,S99 

287,104,791 

121,065,399 

99,336,239 

42,SS2,JOJ 

24, ISl,OS2 

287,104,791 

EXHIBITG-1 

TOTAL 

$ 216,092,766 

240,941,046 

32,290, 191 

20,374,961 

$ 509,698,964 

$ 212,277,919 

152,212,285 

56,371 ,585 

88,837,175 

$ 509,698,964 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITG-2 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets -
By Function and Activity 

June 30, 2000 

CQMMISSIQN TOT AL 
Buildings Machinery 

and and 
Function and Activity Total Land Improvements Equipment 

General Government s 539,326 s s 83,744 s 455,582 
Planning and Zoning 6,970,751 52,138 1,908,170 5,010,443 
Parks 481,813,926 216,040,628 238,949,132 26,824, 166 

Total General Fixed Assets 
Allocated to Functions 489,324,003 s 216,092,766 s 240,941,046 s 32,290,191 

Construction in Progress 20,374,961 
Total General Fixed Assets s 509,698,964 

MONIGOMERY CQlJNTY 

General Government s 287,939 s s 42,885 s 245,054 
Planning and Zoning 3,507,670 52,138 1,901,988 1,553,544 
Parks 212,963,202 120,467,475 85,767,432 6,728,295 

Total General Fixed Assets 
Allocated to Functions 216,758,811 s 120,519,613 s 87,712,305 s 8,526,893 

Construction in Progress 5,835,362 
Total General Fixed Assets s 222,594.173 

l!RINCE GEQRGE'S CQlJNTY 

General Government s 251,387 s s 40,859 s 210,528 
Planning and Zoning 3,463,081 6,182 3,456,899 
Parks 268,850,724 95,573,153 153,181,700 20,095,871 

Total General Fixed Assets 
Allocated to Functions 272,565,192 s 95,573,153 s 153,228,741 s 23,763,298 

Construction in Progress 14,539,599 
Total General Fixed Assets s 287,104,791 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this schedule. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

COMMISSION TOTAL 

Function and Actiyity 

General Government 
Planning and Zoning 
Parks 
Construction in Progress 

Total General Fixed Assets 

MONTC',QMERY COUNJY 

General Government 
Planning and Zoning 
Parks 
Construction in Progress 

Total General Fixed Assets 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

General Government 
Planning and Zoning 
Parks 
Construction in Progress 

Total General Fixed Assets 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets -
By Function and Activity 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

§ 

~ 

General 
Fixed 
Assets 

July I, 1999 

482,394 S 
6,610,702 

461,507,486 
49,297,468 

517,898,050 S 

260,572 s 
3,406,368 

204,501,823 
8,170,996 

216,339,759 s 

~21,~22 ~ 
3,i94,n4 

1~1,gp~.~~3. 
41.126.472 

391,558,291 s 

Additions 

92,238 $ 
393,985 

55,548,790 
18,769,644 
74,804,657 $ 

47,369 s 
135,238 

8,848,426 
4,361,053 

13,392.086 $ 

44.~69 i 
7~M47 

4p,79{),3§4 
14.408.591 
61,412,571 s 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Deductions 

EXHIBITG-3 

General 
Fixed 
Assets 

June 30, 2000 

35,306 S 539,326 
33,936 6,970,751 

35,242,350 481,813,926 
47,692,151 20,374,961 
83,003,743 S = ~50~9£;;.6,G:98~,9~6~4 

20,002 s 287,939 
33,936 3,507,670 

387,047 212,963,202 
6,696,687 5,835,362 
7,137,672 s 222,594.173 

l~,~04 $ ~51,~87 
3,463,081 

34,855,303 268,850, '724 
40.995.464 14,539.599 
75,866,071 s 287,104.791 



• PART III . 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

Picnickers enjoy a day at Hadley's Playground, a state-of-the art accessible facility at Falls Road Local Park. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-1 

General Governmental Expenditures by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Culture-Recreation Park 
Planning Acquisition 

Fiscal General And Park And 
Year Government Zoning Operations Recreation Develo~ment Debt Service Total 
1991 $ 4,338,911 $ 11,116,353 $ 31,705,573 $ 5,437,799 $ 11,634,551 $ 4,057,435 $ 68,290,622 
1992 4,574,169 11,135,877 31 ,612,455 6,059,657 9,151,271 5,247,121 67,780,550 
1993 4,351,130 11,166,541 32,488,999 6,395,826 9,000,480 4,916,273 68,319,249 
1994 4,753,717 11,379,693 32,231,027 6,669,068 7,668,748 4,077,257 66,779,510 
1995 4,663,950 12,029,701 35,561,927 7,947,953 7,381,419 3,905,317 71,490,267 
1996 4,493,900 11,726,301 37,112,446 8,707,367 6,040,622 4,329,544 72,410,180 
1997 4,949,621 13,067,495 38,060,834 9,347,189 12,319,049 4,180,980 81,925,168 
1998 4,985,152 12,503,437 39,019,404 10,913,409 9,261,163 3,595,621 80,278,186 
1999 4,984,274 13,109,778 42,033,957 9,360,590 7,639,025 3,618,820 80,746,444 
2000 5,068,159 13,000,742 41 ,604,208 11,829,696 15,863,948 3,933,623 91 ,300,376 

IO ERINQE GEORGE'S QO!.!NTY IO 
I 

Culture-Recreation Park 
Planning Acquisition 

Fiscal General And Park And 
Year Government Zoning Operations Recreation Develo!;!ment Debt Service Total 
1991 $ 4,166,097 $ 10,595,275 $ 31,291,740 $ 26,068,850 $ 16,516,417 $ 5,902,918 $ 94,541,297 
1992 4,683,976 10,686,633 31,042,743 26,968,510 19,024,608 8,439,314 100,845,784 
1993 4,730,838 10,863,393 34,576,857 28,372,252 9,249,302 8,944,217 96,736,859 
1994 5,316,425 12,047,360 35,388,157 30,814,415 19,643,068 9,856,836 113,066,261 
1995 4,973,592 13,245,607 38,742,712 35,215,012 21,344,005 9,861,953 123,382,881 
1996 5,217,449 12,881,808 38,032,695 35,196,607 12,590,746 10,133,399 114,052,704 
1997 5,611,371 13,928,468 41 ,269,238 34,819,087 14,151,322 9,027,160 118,806,646 
1998 5,609,422 14,024,336 41,782,331 36,293,297 17,643,444 11,852,306 127,205,136 
1999 5,946,352 14,243,529 45,907,274 37,825,764 36,728,321 11,554,197 152,205,437 
2000 5,719,483 13,770,821 45,069,874 42,522,884 17,622,626 11,985,924 136,691,612 

Note: Includes General, Capital Projects, Debt Service and Enterprise Funds. Debt Service in Prince George's 
County includes Park Acquisition and Development Bonds, Series F-2, recorded in the Property Management 
Internal Service Fund (retired in fiscal year 1993). Enterprise Funds which are primarily recreational facilities and 
activities are included in Recreation. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLET-2 

General Revenues by Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

General 

Fiscal Property Inter- Charges for Interest Obligation 

Year Taxes GQ~emrneotal Services Earnings Other Total Bonds Sold 

1991 $ 50,258,186 $ 5,694,105 $ 4,557,480 $ 1,935,741 $ 3,858,132 $ 66,303,644 $ 

1992 49,080,1 13 5,601 ,784 5,424,367 1,227,119 3,693,555 65,026,938 6,000,000 

1993 51 ,323,456 2,335,696 6,092,012 952,190 3,560,859 64,264,213 

1994 52,734,344 3,199,677 6,182,389 971 ,811 3,461,964 66,550,185 5,500,000 (1) 

1995 55,233,140 6,974,552 7,358,834 1,528,618 3,945,300 75,040,444 5,000,000 

1996 53,880,270 5,424,794 7,614,645 1,527,593 3,969,092 72,416,394 8,700,000 (2) 

1997 57,612,812 6,654,626 7,827,378 1,231,641 4,227,264 77,553,721 

1998 60,270,773 6,797,726 9,120,287 1,586,354 4,361,403 82,136,543 

1999 60,270,408 5,921 ,195 9,134,201 1,670,534 4,41 0,413 81,406,751 7,000,000 

2000 62,448,568 12,324,577 9,446,610 1,747,465 4,432,045 90,399,265 
I -0 PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 0 General 

Fiscal Property Inter- Charges for Interest Obligation 

Year Taxes GQ~emrneotal Services Earnings Other Total Bonds Sold 

1991 $ 65,044,486 $ 3,537,612 $ 5,801 ,218 $ 2,653,600 $ 4,511,377 $ 81,548,293 $ 

1992 75,470,556 4,191 ,625 6,332,097 1,502,561 5,526,574 93,023,413 23,000,000 

1993 85,998,641 4,032,880 6,468,725 1,896,368 5,678,686 104,075,300 15,250,000 

1994 91 ,143,535 4,331,934 6,622,486 2,376,165 4,426,002 108,900,122 14,500,000 (1) 

1995 92,571,349 7,308,602 6,988,014 3,733,213 6,323,419 116,924,597 

1996 94,857,674 1,933,128 6,731 ,893 3,653,354 5,189,727 112,365,776 30,025,000 (2) 

1997 96,816,650 5,360,060 7,106,102 4,217,988 10,581,819 124,082,619 33,000,000 

1998 98,538,298 2,125,267 7,402,645 5,875,336 5,231,154 119,172,700 28,325,000 (2) 

1999 101 ,308,740 10,368,201 7,496,543 5,208,609 7,158,655 131 ,540,748 21,000,000 (3) 

2000 103,640,212 8,130,897 7,414,320 4,891,099 6,559,164 130,635,692 

Note: Includes General, Capital Projects, Debt Service and Enterprise Funds. 
(1) Issued to retire Bond Anticipation Notes 
(2) Refunding Bonds 
(3) Permanent financing of bond anticipation notes 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-3 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Prior Years 
Taxes 

Penalties Percent of 
Current Percent and Total 

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Interest Total Collections 

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections t2I1XL~ 
1991 $ 50,234,549 $ 49,682,906 99 % $ 575,280 $ 50,258,186 100 % 

1992 49,168,596 48,226,986 98 853,127 49,080,113 100 

1993 52,005,555 51 ,202,659 98 120,797 51,323,456 99 

1994 52,767,491 51,997,064 99 737,280 52,734,344 100 

1995 55,410,789 55,247,895 100 (14,755) 55,233,140 100 

1996 54,476,197 54,062,888 99 (182,618) 53,880,270 99 
1997 58,632,597 57,916,789 99 (303,977) 57,612,812 98 

1998 59,150,686 58,603,216 99 1,667,557 60,270,773 102 

1999 60,547,511 59,484,336 98 786,072 60,270,408 100 

2000 61,998,281 60,973,987 98 1,474,581 62,448,568 101 

I -0 - PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Prior Years 
Taxes 

Penalties Percent of 
Current Percent and Total 

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Interest Total Collections 

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections t2TaxL~ 
1991 $ 64,857,973 $ 64,177,491 99 % $ 866,995 $ 65,044,486 100 % 

1992 76,056,847 74,730,404 98 740,152 75,470,556 99 

1993 86,738,199 85,207,056 98 791,585 85,998,641 99 

1994 90,765,239 89,580,087 99 1,563,448 91,143,535 100 

1995 92,551,211 91,879,635 99 691,714 92,571,349 100 

1996 94,707,563 93,970,990 99 886,684 94,857,674 100 

1997 97,533,798 96,689,551 99 127,099 96,816,650 99 

1998 98,618,464 97,670,607 99 867,691 98,538,298 100 

1999 101 ,339,962 100,037,283 99 1,271,457 101,308,740 100 

2000 103,461,526 102,213,005 99 1,427,207 103,640,212 100 

Source: Total Tax Levy- Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-4 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

.M.Qt-!IGOMEBY CQUNIY Ratio of Total 
Assessed Value 

Real Pro12ert:t Total (1) To Total 
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Estimated 
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value &J.ltal Yalue 

1991 $ 20,622,521 $ 56,134,727 $ 23,614,398 $ 59,126,604 39.94 
1992 22,642,951 57,644,986 25,856,767 60,858,802 42.49 
1993 24,530,411 64,826,668 27,837,198 68,133,455 40.86 
1994 25,462,671 66,171,182 28,823,025 69,531,537 41.45 
1995 25,796,030 67,107,259 29,172,981 70,484,210 41.39 
1996 26,057,529 66,677,402 29,575,004 70,194,878 42.13 
1997 26,603,652 68,284,529 30,392,876 72,073,752 42.17 
1998 27,274,641 69,295,328 30,929,092 72,949,779 42.40 
1999 27,906,080 71,480,738 31,664,627 75,239,284 42.09 

.... 2000 28,674,554 74,907,403 32,553,857 78,786,706 41.32 
0 
N 

e.rutic.EJ3-E.ORGE'S CQUNIY Ratio of Total 
Assessed Value 

Real Pro12erty Total (1 To Total 
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Estimated 
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value A.cJMal Yalue 

1991 $ 10,813,341 $ 29,215,357 $ 12,935,738 $ 31,337,755 41.28 
1992 11,752,984 32,049,369 13,987,343 34,283,729 40.80 
1993 12,864,122 34,105,757 15,177,630 36,419,265 41 .67 
1994 13,501,439 34,929,206 15,829,304 37,257,071 42.49 
1995 13,961,904 35,575,591 16,381,236 37,994,922 43.11 
1996 14,188,944 35,404,010 16,678,956 37,894,021 44.01 
1997 14,319,088 35,827,507 16,991,422 38,499,841 44.13 
1998 14,393,723 36,104,232 17,159,141 38,869,650 44.15 
1999 14,630,433 36,423,659 17,525,979 39,319,204 44.57 
2000 14,869,426 37,244,023 17,891,768 40,266,365 44.43 

Note: (1) Total includes real property, business personal property, public utility operating property and 
domestic shares. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-5 

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

M-NCPPC TAXES 

MQNIGQMEBY CQUNTY 
Countywide 

Advance Property 
Fiscal Park Park Land Taxes 
Year Administration Operations Maintenance Acquisition Total Within County Total 

1991 $ 0.0720 $ 0.1500 $ 0.0200 $ 0.0030 $ 0.2450 $ 2.3450 $ 2.5900 

1992 0.0630 0.1330 0.0200 0.0030 0.2190 2.3730 2.5920 

1993 0.0630 0.1290 0.0200 0.0030 0.2150 2.2100 2.4250 

1994 0.0620 0.1260 0.0200 0.0030 0.2110 2.2260 2.4370 

1995 0.0650 0.1300 0.0200 0.0030 0.2180 2.2550 2.4730 
1996 0.0610 0.1260 0.0200 0.0040 0.2110 2.2850 2.4960 

1997 0.0630 0.1340 0.0200 0.0040 0.2210 2.2780 2.4990 
1998 0.0610 0.1330 0.0200 0.0040 0.2180 2.2630 2.4810 

1999 0.0610 0.1330 0.0200 0.0040 0.2180 2.2350 2.4530 
2000 0.0620 0.1340 0.0200 0.0030 0.2190 2.1750 2.3940 

.... 
0 
w PRINCE GEQRGE'S CQUNIY 

Countywide 
Advance Property 

Fiscal Park Land Taxes 
Year Administration Operations Recreation Acquisition Total Within County Total 

1991 $ 0.1015 $ 0.3088 $ 0.1185 $ 0.0062 $ 0.5350 $ 2.6450 $ 3.1800 
1992 0.0992 0.3632 0.1164 0.0062 0.5850 2.8450 3.4300 
1993 0.1103 0.3406 0.1529 0.0062 0.6100 2.7750 3.3850 
1994 0.1103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7520 3.3620 
1995 0.1103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7580 3.3680 
1996 0.1103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7630 3.3730 
1997 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7360 3.3460 
1998 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7410 3.3510 
1999 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7360 3.3460 
2000 0.1123 0.3534 0.1381 0.0062 0.6100 2.7340 3.3440 

Note: Rates are per $100 of assessed valuation. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 



Year 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Year 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Notes: 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-6 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt 
To Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY cm 
Net Ratio of Net 

Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to 
Population Value (1) Debt (2) Assessed Value 

765,000 $ 20,441,824 $ 25,755 0.13 
773,000 22,377,637 28,770 0.13 
785,000 24,105,934 26,070 0.11 
798,000 24,918,829 24,220 0.10 
810,000 25,365,173 27,730 0.11 
819,000 25,640,317 26,970 0.11 
828,000 26,459,376 25,185 0.10 
837,000 27,052,214 23,585 0.09 
846,000 27,701,359 28,985 0.10 
855,000 28,408,647 27,125 0.10 

ERINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Net Ratio of Net 
Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to 

Population Value (1) Debt (2) A&sessed Value 

726,192 $ 11 ,655,534 $ 59,640 (3) 0.51 
736,564 12,631,750 78,470 (3) 0.62 
741,180 13,869,994 89,320 0.64 
744,066 14,250,000 84,700 0.59 
752,009 14,606,000 80,530 0.55 
758,510 14,978,000 78,460 0.52 
765,520 15,385,000 107,095 0.70 
770,786 15,839,475 122,815 0.78 
777,811 16,274,756 117,980 0.72 
787,112 16,634,701 112,635 0.68 

(1) Metropolitan District only - OOO's omitted. 
(2) Above figures for net bonded debt exclude indebtedness related to Advance Land 

Acquisition, which is intended to be a revolving fund - OOO's omitted. 
(3) Includes Park Acquisition and Development Bonds, Series F-2, recorded in the 

Property Management Internal Service Fund. (retired in fiscal year 1993). 

Net Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita 

$ 33.67 
37.22 
33.21 
30.35 
34.23 
32.93 
30.42 
28.18 
34.26 
31 .73 

Net Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita 

$ 82.13 
106.54 
120.51 
113.83 
107.09 
103.44 
139.90 
159.34 
151.68 
143.10 

Source: Assessed Value and Population - Montgomery County and Prince George's County 
Governments. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-7 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 

As of June 30, 2000 

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 
Guaranteed by Montgomery County 

Assessed Valuation - Metropolitan District for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2000 ............................... ....... .. .......... .. ..................... $ 28,408,647,000 

Annual Revenue from 9 cents mandatory park tax levied 
for each $100 of assessed valuation .......... .... .. .. ......... ..... ..... ......... .. .. .. .. ... ... .. .. .. . $ 25,567,782 

Legal Debt Margin -

Revenue available from 9 cents mandatory park tax 
over next thirty years .. .... ................... ... ............................................................ $ __ ..:...:76:....:7'-!.,0:....:3:....:3:..!.,4..:...:6:....:0:... 

Debt service over next thirty years on $27,125,000 bonds 
and notes issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000 ................................... $ 37,381,000 

----'----'---

Amount of tax available for debt service on future bonds . .... ... . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . . ...... $ ===72=9:::!:,6=5=2::!::,4=6=0= 

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 
Guaranteed by Prince George's County 

Assessed Valuation - Metropolitan District for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2000 ................................ .. ............................ ........... $ 16,634,701 ,000 

Annual Revenue from 10 cents mandatory park tax levied 
for each $100 of assessed valuation ... .. ............................. .. .. ............................. $ 16,634,701 

Legal Debt Margin -

Revenue available from 10 cents mandatory park tax 
over next thirty years ................ ..................................... .. ........... .... ... ............... $ __ 4_9_9,_,0_41_,_,_03_0_ 

Debt service over next thirty years on $112,635,000 bonds 
and notes issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000 ............. ............. ...... . $ __ 1;...c5=2=,5-=-89.:..!,....:...43:....:7_ 

Amount of tax available for debt service on future bonds . . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . ... . .. . . .. .. .. $ ===34=6='=45=1='=59=3= 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY PRINCE GEORGE'S 
COUNTY COUNTY 

Direct Debt Outstanding $ 47 784 828 $ 117 897,711 

Overlapping Debt 

Montgomery County Debt 1,364,362,607 (1) 

Prince George's County Debt 638,220,060 (1) 

Washington Suburban Sanitary 

Commission Debt 1,064,577,882 602,732,818 

Montgomery County Revenue 

Authority Debt 44,533,049 

Prince George's County Industrial Authority 

Lease Revenue Bonds 51 ,805,825 

Montgomery County Housing 

Opportunities Commission 682,101 ,830 

Prince George's County State 

of Maryland Participation Loans 5,278,193 

Total Overlapping Debt 3,155,575,368 1,298,036,896 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 3,203,360,196 1,415,934,607 

Less Self-Supporting Debt 

M-NCPPC - Revenue Bonds 3,845,244 

M-NCPPC - Revenue Notes 9,410,000 

M-NCPPC • Notes Payable 2,149,584 1,892,711 

Montgomery County Debt 70,840,000 

Prince George's County Debt 174,899,526 

Washington Suburban Sanitary 

Commission Debt 1,064,577,882 602,732,818 

Montgomery County Revenue 

Authority Debt 44,533,049 

Prince George's County Industrial Authority 

Lease Revenue Bonds 7,830,000 

Montgomery County Housing 

Opportunities Commission 682,101 ,830 

Prince George's County State 

of Maryland Participation Loans 

Total Self-Supporting Debt 1,877,457,589 787,355,055 

Net Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 1,325,902,607 $ 628,579,552 

Note: (1) Overlapping debt does not include the debt of towns, cities and villages aggregating 
$33,270,484 in Montgomery County and is not available in Prince George's County. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments, and Washington Suburban 
Sanitary Commission. 
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TABLE T-8 

TOTAL DEBT 
OUTSTANDING 

$ 165,682,539 

1,364,362,607 

638,220,060 

1,667,310,700 

44,533,049 

51,805,825 

682,101 ,830 

5,278,193 

4,453,612,264 

4,619,294,803 

3,845,244 

9,410,000 

4,042,295 

70,840,000 

174,899,526 

1,667,310,700 

44,533,049 

7,830,000 

682,101,830 

2,664,812,644 

$ 11954,482, 159 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-9 

Demographic Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Per Capita Labor Unemployment Registered 
Year Population Income Force Rate Pupils 

1991 765,000 $ 33,666 442,971 3.2 % 103,732 
1992 773,000 34,832 454,378 3.7 107,140 
1993 785,000 36,130 450,597 3.5 110,037 

1994 798,000 37,513 462,202 2.9 113,429 
1995 810,000 38,802 463,112 2.9 117,082 
1996 819,000 40,000 474,872 2.6 120,291 

1997 828,000 40,388 466,500 2.6 122,505 

1998 837,000 42,393 467,639 2.3 (3) 125,035 

1999 846,000 45,480 474,003 2.0 (3) 127,852 
2000 855,000 47,930 494,950 1.8 (3) 131 ,330 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Per Capita Labor Unemployment Registered 

Year Population (1) Income (2) Force Rate Pupils 

1991 726,192 $ 20,326 424,231 4.9 % 105,891 

1992 736,564 20,532 443,596 5.7 109,662 

1993 741,180 21,373 432,990 5.9 111 ,132 

1994 744,066 21 ,772 474,485 4.4 111 ,823 

1995 752,009 22,645 485,100 4.7 116,383 

1996 758,510 23,983 463,700 5.1 119,951 

1997 765,520 24,639 463,690 4.6 122,831 

1998 770,786 25,194 454,528 4.3 (3) 125,637 
1999 777,811 27,996 444,014 3.8 (3) 129,793 
2000 787,112 • 441 ,641 3.8 (3) • 

Notes: 

(1) Population estimates are from the U. S. Bureau of the Census, Population Ea1imatn Branch. Population estimates are based on 

the month of December for each fiscal year. 

(2) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economics Measurement Division. 
The calendar per capita income figures are based on the month of December for each fiscal year. 

(3) U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics as of June, 2000 

* Not Available 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for 
General Obligation Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MQlllIGQMEBY: CQUlllTY 

Total Total 

Fiscal Debt General 

Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures 

1991 $ 2,625,000 $ 1,371 ,109 $ 3,996,109 $ 68,290,622 

1992 3,465,000 1,744,729 5,209,729 67,780,550 

1993 3,180,000 1,696,935 4,876,935 68,319,249 

1994 2,330,000 1,636,139 3,966,139 66,779,510 

1995 1,970,000 1,926,774 3,896,774 71,490,267 

1996 2,260,000 1,930,963 4,190,963 72,410,180 

1997 2,370,000 1,787,569 4,157,569 81,925,168 

1998 1,905,000 1,676,695 3,581,695 80,278,186 

1999 1,905,000 1,704,211 3,609,211 80,746,444 

2000 2,165,000 1,758,089 3,923,089 91,300,376 

eBllllCE GEQBGE'S CQUfllTY 

Total Total 
Fiscal Debt General 
Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures 

1991 $ 2,905,000 $ 2,822,994 $ 5,727,994 $ 94,541 ,297 
1992 4,615,000 3,727,584 8,342,584 100,845,784 
1993 4,845,000 4,009,834 8,854,834 96,736,859 
1994 5,065,000 4,596,086 9,661 ,086 113,066,261 
1995 4,615,000 5,206,174 9,821 ,174 123,382,881 
1996 5,040,000 4,892,298 9,932,298 114,052,704 
1997 4,685,000 4,303,838 8,988,838 118,806,646 
1998 5,480,000 6,294,373 11,774,373 127,205,136 
1999 5,070,000 6,281,752 11,351 ,752 152,205,437 
2000 5,580,000 6,383,221 11,963,221 136,691,612 

Note: Total general expenditures includes General, Capital Projects, Debt Service and 

Enterprise Funds. Debt Service in Prince George's County includes Park Acquisition 

and Development Bonds, Series F-2, recorded in the Property Management Internal 
Service Fund through fiscal year 1993. 
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TABLE T-10 

Ratio of 
Debt Service 
to General 

Expenditures 

5.85 % 
7.69 
7.14 

5.94 
5.45 
5.79 

5.07 
4.46 
4.47 

4.30 

Ratio of 
Debt Service 
to General 

Expenditures 

6.06 % 
8.27 
9.15 
8.54 
7.96 
8.71 
7.57 

9.26 
7.46 
8.75 



Fiscal 
Year 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Fiscal 
Year 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

Notes: 

* Not Available. 

Source: 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Dollars in Millions) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Total Number Residential Commercial 
of Building Construction Construction Bank 

Permits Value (1} Value (1} De(;1osits 

11,217 $ 590 $ 316 $ 7,543 
11,719 423 239 7,738 
12,043 479 246 7,839 
11,769 468 100 7,866 
13,500 583 70 7,710 
12,677 765 116 7,994 
13,837 726 183 7,973 
14,162 743 331 8,376 
15,130 787 287 8,967 
20,205 881 244 * 

eRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Residential 
Building Residential Commercial 
Permits Construction Construction Bank 
Issued Value (2} Value (2} De(;1osits 

3,026 $ 224 $ 162 $ 3,868 
3,747 290 106 4,088 
5,249 328 124 3,957 
3,864 291 102 4,016 
3,604 299 98 3,941 
3,205 276 417 3,929 
2,815 257 168 3,854 
3,430 318 190 3,873 
2,582 291 286 4,260 
2,219 250 156 * 

(1) Estimated market value of new construction added to the real property tax base. 

(2) Estimated value of new construction on building permits. 

Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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TABLE T-11 

Total 
Estimated 

Real 
Property 
Value 

$ 56,135 
57,645 
64,827 
66,171 
67,107 
66,677 
68,285 
69,295 
71,481 
74,907 

Total 
Estimated 

Real 
Property 

Value 

$ 29,215 
32,049 
34,106 
34,929 
35,576 
35,404 
35,828 
36,104 
36,424 
37,244 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-12 

Principal Taxpayers 

June 30, 2000 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Percentage 
ofTotal 

Total Assessed Real Other 
Taxpayer Assessment Valuation Property Property 

Potomac Electric Power Company $ 1,009,659,880 3.10 % $ 23,517,200 $ 986,142,680 

Bell Atlantic 636,666,050 1.96 24,577,370 612,088,680 

Washington Gas Light Company 171,956,400 0.53 6,531,360 165,425,040 

International Business Machines 85,389,180 0.26 16,649,680 68,739,500 

May Department Stores 83,324,130 0.26 29,595,600 53,728,530 
Montgomery Mall 82,043,360 0.25 81 ,392,900 650,460 
Bryant F. Foulger, Trustee 57,116,210 0.17 57,116,210 

Albert & R. Abramson, et. al. 50,844,300 0.16 50,844,300 

Lake Forest Associates 50,115,600 0.15 50,115,600 
Asbury Methodist Home, Inc. 45,774,450 0.14 45,774,450 

Total $ 2.272,889.560 6.98 % $ 386.114,670 $ 1,886,774.890 

Total Assessable Base $ 32.553,856,811 100.00 % 

eRJNCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Percentage 
of Total 

Total Assessed Real Other 
Iaxpay.er Assessment Valuation Property Property 

Potomac Electric Power Company $ 1,981 ,398,800 11.07 % $ 8,651,860 $ 1,972,746,940 
Bell Atlantic Maryland 748,002,160 4.18 3,810,740 744,191,420 
Washington Gas Light Company 300,951 ,720 1.68 1,538,170 299,413,550 
Baltimore Gas & Electric Company 184,935,080 1.03 1,046,800 183,888,280 
Safeway, Inc. 121,934,260 0.68 33,445,810 88,488,450 
Summerfield Housing LTD Partnership 115,480,400 0.65 37,051,400 78,429,000 
Giant Foods, Inc. 113,332,040 0.63 113,332,040 
Greenbelt Homes, Incorporated 110,126,160 0.62 32,205,350 77,920,810 
JKC Stadium 95,614,260 0.53 81,124,120 14,490,140 
GB Mall Limited Partnership 70,053,680 0.39 26,129,620 43,924,060 

Total $ 3,841,828,560 21.47 % $ 225,003,870 $ 3,616,824,690 

Total Assessable Base $ 17.891 .768.130 100.00 % 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE 
TABLET-13 

TYPE OF COVERAGE AND NAME OF COMPANY 
Seii Insured ,n Coniunct,on with 
Montgomery County Sew Insurance Fund: 

o Workers' Compensation and Employe(s 
Liability 

o Comprehensive General and Auto liability 
o Public Offtcial Liability 
o Police Professional Liability 
oAutomobile Physical Damage 

o Excess liability 

Insured in Conjunction with Montgomery 
County Sew Insurance Fund: 

o Elchibition Floater 
Travelers Indemnity Co. 

oAII Risk Real and Personal Property 
Contracto(s Equipment and Difference 
in Conditions and EDP 

Boiler and Machinery 
Travelers Indemnity Co. 

Insurance purchased directly by the Commission: 
o Airport Liability including Products, 

Hangar Keepe(s and Nonowned Aircraft 
Associated Aviation Underwriters 

o Business Nonowned Aircraft Liability and 
Physical Damage 

Associated Aviation Underwriters 

oAdditional Premium Endorsement 
extending coverage to apply to Alrshow 

Associated Aviation Und81Writers 

o Public Employees Blanket Bond 
Peerless Insurance 

o Public Official Bond 
(Secretary-Treasurer) 

Fidelity and Deposit Company 

o Public Official Bond (Executive 
Director) 

Fidelity and Deposit Company 

oDepositors Forgery Bond 
Fidelity and Deposit Company 

o Ma,yland Baseball Limited Partnership 
(Bowie Stadium) 

St. Paul Insurance Company 

o College Park Avialion Museum 
CGU Commercial Lines Policy 

o L.ive Animal Inland Marine Floater Policy 

POLICY/BOND 
NUMBER 

T JCMB225T952693 

T JCMB225T952693 

All 604866 

BN0604S67 

46603997 

01882 34 61 

596 14 77-8 

3066 59 36 

9481095-1 

CKOOB01578 

CIM04050501 

19-37178 

M iscellaneous Bonds purchased directly by the Commission 
o license and Pemiit Bond 

Peerless Insurance Company 018-89-66-77 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2000 

POLICY/BOND PERIOD 
FROM TO 

07/01/99 07/01/2000 

07/01/99 06/30/2000 

1/18/2000 01/18/2001 

1/18/2000 01/18/2001 

09/12/99 09/13199 

07/01/99 07/01/2000 

07/01/99 07/01/2000 

08/14/99 08/14/2000 

07/01/99 07/01/2000 

3/15/2000 03/1512001 

11 /05/99 11 /0512000 

2124/2000 2/2412001 

03/31 /99 03/31/2000 
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COVERAGE 

Maryland State and $100,000 
Employe(s Liability; Special 
Police Capital Centre; $50,000 
accident, $500,000 d isease 

$10,000,000 combined single limit 
of Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage 

Comprehensive and Collision $1,000 
deductible each loss 

$10,000,000 combined single limit 
$2,000,000 deductible each loss 

$250,000 all risk on display $20,000, 
(blanket aggregate); $10,000 any 
one item, $250 deductible; $25,000 
any one conveyance 

Actual cash value, broad ronn 
coverage per schedUled listing 
with $5,000 S.I.R. per cxx:urrence 

$100,000,000 loss limit 
$250,000 S.I.R. per occurrence 
Includes EDP equipment $1,000 
deductib le, $2,500 deductible for 
flood & earthquake 
Actual cash value, broad ronn 
coverage per scheduled listing 
with $5,000 S.I.R. per occurrence 

$10,000.000 per occurrence; 
$10,000,000 per completed operations 
$1 ,000,000 each aircraft; 
$5,000,000 each loss; $2,500 
deductible each occurrence 

$2,000,000 per occurrence; in 
motion deductible - $500 
Not in motion deductible - $100 

$10,000,000 per occurrence 

$100,000 

$200,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

ANNUAL 
PREMIUM 

S 32.900 

$ 850 

$ 47,190 

$ 29,250 

$ 3,500 

$ 2,500 

$ 3,710 

$ 720 

S 175 

S 442 

$500,000 Building Contents S 45,427 
$6,500,000 Building 
$2,000,000 General liability 
$1 ,000,000 Automobile liability 
Auto Physical Damage: $500 Collision deductible 

$100 Comprehensive deductible 
$100,000 Garage Keepers liability: $250 deductible 

$300,000 Berliner Helicopter 
$ 68,000 WIibur Wright Robot 
$ 5,000 Unscheduled Items 
$310,000 1917 Curlis Jenny Plane 

$12,000,000 Excess Liability 

Horses - limit SS,000 per animal 
Collies - limit $3,300 per animal 

$ 3,805 

$ 4,800 

$5,000 Driveway Entrance 6724 Needwood Rd., Rockvill $ ____!QQ_ 

$ 175 369 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Table T-14 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENTERPRISE INFORMATION 

Condensed Schedule of Revenues and Expenses 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000 

BacmaliQoal Eacililies 

MQ~IGQMEB:t: CQU~D'. 

Conference Golf Ice Indoor Park 
Centers Courses Rinks Tennis Facilities Totals 

Operating Revenues $ 316,869 $ 6,680,261 $ 1,857,373 $ 1,021,025 $ 1,596,949 $ 11,472,477 

Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 422 713 5,880,420 2 797 730 666,092 1,129,643 10,896,598 

Operating Income {Loss) 

Before Depreciation {105,844) 799,841 {940,357) 354,933 467,306 575,879 

Depreciation 35,254 469939 291 941 57 637 78,327 933,098 

Operating Income {Loss) {141,098) 329,902 {1,232,298) 297,296 388,979 (357,219) 

Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses) - (118,841) (154,941) 151 ,080 112,259 (10,443) 

Operating Transfers In (Out) 76000 10 000 -- - 86,000 

Net Income (Loss) $ (65,098) $ 211 061 $ (1,377.239} $ 448 376 $ 501,238 $ (281,662) 

EBl~CE GEQBGE'S CQU~IX .... .... 
Equestrian N 

Center/ Trap and Sports and 

Multipurpose Golf Ice Regional Skeet Leaming Bladensburg 

Aire2,rt Arena Courses Rinks Parks Center ~ ~omplex~ Marina Totals 

Operating Revenues $ 261,220 $ 998,826 $ 2,109,745 $ 458,807 $ 200,252 $ 1,123,008 $ 160,548 $ - $ 5,312,406 

Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 632,434 2,471,659 2,138,660 527 466 449,532 1 138,414 3,737,518 257 433 __!!dg,116 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Before Depreciation {371,214) (1,472,833) (28,915) (68,659) (249,280) (15,406) (3,576,970) (257,433) (6,040,710) 

Depreciation 115,838 583,232 121 774 87 246 32,305 7 944 483,345 69447 1,501 ,131 

Operating Income (Loss) {487,052) (2,056,065) (150,689), (155,905) (281,585) (23,350) (4,060,315) (326,880) (7,541,841 ) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - -- - 67,923 -- 184,432 25,958 278,313 

Operating Transfers In (Out) 288 617 1,236,859 109,269 . 73 338 281,917 94 917 2,929,116 245 100 5,259,133 

Net Income (Loss) $ (198,435) $ (819,206) $ (41,420~ $ (82,567) $ 68,255 $ 71 567 $ (946,767) $ (55,822) $ _{2,004,395) 



Cover: 

The Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex, a place dedicated to the fitness of body 
and mind, became the latest jewel in the Commission's crown when it opened to the public 
in April, 2000. The centerpiece of the Complex is a major state-of-the-art indoor facility 
which includes: a field house with a 200-meter, 6-lane indoor track; a 20,000 square-foot 
fitness center; a competition-level gymnastics facility; an aquatics facility with both SO-meter 
competition pools and a family leisure splash pool; and a Learning Center which offers 
interactive educational opportunities as well as Internet access and technology-based 
programs for all ages and skill levels. The Complex' s indoor venues are all linked via a 
central "Main Street" atrium which offers retail and food concession areas, interactive exhibits 
and observation space overlooking the various competitive sports venues, outdoor track and 
sports fields and a protected fossil interpretive area. 

Page 15: 

Soccer players compete on one of many fields available for play ... Jefferson Farm barn at 
Little Bennett Golf Course offers a scenic view . . . Hockey players await their chance to 
score a goal ... Park Police mounted officer provides a reassuring presence at special events 
throughout the county ... A future gymnast enjoys the bounce of a trampoline ... Sports 
programs offered through the Commission serve hundreds of thousands of residents . . . A 
diver takes the plunge at the Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex ... A naturalist 
adds seasonal beauty to a park area ... Canoes at Black Hill Regional Park provide a means 
to enjoy the natural beauty of the park. 

Photo Credits: 

Steve Abramowitz (Prince George's County): cover and pages 15, 26, 76, 86, 90, 
Emma Anderson (Montgomery County): page 79 
Francine Bethea (Montgomery County): pages 4, 15, 68, 82, 94, 98 
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